
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

18 January 2019 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee on 
Monday, 28th January, 2019 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Jonathan Noble 
Vice Chairman: Councillor James Edwards 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Michael Brookes, Colin Brotherton, 

Paul Gleeson, Dr Gordon Gregory, Barrie Pierpoint and 
Mr Alan Pickering 

 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 10th December 2018. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Wednesday 23rd January 2019. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

1   EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN                                                                    (Pages 5 - 28) 
 

 A report by the External Auditor 
 
 

2   DRAFT BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL 
STRATEGY 2019 - 20                                                                     (Pages 29 - 142) 
 

 A report by the Chief Finance Officer 
 
 

3   TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE - QUARTER 3 2018 - 19 (Pages 143 - 154) 
 

 A Report by the Chief Finance Officer 
 
 

4   ACCOUNTING POLICIES                                                             (Pages 155 - 174) 
 

 A Report by the Chief Finance Officer 
 
 

5   DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PROCESS REPORT 2018 - 19         (Pages 175 - 192) 
 

 A Report by the Internal Audit Manager 
 
 

6   DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019 - 20                                 (Pages 193 - 208) 
 

 A Report by the Internal Audit Manager 
 
 

7   WORK PROGRAMME                                                                 (Pages 209 - 210) 
 

 STANDING ITEM 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227    email: 
janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify 01205 314227    
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 
 
 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 
 

 

Emergency Procedures 
 

In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 
via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 

located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

10 December 2018 

Present: Councillor Jonathan Noble (Chairman),  (Vice-Chairman), Councillors 
Tom Ashton, Colin Brotherton, Paul Gleeson and Felicity Ransome 
 
In attendance:  
 
Officers –  
Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer and Democratic Services Manager 
 
33   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12th November 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
34   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Michael Brookes, James 
Edwards and Barrie Pierpoint and Mr. Alan Pickering. 
 
35   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None tabled 
 
36   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None tabled 
 
37   MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer introduced a report setting out 
proposed revisions to the current arrangements for dealing with Member Code of 
Conduct issues.  
 
The report stated that in March 2018 the Audit and Governance Committee had 
considered a report reviewing the Member Code of Conduct and associated policies, 
which were recommended to full Council for approval. 
 
However, the report to Council had been withdrawn prior to the meeting following 
comments from Members and it was agreed to convene a cross party Code of Conduct 
Working Group to review the policies in detail and address concerns raised by 
Members.  
 
The Group had met on several occasions and its recommendations were set out in the 
report.  
 
During deliberations on the current arrangements for dealing with Code of Conduct 
complaints the Group had expressed the view that a separate sub-committee of the 
Audit and Governance Committee should be established for the governance and 
conduct aspects of the work of the Committee, rather than being within the remit of the 
full Committee. 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Audit & Governance Committee 
10 December 2018 
 

The proposed arrangements included appointing parish councillors and a parish clerk to 
the sub-committee on a non-voting status to recognise the responsibility for conduct of 
parish councillors and a Cabinet Member, but not the Leader, as an ex office member 
(non-voting).  
 
The main changes in the process for dealing with standards complaints involved having 
as Assessment Panel of Members to determine if investigations should take place.  
Following receipt of a complaint the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the 
Independent Person, would determine if the action or behaviour of the Member had 
breached the Code of Conduct, based on knowledge, case law and experience.  If it was 
considered to be a breach an Assessment Panel would be convened to decide whether 
or not the complaint should be investigated or local resolution sought. 
 
The process for investigating complaints and the conduct of Hearing Panels, if required, 
would remain unchanged.  The proposed Terms of Reference for a Standards Sub-
Committee and the revised arrangements for dealing with standards complaints were 
attached as appendices to the report.  
 
If the introduction of a Standards Sub-Committee were approved its first piece of work 
would be to review the Member Code of Conduct to ensure it was fit for purpose, robust 
and promoted the high standard of behaviour expected of Members.  The review would 
include the requirement to treat others with respect, equality and diversity including the 
Public Sector Equality duty, data protection and provide clarification of the 
circumstances when the code applied to Member’s behaviour.  
 
Until such time as a review had been completed it was recommended that Council 
reaffirm its adoption of the current Member Code of Conduct, subject to referencing all 
supporting policies e.g. Member Employee Protocol, Data Protection Protocol, 
Whistleblowing Policy etc. and noting that any action or behaviour which constituted a 
breach of any of the supporting policies would also be a breach of the Member Code of 
Conduct.  
 
The Member Code of Conduct, Member Employee Protocol and Members Data 
Protection Protocol were appended to the report and recommended for approval.  
 
Under the Localism Act 2011 the Council was required to appoint at least one 
Independent Person who must be consulted by the authority before it made a finding as 
to whether or not a Member had failed to comply with the Code of Conduct.  
 
The Council currently had one Independent Person appointed for standards purposes 
and it was recommended that a recruitment exercise be undertaken to appoint an 
additional two suitably qualified Independent Persons to provide more resilience to the 
role to cover for absences or circumstances where there was a conflict of interest in a 
complaint.  
 
The Committee were supportive of the proposals set out in the report which would allow 
Borough Councillors and Parish Councils to be involved in the process.  Comments from 
Mr Alan Pickering, Independent Member of the Committee, were circulated for 
information and it was agreed that it would be appropriate for these to be taken into 
consideration when the sub-committee, if approved, reviewed the Member Code of 
Conduct.  

Page 2



Audit & Governance Committee 
10 December 2018 

 

 
In response to comments regarding the provision for the identity of the person making a 
standards complaint against a member being withheld from that Member, the Monitoring 
Officer stated that, in some circumstances, it would not be appropriate to release 
personal details if there were concerns regarding the personal safety of the complainant 
or a risk of reprisals against them.  If the complainant felt they had been unfairly 
disadvantaged by their details being released there was a risk that legal action could be 
taken against the Council.  The situation would arise only rarely and there would need to 
be justifiable reasons for withholding the identity of the complainant 
 
The Chairman asked for it be recorded that, in his opinion, Members should be allowed 
to see all forms of evidence against them.  
 
It was agreed the wording on the flow chart set out in appendix 2 should be amended to 
clarify that alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct would be referred to the 
Assessment Panel, and similarly the wording in paragraph 2.4 of the report.  
 
The Committee requested that a Member Briefing be arranged in advance of the report 
being considered by Council on 21 January 2019.  
 
RESOLVED  

 
1. To recommend to full Council that a Standards Sub Committee be 

established from the AGM in May 2019 and the Terms of Reference as set 
out in Appendix 1 be adopted.  

 
2. To recommend to full Council to adopt the Arrangements for Dealing with 

Member Complaints as set out at Appendix 2. 
 
3. To recommend to Full Council to reaffirm adoption of the Members’ Code of 

Conduct at Appendix 3, subject to it referencing all supporting policies e.g. 
Member Employee Protocol, Data Protection Protocol, Whistleblowing 
Policy.  Any behaviour which constituted a breach of any of the supporting 
policies would consequently be a breach of the Member Code of Conduct.  

 
4. To recommend to Full Council to adopt the revised Member Employee 

Protocol at Appendix 4. 
 
5. To recommend to Full Council to adopt the Members’ Data Protection 

Protocol at Appendix 5. 
 
6. To recommend to full Council the appointment of two additional 

Independent Persons to support the Standards Sub Committee and 
participate in the Code of Conduct complaints process.  

 
7. That a Member Briefing be arranged in advance of consideration of the 

report by full Council on 21 January 2019.  
 

 
The Meeting ended at 7.10 pm 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Strategy Memorandum
Boston Borough Council
Year ending 31 March 2019

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



CONTENTS

1. Engagement and responsibilities summary

2. Your audit engagement team

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

4. Audit risks and key judgement areas

5. Value for Money

6. Fees for audit and other services

7. Our commitment to independence

8. Materiality and misstatements

Appendix A – Key communication points

Appendix B - Forthcoming accounting and other issues

Appendix C – Mazars’ client service commitment

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Boston Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of the Audit and

Governance Committee as the appropriate sub-committee charged with governance . No responsibility is accepted to any other person in

respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a

third party.

2

Page 6



Mazars LLP
Park View House
58 The Ropewalk

Nottingham
NG1 5DW

Audit and Governance Committee Members
Boston Borough Council
Municipal Buildings
West Street
Boston
Lincolnshire
PE21 8QR

18 January 2019

Dear Sirs / Madams

Audit Strategy Memorandum – Year ending 31 March 2019

We are pleased to present our Audit Strategy Memorandum for Boston Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2019

The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit approach, highlight significant audit risks and areas of key judgements and

provide you with the details of our audit team. As it is a fundamental requirement that an auditor is, and is seen to be, independent of its

clients, Section 7 of this document also summarises our considerations and conclusions on our independence as auditors.

We consider two-way communication with you to be key to a successful audit and important in:

• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of each of us;

• sharing information to assist each of us to fulfil our respective responsibilities;

• providing you with constructive observations arising from the audit process; and

• ensuring that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding of your attitude and views in respect of the internal and external

operational, financial, compliance and other risks facing Boston Borough Council which may affect the audit, including the

likelihood of those risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed.

This document, which has been prepared following our initial planning discussions with management, is the basis for discussion of our

audit approach, and any questions or input you may have on our approach or role as auditor.

This document also contains specific appendices that outline our key communications with you during the course of the audit, and

forthcoming accounting issues and other issues that may be of interest.

Client service is extremely important to us and we strive to continuously provide technical excellence with the highest level of service

quality, together with continuous improvement to exceed your expectations so, if you have any concerns or comments about this

document or audit approach, please contact me on 07875 974 291.

Yours faithfully

Mark Surridge

Mazars LLP

3

Page 7



1. ENGAGEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITIES SUMMARY

Overview of engagement

We are appointed to perform the external audit of Boston Borough Council (the Council) for the year to 31 March 2019. The scope of our

engagement is set out in the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies, issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments

Ltd (PSAA) available from the PSAA website: https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/.

Our responsibilities

Our responsibilities are principally derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice

issued by the National Audit Office (NAO), as outlined below:

Our audit does not relieve management or those charged with governance, of their responsibilities. The responsibility for safeguarding

assets and for the prevention and detection of fraud, error and non-compliance with law or regulations rests with both those charged with

governance and management. In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), we plan and perform our audit so as to obtain

reasonable assurance that the financial statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or

error. However our audit should not be relied upon to identify all such misstatements.

As part of our audit procedures in relation to fraud we are required to enquire of those charged with governance as to their knowledge of

instances of fraud, the risk of fraud and their views on management controls that mitigate the fraud risks.

The Council is required to prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis by the Code of Practice on Local Authority

Accounting. As auditors, we are required to consider the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption in the preparation of

the financial statements and the adequacy of disclosures made.

For the purpose of our audit, we have identified the Audit & Governance Committee as those charged with governance.

We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements.

Our audit is planned and performed so to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free

from material error and give a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the Council for the

year.

Going 
concern

Fraud

We are required to conclude whether the Council has proper arrangements in place to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in it its use of resources. We discuss our approach to Value for Money work further 

in section 5 of this report.

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the opportunity to question us 

about the accounting records of the Council and consider any objection made to the accounts. We also have a 

broad range of reporting responsibilities and powers that are unique to the audit of local authorities in the United 

Kingdom.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

We are required to issue an assurance statement to the National Audit Office confirming the income, 

expenditure, asset and liabilities of the Council.

Audit 

opinion

Reporting 

to the 

NAO

Value for 

Money

Electors’ 

rights

4

Page 8



2. YOUR AUDIT ENGAGEMENT TEAM

Mark Surridge

Director and Engagement Lead

E-Mail: mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk

Tel: 07875 974 291

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

5

Jon Machej

Manager

E-Mail: jon.machej@mazars.co.uk

Tel: 0115 964 4782

Page 9



3. AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE

Audit scope

Our audit approach is designed to provide an audit that complies with all professional requirements.

Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), relevant ethical and

professional standards, our own audit approach and in accordance with the terms of our engagement. Our work is focused on those

aspects of your business which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement, such as those affected by management

judgement and estimation, application of new accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or areas which

have been found to contain material errors in the past.

Audit approach

Our audit approach is a risk-based approach primarily driven by the risks we consider to result in a higher risk of material misstatement of

the financial statements. Once we have completed our risk assessment, we develop our audit strategy and design audit procedures in

response to this assessment.

If we conclude that appropriately-designed controls are in place then we may plan to test and rely upon these controls. If we decide

controls are not appropriately designed, or we decide it would be more efficient to do so, we may take a wholly substantive approach to

our audit testing. Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion level and

comprise tests of details (of classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures) and substantive analytical procedures.

Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, which take into account our evaluation of the operating effectiveness of

controls, we are required to design and perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and

disclosure.

Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material

misstatement and give a true and fair view. The concept of materiality and how we define a misstatement is explained in more detail in

section 8.

The diagram below outlines the procedures we perform at the different stages of the audit.

• Final review and disclosure checklist of financial 

statements

• Final partner review

• Agreeing content of letter of representation

• Reporting to Audit and Governance

Committee

• Reviewing post balance sheet events

• Signing our opinion 

• Updating our understanding of the Council

• Initial opinion and value for money risk 

assessments

• Development of our audit strategy

• Agreement of timetables

• Preliminary analytical procedures

• Documenting systems and controls

• Walkthrough procedures

• Controls testing, including general 

and application IT controls

• Early substantive testing of transactions

• Review of draft financial statements

• Reassessment of audit strategy,              

revising as necessary

• Delivering our planned audit testing

• Continuous communication on emerging 

issues

• Clearance meeting

Planning

Nov - Dec 2018

Interim

Jan - Apr 2019

Fieldwork

May - Jul 2019

Completion

Jul 2019

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

6

Page 10



3. AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE (CONTINUED)

Reliance on internal audit

Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and timing of our audit procedures.

We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their work prior to the commencement of our controls evaluation

procedures.

Management’s and our experts

Management makes use of experts in specific areas when preparing the Council’s financial statements. We also use experts to assist us

to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on specific items of account.

Items of account Management's expert Our expert

Defined benefit liability
Hymans Robertson

Actuary for Lincolnshire Pension Fund

PWC

Consulting actuary appointed by the NAO

Property, plant and equipment valuation
Kier Services

External valuation specialist

Gerald Eve

Valuations expert appointed by the NAO

Business rate appeals provisions
InformCPI

External rating specialist
Not applicable

Financial instrument disclosures
Link Asset Services

Treasury management advisors
Not applicable

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

7

Page 11



3. AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE (CONTINUED)

Service organisations

International Auditing Standards (UK) define service organisations as third party organisations that provide services to the Council that are

part of its information systems relevant to financial reporting. We are required to obtain an understanding of the services provided by

service organisations as well as evaluating the design and implementation of controls over those services. The table below summarises

the service organisations used by the Council and our planned audit approach.

Items of account Service organisation Audit approach

Pension cost (cost of services)

Net interest on defined benefit liability

Re-measurements of the net defined 

benefit liability (OCI)

Net pension liability

Lincolnshire Pension Fund

The IAS 19 pension entries that form part 

of the Council’s financial statements are 

material and are derived from actuarial 

valuations. The process of obtaining 

these is co-ordinated by and uses 

information held and processed by the 

service organisation.

We will review the controls operating at the 

Council over these transactions to gain an 

understanding of the services provided by 

the service organisation.

Where we conclude that we do not have a 

sufficient understanding of the services 

provided by the service organisation we will 

seek to obtain assurance by using another 

auditor to perform procedures that will 

provide the necessary information about the 

relevant controls at the service organisation.

Payroll costs (cost of services)

Creditors

North Kesteven District Council

The payroll entries that form part of the 

Council’s financial statements are 

material and are derived from the 

processing of monthly payrolls. The 

payroll processing is undertaken and 

administered by North Kesteven District 

Council on behalf of the Council.

We will review the controls operating at the 

Council over these transactions to gain an 

understanding of the services provided by 

the service organisation.

We expect to be able to conclude that the 

Council has sufficient controls in place over 

the services provided by the payroll bureau 

and that we will be able to audit payroll 

based on the records held at the entity.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

8

Page 12



4. AUDIT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS

Following the risk assessment approach discussed in section 3 of this document, we have identified relevant risks to the audit of financial

statements. The risks that we identify are categorised as significant, enhanced or standard, as defined below:

The summary risk assessment, illustrated in the tables below, highlight those risks which we deem to be significant or enhanced. We have

summarised our audit response to these risks over the next pages.

At the time of writing this memorandum we are yet to complete our detailed risk assessment work over the Council’s key financial systems

and general IT controls. We aim to complete this work as part of our interim visit in January and will update the Audit and Governance

Committee where we subsequently identify any additional risks.

Significant risk A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s judgment, requires

special audit consideration. For any significant risk, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of the entity’s controls,

including control activities relevant to that risk.

Enhanced risk An enhanced risk is an area of higher assessed risk of material misstatement at audit assertion level other than a

significant risk. Enhanced risks incorporate but may not be limited to:

• key areas of management judgement, including accounting estimates which are material but are not

considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement; and

• other audit assertion risks arising from significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

Standard risk This is related to relatively routine, non-complex transactions that tend to be subject to systematic processing and

require little management judgement. Although it is considered that there is a risk of material misstatement, there are

no elevated or special factors related to the nature, the likely magnitude of the potential misstatements or the

likelihood of the risk occurring.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

H
igh

HighLow

Low

Likelihood

F
inancial

im
pact

1

Risk

1 Management override of control

2 Property, plant and equipment valuation

3 Defined benefit liability valuation

2

3

9

Page 13



4. AUDIT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS (CONTINUED)

We provide more detail on the identified risks and our testing approach with respect to significant risks in the table below. An audit is a

dynamic process, should we change our view of risk or approach to address the identified risks during the course of our audit, we will

report this to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Significant risks

Description of risk Planned response

1 Management override of controls

Management at various levels within an organisation 

are in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of 

their ability to manipulate accounting records and 

prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding 

controls that otherwise appear to be operating 

effectively. Due to the unpredictable way in which 

such override could occur there is a risk of material 

misstatement due to fraud on all audits.

In relation to the management override of controls we will:

• Document our understanding of the processes and controls in 

place to mitigate the risks identified, and walk through those 

processes and controls to confirm our understanding;

• Test the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the 

general ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of 

the financial statements;

• Review the calculation of management’s material accruals, 

estimates and provisions for evidence of management bias;

• Evaluate the business rationale for any significant unusual 

transactions;

• Understand the oversight given by those charged with 

governance of management process over fraud;

• Sample test accruals and provisions based on established 

testing thresholds; and

• Review material aspects of capital expenditure on property plant 

and equipment to ensure it meets the relevant accounting 

requirements to be capitalised.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

10

Page 14



4. AUDIT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS (CONTINUED)

Significant risks (continued)

Description of risk Planned response

2 Valuation of property, plant and equipment, 

investment  properties and assets held for sale

The Council’s accounts contain material balances 

and disclosures relating to its holding of property, 

plant and equipment, investment properties and 

assets held for sale, with the majority of land and 

building assets required to be carried at valuation. 

Due to high degree of estimation uncertainty 

associated with those held at valuation, we have 

determined there is a significant risk in this area.

In relation to the valuation of property, plant & equipment, investment 

properties and assets held for sale we will:

• Critically assess the Council’s valuers scope of work, 

qualifications, objectivity and independence to carry out the 

required programme of revaluations;

• Consider whether the overall revaluation methodology used by 

the Council’s valuer is in line with industry practice, the CIPFA 

Code of Practice and the Council’s accounting policies;

• Assess whether valuation movements are in line with market 

expectations by using our own valuation expert to provide 

information on regional valuation trends;

• Critically assess the treatment of the upward and downward 

revaluations in the Council’s financial statements with regards to 

the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice;

• Critically assess the approach that the Council adopts to ensure 

that assets not subject to revaluation in 2018/19 are materially 

correct, including considering the robustness of that approach in 

light of the valuation information reported by the Council’s valuer; 

and

• Test a sample of items of capital expenditure in 2018/19 to 

confirm that the additions are appropriately valued in the financial 

statements.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

11

Page 15



4. AUDIT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS (CONTINUED)

Significant risks (continued)

Description of risk Planned response

3 Valuation of net defined benefit liability

The Council’s accounts contain material liabilities 

relating to the local government pension scheme. 

The Council uses an actuary to provide an annual 

valuation of these liabilities in line with the 

requirements of IAS 19 Employee Benefits. Due to 

the high degree of estimation uncertainty associated 

with this valuation, we have determined there is a 

significant risk in this area.

In relation to the valuation of the Council’s defined benefit pension 

liability we will:

• Critically assess the competency, objectivity and independence of 

the Lincolnshire Pension Fund’s Actuary, Hymans Robertson;

• Liaise with the auditors of the Lincolnshire Pension Fund to gain 

assurance that the controls in place at the Pension Fund are 

operating effectively. This will include the processes and controls 

in place to ensure data provided to the Actuary by the Pension 

Fund for the purposes of the IAS 19 valuation is complete and 

accurate;

• Test payroll transactions at the Council to provide assurance over 

the pension contributions which are deducted and paid to the 

Pension Fund by the Council;

• Review the appropriateness of the Pension Asset and Liability 

valuation methodologies applied by the Pension Fund Actuary, 

and the key assumptions included within the valuation. This will 

include comparing them to expected ranges, utilising information 

provided by PWC, the consulting actuary engaged by the National 

Audit Office; and

• Agree the data in the IAS 19 valuation report provided by the 

Fund Actuary for accounting purposes to the pension accounting 

entries and disclosures in the Council’s financial statements.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

12

Page 16



4. AUDIT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS (CONTINUED)

Consideration of other mandatory risks

Auditing standards require us to consider two standard risks for all organisations:

• Management override of controls; and

• Fraudulent revenue recognition.

We have already considered and identified management override of controls as a significant risk above. We set out our considerations in

respect of fraudulent revenue recognition in the table below:

Description of risk Planned response

1 Fraudulent revenue recognition

Our audit methodology incorporates this risk as a 

significant risk at all audits, although based on the 

circumstances of each audit, it is rebuttable.

We do not consider this to be a significant risk for Boston Borough 

Council as:

• there is an overall low risk for local authorities, and particularly 

this Council;

• there are no particular incentives or opportunities to commit 

material fraudulent revenue recognition; and

• the level of income that does not derive from either grant or 

taxation sources is low relative to the Council’s overall income 

streams, and generally represents a number of low value, high 

volume transactions.

We therefore rebut this risk and do not incorporate specific risk 

procedures over and above our standard fraud procedures to address 

the management override of controls risk.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

13

Page 17



4. AUDIT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS (CONTINUED)

Enhanced risks and key areas of management judgement

Enhanced risks and key areas of management judgement include accounting estimates which are material but are not considered to give

rise to a significant risk of material misstatement. These areas of management judgement represent other areas of audit emphasis.

Area of management judgement Planned response

1 Debt impairment

Uncertainty exists that, in the current economic 

climate, the Council’s provision for the impairment of 

doubtful debts would be sufficient.

We plan to address this judgement by:

• Reviewing the level of reported debt as at the 31 March and 

considering the implications for any material change;

• Ensuring that managements methodology for calculating the 

provision has been consistently applied and is in line with the 

requirements of the Code;

• Testing the collectability of both significant and a sample of other 

non-significant debtor balances; and

• Re-performing the basis of the calculation for the impairment of 

debtors.

2 Provision for business rate appeals against the 

rating list

The issue of a new rating list and a change in the 

appeals process has created delays in appeals being 

notified to the Council. Consequently management 

need to make an assumption over the likely level of 

appeals that will be successful based on their rating 

knowledge. For 2018/19 this was based on an 

amount of 4.7% of the net rates payable.

We plan to address this judgement by:

• Reviewing the basis of the Council's calculation of its provision by 

recalculating the provision, evaluating the key assumptions of the 

provision, vouching movements in the provision and confirming 

completeness of entries;

• Assessing whether the provision has been calculated and 

recorded in accordance with the Council's accounting policy;

• Assessing whether the amount provided at the period end is 

appropriate, taking into account the Council's anticipated actual 

liability; and

• Assessing whether the reconciliation of movements during the 

period and description of the nature of the provision have been 

adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

14

Page 18



4. AUDIT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS (CONTINUED)

Enhanced risks and key areas of management judgement (continued)

Area of management judgement Planned response

3 Minimum revenue provision (MRP)

Local authorities are normally required each year to 

set aside some of their revenues as provision for debt 

in respect of capital expenditure financed by 

borrowing or long term credit arrangements, by 

reference to the prior year’s closing Capital Financing 

Requirement. The amount to be set aside each year 

is not prescribed although an overarching principle of 

prudency is expected to be adopted. This is supported 

by statutory guidance as to how this could be 

achieved and the Council is required to have regard to 

this in setting its MRP policy. Management judgement 

is therefore exercised is determining the level of its 

prudent provision.

We plan to address this judgement by:

• Reviewing the Council’s MRP policy to ensure that it has been 

developed with regard to the statutory guidance;

• Assessing whether the provision has been calculated and 

recorded in accordance with the Council's policy;

• Assessing whether the amount provided for the period is 

appropriate, taking into account the Council's Capital Financing 

Requirement; and

• Confirming that any charge has been accounted for in accordance 

with the Code.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

15

Page 19



5. VALUE FOR MONEY 

Our approach to Value for Money

We are required to form a conclusion as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out, and sets 

out the overall criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. 

The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 

and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’  

To assist auditors in reaching a conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:

• informed decision making;

• sustainable resource deployment; and

• working with partners and other third parties. 

A summary of the work we undertake to reach our conclusion is provided below:

Significant risks

The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work at the planning stage to identify whether or not a Value for Money (VFM) exists. Risk, in 

the context of our VFM work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place at the 

Council being inadequate. As outlined above, we draw on our deep understanding of the Council and its partners, the local and national 

economy and wider knowledge of the public sector.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

16

Risk assessment

NAO Guidance

Sector-wide issues

Risk mitigation work Other procedures

Consider the work of regulators

Planned procedures to mitigate 

the risk of forming an incorrect 

conclusion on arrangements

Consider the Annual 

Governance StatementYour operational and business 

risks

Consistency review and reality 

checkKnowledge from other audit work

Page 20



5. VALUE FOR MONEY (CONTINUED) 

Significant risks (continued)

For the 2018/19 financial year, we have identified the following significant risk to our VFM work:

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

Description of  significant risk Planned response

Capital expenditure in relation to commercial property funds

In response to falling central government funding levels, increases in service 

demands and to provide medium and long term resources for future capital 

expenditure many local authorities, including Boston, are looking at innovative 

ways of both securing additional income streams, in a move to becoming self-

financing, and to limit the amount of future investment required for longer term 

capital projects. 

The Council has specifically identified the use of its capital and treasury activities 

as one way of achieving these objectives and has proposed in 2018/19 that £20m 

is made available for the acquisition of commercial property funds financed 

through increased external borrowing. These are assumed to deliver an annual 

revenue yield of £665k (3.5%) and annual capital growth of £475k (2.5%), 

equating to an annual average net return after borrowing costs of £1,720k over 

the proposed 50 year term. We note that the Council is proposing to set aside 

any revenue gains from these funds as an earmarked reserve in the short term to 

provide a buffer for any future losses.

The continuing challenges the Council faces are not new and are not unique to 

Boston Borough Council. However, the challenges do present a significant Value 

for Money risk in respect of the need to consider whether the Council has 

exposed itself to risks that it has not anticipated, including:

• Poor financial forecasting;

• Not having sufficient commercial expertise; and

• Poor investment decisions by not undertaking sufficient legal and due 

diligence work and not investing in existing proven commercial property 

whose revenue stream can be more accurately valued.

We will critically review whether the Council has:

• Exposed itself to too much financial risk 

through its borrowing and capital investment 

decisions;

• Ensured that it has been mindful of changes 

in the accounting and regulatory environment 

within any sensitivity analysis being 

conducted as part of its capital investment 

decision making process;

• Ensured that an appropriate level of legal and 

due diligence work has been undertaken prior 

to making specific capital investment 

decisions;

• Responded appropriately to the revised 

Statutory Guidance on Local Government 

Investments, to ensure that there is 

appropriate transparency to understand the 

exposure that the Council has as a result of 

its borrowing and capital investment 

decisions; and

• Ensured that Members have sufficient 

expertise to understand the complex 

transactions that they have ultimate 

responsibility for approving.

17

Page 21



6. FEES FOR AUDIT AND OTHER SERVICES

Fees for work as the Council’s appointed auditor

At this stage of the audit we are not planning any divergence from the scale fees set by PSAA as communicated in our fee letter of 25

April 2018.

Fees for non-PSAA work

In addition to the fees outlined above in relation to our appointment by PSAA, we have been separately engaged by the Council to carry

out additional work as set out in the table below. Before agreeing to undertake any additional work we consider whether there are any

actual, potential or perceived threats to our independence. Further information about our responsibilities in relation to independence is

provided in section 7.

Service 2017/18 fee 2018/19 fee

Code audit work £45,105 £33,961

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

18

Service 2017/18 fee 2018/19 fee

Housing Benefits Subsidy Assurance £9,767 £6,600

Page 22



7. OUR COMMITMENT TO INDEPENDENCE

We are committed to independence and are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to you at least annually, in writing, that

we comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard. In addition, we communicate any matters or relationship which we

believe may have a bearing on our independence or the objectivity of the audit team.

Based on the information provided by you and our own internal procedures to safeguard our independence as auditors, we confirm that in

our professional judgement there are no relationships between us and any of our related or subsidiary entities, and you and your related

entities creating any unacceptable threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your

auditors.

We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work with integrity, objectivity and

independence. These policies include:

• all partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration;

• all new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also complete computer-based ethics training;

• rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team;

• use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires all non-audit services to be approved

in advance by the audit engagement partner.

We confirm, as at the date of this document, that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, and Mazars LLP are

independent and comply with relevant ethical requirements. However, if at any time you have concerns or questions about our integrity,

objectivity or independence please discuss these with Mark Surridge in the first instance.

Prior to the provision of any non-audit services Mark Surridge will undertake appropriate procedures to consider and fully assess the

impact that providing the service may have on our auditor independence.

As we have not been engaged to carry out any non-audit work to date, no threats to our independence have been identified. Any emerging

independence threats and associated identified safeguards will be communicated in our Audit Completion Report.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

19

Page 23



8. MATERIALITY AND MISSTATEMENTS

Summary of initial materiality thresholds

Materiality

Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of financial statements as a

whole. Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and nature of a misstatement, or a

combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of the common financial information needs of users as a

group and not on specific individual users.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of the financial information

needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume that users:

• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts;

• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, judgement and the consideration

of future events; and

• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and qualitative factors.

Whilst planning, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material and which provides a basis for

determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying and assessing the risk of material misstatement and

determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.

The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which uncorrected misstatements, either

individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial.

We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of information that would have caused

us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information at the planning stage.

Our provisional materiality is set based on a benchmark of the 2017/18 total gross expenditure. We have calculated a headline figure for

materiality but have also identified separate levels for procedures designed to detect individual errors, and also a level above which all

identified errors will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.

We consider that total gross expenditure remains the key focus of users of the financial statements and, as such, we base our materiality

levels around this benchmark.

Threshold Initial threshold

Overall materiality £882,000

Performance materiality £618,000

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee £26,000

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

20

Page 24



8. MATERIALITY AND MISSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We have set our materiality threshold at 2% of the benchmark based on the 2017/18 audited financial statements.

Based on the 2017/18 audited financial statements we anticipate the overall materiality for the year ending 31 March 2019 to be £882,000.

After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it is set at an appropriate level.

Performance Materiality

Performance materiality is the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality for the financial statements as a whole to 

reduce, to an appropriately low level, the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality 

for the financial statements as a whole. In setting performance materiality we have taken into account that this is our first year of audit and 

accordingly we do not hold extensive cumulative audit knowledge about the Council’s financial statements. We have therefore set our 

performance materiality at 70% of our overall materiality being £618,000.

As with overall materiality, we will remain aware of the need to change this performance materiality level through the audit to ensure it 

remains to be set at an appropriate level.

Specific items of lower materiality

We have also calculated materiality for specific classes of transactions, balances or disclosures where we determine that misstatements 

of a lesser amount than materiality for the financial statements as a whole, could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of 

users taken on the basis of the financial statements.  We have set specific materiality for the following items of account:

* Reflecting movement from one salary band to another

Misstatements

We aggregate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We set a level of triviality for individual errors

identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we

consider would not need to be accumulated because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a material effect

on the financial statements. Based on our preliminary assessment of overall materiality, our proposed triviality threshold is £26,000 based

on 3% of overall materiality. If you have any queries about this please do not hesitate to raise these with Mark Surridge.

Reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee

To comply with International Standards on Auditing (UK), the following three types of audit differences will be presented to the Audit and

Governance Committee:

• summary of adjusted audit differences;

• summary of unadjusted audit differences; and

• summary of disclosure differences (adjusted and unadjusted).

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

21

Item of account Specific materiality

Officers’ remuneration £5,000 *

Members’ allowances and expenses £36,000

External audit costs £8,000

Page 25



APPENDIX A – KEY COMMUNICATION POINTS

ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’, ISA (UK) 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To

Those Charged With Governance And Management’ and other ISAs (UK) specifically require us to communicate the following:

Required communication Audit Strategy 

Memorandum

Audit Completion 

Report

Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements and our wider 

responsibilities �

Planned scope and timing of the audit �

Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement �

Our commitment to independence � �

Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors �

Materiality and misstatements � �

Fees for audit and other services �

Significant deficiencies in internal control �

Significant findings from the audit �

Significant matters discussed with management �

Our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of management judgement �

Summary of misstatements �

Management representation letter �

Our proposed draft audit report �

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

22

Page 26



APPENDIX B – FORTHCOMING ACCOUNTING AND OTHER 
ISSUES

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

Changes relevant to 2018/19

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - the standard replaces IAS 39 and introduces significant changes to the recognition and measurement of

the Council’s financial instruments, particularly its financial assets.

Although the accounting changes may be complex and may require the reclassification of some instruments, it is likely that the Council

will continue to measure the majority of its financial assets at amortised cost. However, we are aware that consideration will need to be

given to the Council’s holdings in property funds which may need to be reclassified from their current available for sale category.

For Councils that hold instruments that will be required to be measured at fair value under the new standard, there may be instances

where changes in these fair values are recognised immediately and impact on the general fund. We are aware that, following the Ministry

of Housing, Communities and Local Government consultations, a statutory override, will be put in place to mitigate the impact of these fair

value movements on the Council’s general fund balance.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - the 2018/19 Code also applies the requirements of IFRS 15, but it is unlikely that this

will have significant implications for most local authorities.

There are no other significant changes to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code) for 2018/19.

Changes in future years

Accounting standard Year of application Implications

IFRS 16 – Leases 2020/21

We anticipate that the new leasing standard will be adopted by the Code 

for the 2020/21 financial year.  

IFRS 16 will replace the existing leasing standard, IAS 17, and will 

introduce significant changes, particularly for lessees.  The requirements 

for lessors will be largely unchanged from the position in IAS 17.

Lessees will need to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases (except 

short-life or low-value leases) as the distinction between operating 

leases and finance leases is removed. 

The introduction of this standard is likely to lead to significant work being 

required in order to identify all leases to which the Council are party to.

23

Page 27



APPENDIX C – MAZARS’ CLIENT SERVICE COMMITMENT

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Materiality 
and 

misstatements
Appendices

We are here because of our clients; serving them in the best way we can is part of our DNA. We operate a Code of Conduct which drives 

our client service commitment in all areas, as set out below.

Mazars' 
Values

Integrity
Ethical and moral 

rigour guide how we 
work and assist our 

clients

Responsibility
We treat our clients’ 

challenges as our own 
and we care about 
how our work may 

affect our communities

Diversity
United in diversity, we 

see our capacity to 
listen and our open-

mindedness as a true 
level for innovation

Technical excellence
Our constant search 

for the highest 
standards of quality 

leads to client 
satisfaction

Independence
We always think 

independently and, in 
our roles as auditors 

and advisors, we 
always act 

independently

Continuity
As new faces come 
and go, we maintain 

our relationships, 
experience and 

knowledge. We learn 
from the past but look 

to the future

24

Page 28



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 28 JANUARY 2019 

SUBJECT: DRAFT BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2019/20 
– 2023/24 – FOR CONSULTATION 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
On 9 January 2019, Cabinet received the Draft Budget Setting Report and 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 – 2023/24 and approved it for 
consultation. 
 
The draft is attached to this report as Appendix A.   
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Members are invited to consider the Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 – 2023/24 in the light of the Committee’s 
governance responsibilities and make any comments, which will be fed back 
to Cabinet as part of the consultation prior to the budget’s approval at Full 
Council on 28 February 2019. 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
As part of the consultation on the draft budget.   
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
None.  
 

 
  

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 2



 
 

1  MAIN REPORT 
 
1.1  The draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 

2019/20 – 2023/24 is attached for the Committee’s consideration. 
 
  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Whole report. 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council has a statutory obligation under the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 to agree a balanced budget each year. 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
   

 
CONSULTATION 
 
The consultation on the draft report has just commenced. Members and the 
public will be asked for their comments, with a summary being presented to 
Cabinet and Council on 20 and 28 February 2019 respectively. 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2019/20 – 2023/24 (and 
associated appendices) 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers were used in the production of this report. 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

Cabinet 9 January 2019 
 

Page 30



 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET: 9 JANUARY 2019 
 

REPORT OF AARON SPENCER, FINANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
(Author:  Chief Finance Officer) 

 
DRAFT BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS) 

2019/20 – 2023/24 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 31



Page 2 of 33 

 

 

CONTENTS PAGE 
 
SECTION CONTENT PAGE NUMBER 
 Portfolio holder introduction 3 
1 Executive Summary and Introduction 5 
2 Budget Assumptions 7 
3 Resources 9 
4 Spending Plans 18 
5 Council Tax Requirement 20 
6 Other Budget Issues 21 
7 Reserves 22 
8 Consultation 24 
9 Savings Targets / Transformation Programme 25 
10 Risk and Sensitivity 28 
11 Capital Programme 29 
12 Options 33 
13 Reasons for Recommendations 33 
14 Recommendations 33 
 
 
Appendices: 

  

1 Summary by Portfolio Area – Overall   
2 Summary by Service Area – Overall    
3 
4 

Corporate Charging Policy  
Fees and Charges 

 

5 Reserve Statement  
6 Asset Management Plan Commentary  
7 
8 

Capital Strategy – 2019/20 update 
Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24  

 

9 
10                           
 
 

Pay Policy 
Links to consultation documents 
 
 

 

   
   

P
age 32



Page 3 of 33 

 

 

 
FOREWORD TO THE BUDGET FROM COUNCILLOR AARON SPENCER – FINANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
 

Times are still extremely tough for Councils across the country, as they play their part in assisting the national spending situation as 
the Government continues to reduce the national budget deficit. Using the Government’s figures, the real change in Boston’s Core 
Spending Power across the four years to 2019/20 is -20%, with grant reductions well in excess of this. Since 2016 this Council has 
used the refresh of its Transformation Programme to manage the local impact of reducing resources, and will have reduced its 
annual net revenue budget by over £2million in the period to 2020 as Government Grant is withdrawn. In 2019/20, further savings 
of £312,000 have been identified, ensuring a balanced budget is proposed. The Transformation Programme has ensured that the 
Council continues to provide the services it is required to by law, whilst also supporting the Borough’s most vulnerable residents 
and investing in the local economy. It will continue to strive to be as efficient as possible in all its work, building on partnership 
working where possible, whilst ensuring it maximises the income it receives. 
 
Having taken advantage of the Government’s four-year Settlement announcement, the final year of which is 2019/20, the Council is 
entering the period beyond that, with a new financial regime from 2020/21 following the upcoming Fairer Funding review, the 
proposed introduction of 75% localisation of business rates and the revised funding formula, in a reasonable position, although the 
recent closure of one of the largest local businesses highlights the difficulties that the economy faces. Whilst the recent Budget set 
out the Government’s overall public sector spending figures for the coming years, the 2019 Spending Review will allocate 
resources between government departments, giving councils a better understanding of the likely resources available in the medium 
term. These changes mean that there are additional risks to future funding levels which will require careful management. Therefore, 
the financial position for the Council, whilst modelled in this report on an as-is basis, may well turn out to be rather different by the 
end of the forecast period. The new Council to be elected in May will have to be clear about its priorities and make resource 
allocation decisions accordingly. 
 
There continue to be a number of significant areas of uncertainty for the Council’s finances in the coming years, including the 
impacts of the Brexit process, local government funding changes, and the 2020 Business Rate revaluation outcomes locally. The 
Council’s risk management processes are robust, and alongside the annual budget the quarterly performance reporting process will 
provide updates on the impacts experienced as things become clearer.  
 
Major local announcements during 2018/19 include the commencement of work on the £100m Boston Barrier which is expected to 
be complete by the end of 2020; progress with the Quadrant development; work towards adoption of the South East Lincolnshire 
Local Plan; the relocation of the Department for Works and Pensions, Lincolnshire Community and Voluntary Services and the 
Citizens’ Advice Bureau to the municipal buildings; and the approval by the Council of borrowing for the first time in a number of 
years as it looks towards the medium to longer term and how it might meet its capital spending priorities without further pressure 
being placed on already squeezed revenue budgets.  

P
age 33



Page 4 of 33 

 

 

In developing the Council’s budget proposals for 2019/20, it has managed inflationary pressures on its operational costs and 
pressures on some areas of income collection. Areas where net budget reductions have been delivered to produce a balanced 
budget include Leisure Services and Planning. 
 
In order to deliver its statutory budgetary duty from 2020/21 and develop proposals for a financially secure medium term, the 
Council will continue to seek innovative opportunities to achieve the budget reductions necessary to deliver balanced budgets 
annually without adversely affecting service delivery and compromising on its priorities, and reports will be presented for 
deliberation and approval as projects are worked up. This will mean a refresh of the Transformation Programme once the future 
funding position becomes clearer.  
 
In line with the Government’s referendum principles, the budget for 2019/20 proposes an increase in Boston Borough Council’s 
Council Tax of 2.99%. This will give an average band D Council Tax increase of just under 10 pence per week, with nearly 90% of 
households paying less than this.  This budget is designed to meet the Council’s challenges and responsibilities, and ensure that 
the best possible services continue to be provided to Boston’s residents, businesses and visitors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 34



Page 5 of 33 

 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
 

 2018/19 2019/20 

Boston Borough Council Precept £3,435,810 £3,618,029 

Council Tax Increase 2.98% 2.99% 

Council Tax Band D £183.60 £189.09 

Government Funding (RSG, Specific Grants and NHB) £1,725,020 £1,956,050 

Boston Town Area Committee Special Expense Account * £654,694 £680,303 

Earmarked Reserves (at 1 April) £8.741m £9.509m 

 
*   The 2019/20 figure for Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) is the one recommended to its meeting on 9 January for 
consideration; once the budget has been recommended it will be incorporated into the reports to Cabinet and Council in 
February for further consideration and formal approval respectively. 

 
SAVINGS REQUIREMENTS: 
 

 2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – cumulative - 526 524 614 879 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – annual - 526 (2) 90 265 

P
age 35



Page 6 of 33 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report outlines the 2019/20 revenue and capital position for the General Fund and proposals for the setting of 

discretionary fees and charges. The purpose of the report is to ask Members to recommend the 2019/20 estimates (along 
with associated Policies and Strategies) and council tax level for consultation prior to being reconsidered and passed to the 
Council for formal approval, and for Members to be advised on the projected financial position through to 2023/24. The 
provisional settlement figures were published by the government on 13 December 2018, with final figures expected in 
January/February 2019. 

 
1.2 The Local Government Act 2003 introduced a requirement for the Chief Financial Officer to report on the robustness of the 

budget. The estimates have been prepared in a prudent manner, although it should be recognised that there are a number of 
elements outside of the Council’s control. Assessing the projected 2018/19 outturn position informs the reliance we can 
place on the baseline we use for setting the 2019/20 estimates.  Officers believe the outturn for 2018/19 will be broadly in 
line with the budget.  Key risks have been identified in section 10 of this report and will be mitigated through the regular 
budget monitoring and risk management processes in place at the Council. 

 
1.3 This year’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is set at a time of continuing significant uncertainty, change and financial 

challenges for local government, with issues such as welfare reform, responding to reductions in Central Government 
funding (with a greater emphasis on business and housing growth), the 2019 Spending Review, and the commitment to a 
new funding regime from 2020/21 all contributing to the scale of the challenges the Council faces.   

 
1.4 There are also significant changes affecting business rates. Some have already been introduced (the part-localisation of the 

regime from April 2013 and the 2017 revaluation exercise) and others (the proposal to further devolve business rate incomes 
to councils) are yet to come into full effect. Their impacts include the positive financial effect of growth in the local rateable 
value on the Council’s resource base, but this comes at a price, with increased uncertainties surrounding the extent of 
appeals and the ability to accurately forecast income into the future. 

 
1.5 All of these changes create both opportunities and downside risks to the Council, and are reflected in the Strategy.  

P
age 36



Page 7 of 33 

 

 

2. BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 
 
 Table 1 – Assumptions which influence the five year financial strategy 
 

Assumption 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Budgeted inflation1 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Pay costs increase 2 2% from 
scp 12 

2% from 
scp 12 

2% 2% 2% 2% 

Full Time Equivalent Employees 3 271.1 262.9 261.1 258.1 258.1 258.1 

Pension contribution rate 4 26.2% 27.2% 28.2% 29.2% 30.2% 31.2% 

NI contribution rate 5 13.8% 13.8% 13.8% 13.8% 13.8% 13.8% 

Return on cash investments 0.7% 1.00% 1.30% 1.40% 1.40% 1.50% 

Return on property funds  3.5% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 

Staffing levels 99% 99% 99% 99% 99%           99% 

Tax base 6 18,713.60 19,133.90 19,325.2 19,518.5 19,713.7 19,910.8 

Fuel cost rises1 8% 3% 3% 3% 3%              3% 

 
1. 0% used except for utilities/fuel where 8% has been used for 2018/19 due to revised contract prices and then 3% per 

annum thereafter reflecting the price risk for these areas and also taking into account any gains from both climate change 
and transformational activity by the Council which are likely to lead to reduced consumption. 

 
2. The pay increase for 2019/20 is based on the National Employers’ offer made to trade unions covering the period 1 April 

2018 to 31 March 2020.  Lower pay points are set at £8.50 per hour in order to continue to close the gap with the 
National Living Wage.  A flat-rate increase of 2% is included for higher pay points for 2018/19 and 2019/20.  A flat 2% 
has been included for 2020/21 onwards. 

 
3. It is recognised that some projects within the Transformation programme could potentially further affect staffing numbers 

in future years. Until business cases are worked-up it is not possible to make further assumptions on any changes.  
 

4. The pension contribution rate is based on an employer’s contribution rate of 16.6% for 2019/20 and 16.9% from 1 April 
2020, plus an annual monetary contribution.  Table 1 shows the equivalent % contribution rates, with a further 1.0% p.a. 
increase projected from 2021/22 as detailed in the pension triennial valuation report for April 2017. 

 

5. The National insurance contribution is included at 13.8%; however this may change over the five years. 

P
age 37



Page 8 of 33 

 

 

 
6. The tax base used for Council Tax setting is calculated as prescribed by statute, with responsibility for the setting of the 

tax base delegated to the Council’s Section 151 Officer.  The tax base for 2019/20 is 19,133.9 and for estimation 
purposes has been increased by 1% per annum thereafter. This may increase if the recent number of planning 
applications deliver additional Band D equivalent properties above the assumption, and will be reflected in the annual 
budget figures as appropriate. 

P
age 38



Page 9 of 33 

 

 

3. RESOURCES  
 

 Business Rates Retention 
 
3.1 Table 2 details the Council’s retained business rates for 2019/20, based on the draft local government settlement, the final 

year of the four-year settlement period.    
 
3.2 Under the current part localisation regime, where the Council collects more business rates than the baseline set by Central 

Government, a levy of 50% is applied and paid to Central government.  A way to avoid this levy to Central Government is to 
pool business rates with a County Council, and, as in 2016/17 and 2017/18, Boston has entered into a voluntary pooling 
arrangement for 2019/20 with Lincolnshire County Council and some of the District Councils in the area (in 2018/19, the 
Council was part of a successful bid across the county to be a pilot for 100% localisation, but unfortunately was not chosen 
to be a 2019/20 pilot). 

 
3.3 The Government has announced that business rates will become 75% retained by councils by 2020, with proposals for a 

new funding system for local authorities due to be in place from 2020/21. Consultation papers on the localisation and Fairer 
Funding proposals were published with the provisional settlement (Appendix 10), and impacts will be reported as the regime 
is developed. Three yearly revaluation periods are set to be introduced from 2020. 

 
3.4 In addition to the 2017 national revaluation, a new procedure for appeals has been introduced. Information on its impact 

continues to be limited to date, and there is a possibility that the actual situation will be significantly different from that 
included in the forward estimates which may require the Council to adjust its forecasts in light of the outcome. Discussions 
are ongoing with the recently appointed external auditor on the extent to which undetermined appeals are provided for.  

 
3.5 As a consequence of the part localisation of the business rate regime the Council recruited a Business Rates Assurance 

Manager to ensure that the list is complete and accurate. The cost of the officer is funded from additional business rate 
income to the Council, and outcomes from that area of work are reported as part of the quarterly monitoring process, with 
significant positive impacts to the Council to date during a time when there were numerous challenges to the list.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 39



Page 10 of 33 

 

 

Table 2 – Business Rates 
 

     Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Retained Business Rates        11,714 8,198 8,364 8,534 8,628 8,628 

Tariff (7,959) (5,055) (5,156) (5,259) (5,364) (5,364) 

Pre Levy Income 3,755 3,143 3,208 3,275 3,264 3,264 

Renewable Energy (100% retained by Boston BC) 205 138 141 144 146            149 

Less net levy payment to Lincolnshire Pool - (257) - - - - 

Levy Account Surplus – Settlement Data - 41 - - - - 

Estimated Business Rates (Deficit) / Surplus  (395) (278) - - - - 

Equals Net Retained Business Rates Income 3,565 2,787 3,349 3,419 3,410 3,413 

 
3.6 The estimated business rates deficit for 2019/20 in Table 2 above is due to movements in gross business rates throughout 

2018/19, including the loss of a major local ratepayer. 
 
3.7 In the 2018 Budget, the Chancellor announced support for retail businesses that reduces the amount of business rates 

shown in the table above for 2019/20 and 2020/21; compensating Section 31 grant money will be received by the Council to 
offset this. 

 
3.8 The future business rate projections are in line with the inflation indices used by the Government. To illustrate the potential 

impact should these rates not materialise, uplifts of 2% p.a. would reduce the Council’s retained business rates by 
approximately £120,000 by 2023/24. The annual MTFS refresh will provide updates on the projections, but they are included 
here to indicate some of the extent of uncertainties in the Council’s future resource base inherent in the localisation regime. 
Also, in the November 2017 Budget the Chancellor announced a change to the method of indexation for business rates, to 
CPI, the cost of which will be reimbursed to councils through section 31 grant.  

 
3.9 From 2020, the three-yearly revaluation basis could present risks to the Council’s future funding position, depending on its 

growth in relation to the rest of the country between revaluations and the details of how the regime will operate. 

P
age 40



Page 11 of 33 

 

 

Council Tax 
 
3.10 Since 2013/14, the Council has revised its exemptions and discounts for Council Tax to recover the reduced funding as part 

of the Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme, and on 21 January 2019 the Council will be asked to approve its CTS scheme for 
2019/20. 

 
3.11 The Council Tax element of the Collection Fund has been calculated based on the 2018/19 scheme, leaving a budget 

neutral position. This will be reviewed throughout the year, and collection rates assessed. The MTFS assumes an increase 
in the Borough’s council tax of 2.99% for 2019/20, then circa 2% p.a. thereafter. The surplus in 2019/20 is as a result of 
additional properties being built during 2018/19 above the estimated figure. 

 
 Table 3 – Council Tax 
   

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/21 2022/23 2023/24 

       No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

Council Tax base (Band D 
equivalents) 

18,713.60 19,133.90 19,325.2 19,518.5 19,713.7 19,910.8 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Council Tax Band D 183.60 189.09 192.78 196.56 200.43 204.39 

Annual Increase £ 5.31 5.49 3.69 3.78 3.87 3.96 

Annual Increase % 2.98 2.99 1.95 1.96 1.97 1.98 

Gross Council Tax collected  3,435,817 3,618,029 3,725,512 3,836,557 3,951,217 4,069,568 

In year Surplus / (deficit)  110,710 30,000 - - -  

TOTAL 3,546,527 3,648,029 3,725,512 3,836,557 3,951,217 4,069,568 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 41



Page 12 of 33 

 

 

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Section 31 Grants 
 
 Table 4 – RSG and Section 31 Grants 
 

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Revenue Support Grant - 342 - - - - 

Rural Services Grant - 85 - - - - 

S31 NNDR reliefs including SBRR 1,113 808 715 729 744 750 

Total Received 1,113 1,235 715 729 744 750 

 
3.12 Following the announcement of four year figures in 2016/17, significant reductions of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) have 

occurred in recent years, and from 2020/21 it has been phased out as a result of the extension of the localisation of business 
rates regime.  

 
3.13 As part of the plans for further local retention of business rates, Revenue Support Grant has been removed from 2020/21 as 

have all other support grants from Government.  Business rates reliefs have been left in for illustration purposes until more 
detail is known. 

 
3.14 In March 2016, the Government announced it would make the exempting of small businesses from business rates 

permanent, and the table above reflects the estimated reimbursement from government for Boston’s share of this cost. 
 
3.15 As part of the 2016/17 four year settlement, the Government gave some recognition to the additional costs of providing 

services in rural areas, with affected councils receiving amounts of Rural Services Grant over the period to 2019/20; 
Boston’s element is shown in the table above (in 2018/19 this was incorporated into the pilot localisation figures). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 42



Page 13 of 33 

 

 

New Homes Bonus 
 
3.16 The New Homes Bonus (NHB) was introduced in order to provide a clear incentive to local authorities to encourage housing 

growth in their areas.  The Government then published a consultation paper in December 2015 “New Homes Bonus: 
Sharpening the Incentive” in order to make changes to the scheme from a system with no controls to one that is cash-limited 
each year.  Key changes introduced in 2017/18 were: 

 A move to four-year payments for both existing and future NHB allocations from 2018/19. 

 Introduction of a national baseline of 0.4%, for 2017/18 and 2018/19, below which allocations will not be made.   

 Government will also retain the option of making adjustments to the baseline in future years to reflect significant and 
unexpected housing growth.   

 Allocations will continue to be un-ring fenced. 
 
3.17 For 2019/20, the Government has retained the 0.4% baseline, and announced that New Homes Bonus will be phased out 

over the next four years.  
 

Table 5 – New Homes Bonus estimates  
 

  
Boston BC share 

 Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

TOTAL 613 721 572 482 289 0 

 
3.18 It is expected that the Government will introduce a revised future incentive for councils to promote local growth, although no 

details have been published yet. 
 
3.19 In line with the provisional settlement, the MTFS assumes that 50% of NHB will be transferred into the Capital reserve each 

year, with the remaining 50% used to support the Council’s revenue budget until 2023/24 where a nil receipt of New Homes 
Bonus is assumed. 

 

 

 

P
age 43



Page 14 of 33 

 

 

Fees and Charges 
 
3.20 Income from fees and charges is an important source of revenue for the Council, representing over 12% of the gross income 

budgeted in 2019/20. Charges have a central role to play in service delivery, raising income, controlling access, responding 
to competition, funding investment and affecting behaviour. 

 
3.21 For 2019/20, there are no significant fee increases from 1 April 2019. The fees and charges charged in 2018/19 are shown 

at http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s4278/Appendix%204%20-%20Fees%20and%20Charges.pdf 
 
3.22 As part of the annual review, and following the installation of new gym equipment at the Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre, 

budgeted income levels have been increased to reflect expected volumes.   
 
3.23 The Planning fee income budget has been revised upwards following the recent increase in the number of applications 

received, and expected to be received in the coming year, along with a new charge for the issuing of a certificate of lawful 
use. 

 
3.24 Fees and charges are set within the framework of the Corporate Charging Policy, which is attached at Appendix 3.   
 
3.25 As part of the broader moves to commercialisation across the Council, in line with many other authorities as they respond to 

the increasing challenges of diminishing resources, it is recognised that, in accordance with the Corporate Charging Policy,   
in-year variances to the approved fees and charges on a trial basis, within the approved budget framework, can be made. 
Any such changes will then be reported in the next quarterly monitoring report.  

 
3.26 Appendix 4 shows the proposed fees and charges to be charged from 1 April 2019. Once these changes have been 

approved the full list of Council fees and charges applicable for 2019/20 will be published on the Council’s website. 
 
3.27 The following table shows the main income budgets from fees and charges for Boston, before any consideration of possible 

increases beyond 2019/20 as part of balancing net budget and resources in those years.  At this time assumptions for the 
majority of these areas are that income levels will not increase within the period of the MTFS, and this will be revisited as 
part of the annual Budget and Strategy refresh. Given the scale of Transformation savings required in the coming years, it is 
likely that future years will see rises in some fee areas. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 44

http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s4278/Appendix%204%20-%20Fees%20and%20Charges.pdf


Page 15 of 33 

 

 

 
Table 6 – Fees and charges income budgets 
 

Budget Area 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Leisure income 826 961 996 996 996 996 

Building control 184 183 183 183 183 183 

Licensing 121 122 122 125 125 125 

Land charges 99 99 99 99 99 99 

Bereavement 803 828 852 876 900 925 

Garden Waste 400 400 400 400 400 400 

Trade waste 188 251 259 266 274 282 

Planning fees 465 515 465 465 465 465 

Parking 987 990 993 995 995 995 

Markets 180 160 160 160 160 160 

Other small areas 206 169 208 211 241 243 

TOTAL FEE INCOME 4,459 4,678 4,737 4,776 4,838 4,873 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 45



Page 16 of 33 

 

 

 
Other Income 
 
3.28 The Council also receives a number of other forms of income, and these are shown in the following table: 
 
Table 7 – Other Income 
 

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Housing benefit subsidy 17,989 17,847 17,847 17,847 17,847 17,847 

Council tax and Housing benefit administration 
grant 338 331 331 331 331 331 

Specific government grants 134 119 7 6 5 4 

Housing benefit overpayments 80 80 80 80 80 80 

Court income 197 197 197 197 197 197 

Rental income 572 632 632 633 633 633 

NNDR admin grant 91 92 92 92 92 92 

Other Contributions (from external bodies for 
sharing of services and posts) 689 851 866 885 900 915 

Other Income 867 926 987 988 1,047 906 

Total Other Income 20,957 21,075 21,039 21,059 21,132 21,005 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 46



Page 17 of 33 

 

 

 
External Funding opportunities 
 
3.29 With the continuing reduction in resources available to the Council it will be important to seek and secure funds from external 

sources wherever possible, in accordance with the Council’s priorities. For example, the announcement during 2018/19 of 
the Council’s successful bid, in conjunction with partners, in relation to the Controlling Migration Fund.  The Council’s 
revenue element is shown within specific government grants for 2019/20. 

 
Summary  
 
Table 8 – All sources of income 
 

Budget Area 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Business rates 3,565 2,787 3,349 3,419 3,410 3,413 

Revenue Support Grant - 342 - - - - 

Other Grants  1,113 893 715 729 744 750 

New Homes Bonus 613 721 572 482 289 - 

Total Government Resources 5,291 4,743 4,636 4,630 4,443 4,163 

Council tax – Boston BC precept, including 
Collection Fund adjustment 3,547 3,648 3,726 3,837 3,951 4,070 

BTAC Special Area Expense 655 680 703 724 746 769 

Fees & charges 4,459 4,678 4,737 4,776 4,838 4,873 

Other income 20,957 21,075 21,039 21,059 21,132 21,005 

Interest Receivable on Investments 117 712 752 783 798 834 

Contribution from Reserves 332 2,316 324 184 30 30 

Gross budgeted income 35,358 37,852 35,917 35,993 35,938 35,744 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 47



Page 18 of 33 

 

 

 
4. 2019/20 SPENDING PLANS 
 
4.1 The following table shows the estimates by type of expenditure/income split over the CIPFA standard classification for the 

next five years. The paragraphs below the table provide information on budget variances between years. Details of the 
overall position are shown at Appendices 1 and 2. 

 
 Table 9 – Estimates by expenditure/income  
 

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Employees 9,186 9,519 9,677 9,824 9,998 10,159 

Premises 1,254 1,349 1,396 1,414 1,449 1,474 

Transport 512 535 549 563 579 596 

Supplies and Services 2,485 2,792 2,612 2,670 2,713 2,704 

Third Party Payments 129 201 152 154 154 155 

Drainage Board Levies  1,884 1,903 1,922 1,941 1,961 1,980 

Transfer Payments 17,989 17,847 17,847 17,847 17,847 17,847 

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital 798 1,764 322 184 30 30 

Interest on Borrowing 111 528 528 528 528 528 

Contribution to Reserves 1,010 1,414 1,438 1,392 1,293 1,150 

Savings Target - - (526) (524) (614) (879) 

Gross Expenditure 35,358 37,852 35,917 35,993 35,938 35,744 

 
4.2 All staffing costs have been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Pay Policy as detailed in Appendix 9.  Pension cost 

estimates have been prepared on the basis of whether current post holders were in the scheme or not as at 31 August 2018.  
The pension costs reflect the revised contribution rates and lump sum payable as detailed in the triennial pension valuation 
results that took effect from 1 April 2017.  The rise in staff costs in 2019/20 is due to an increase of 2% from spinal column 
points 12 and 19 respectively.  For points lower than this, a minimum rate per hour of £9.00 for 2019/20 has been used to 
reflect the offer to the Trade Unions from the National Employers and to close the gap between bottom pay points and the 
National Living Wage proposal of £9 per hour by 2020.  

 

P
age 48



Page 19 of 33 

 

 

4.3 Internal Drainage Board increases have been estimated at this time, with an increase of 1% p.a. assumed.  At a time of 
significant cuts and having to find significant savings annually, the Council is liaising with the local Internal Drainage Boards 
to work towards limiting future increases where possible.  

 
4.4 Capital financing and direct revenue financing is mainly for capital expenditure funded from reserve contributions. 
 
4.5 The contribution to reserves is for contributions to the capital reserve from New Homes Bonus funding, and the revenue 

contribution to the capital programme (£400,000 in 2019/20). The overall contribution is set to reduce significantly from 2020 
due to the New Homes Bonus scheme ending. 

 
 
 

P
age 49



Page 20 of 33 

 

 

5. COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT 
 
5.1 Outline estimates through to 2023/24 are shown at Appendices 1 and 2. In compiling these figures we have used the 

assumptions set out in Section 2 of this report and made specific adjustments to service budgets as and where Service 
Managers have advised of changes over the medium term. These forward estimates allow for a 3% increase in 2019/20 and 
then annual 2% increases from 2020/21 onwards for Council Tax, but are subject to risks surrounding the Secretary of 
State’s annual referendum limits.  These assumptions are for planning purposes only and are likely to change.  

 
Table 10 – Council Tax Requirement  
 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure 9,065 9,191 9,140 9,002 

Retained Business Rates (3,349) (3,419) (3,410) (3,413) 

New Homes Bonus  (572) (482) (289) - 

Other Grants (715) (729) (744) (750) 

Special Expenses  (703) (724) (746) (769) 

Boston BC Council Tax Requirement 3,726 3,837 3,951 4,070 

 
5.2 The forward estimates demonstrate that achieving a balanced position annually will require significant ongoing savings, and 

the intention is that this will be delivered through the implementation of a refreshed Transformation Programme. Further 
information on efficiencies and economies is provided in section 9 of this report. 

 

P
age 50



Page 21 of 33 

 

 

6. OTHER BUDGET ISSUES 
 
6.1 In order to meet its obligations, equality impact assessments will be carried out when the nature of proposed changes to 

services and the potential mitigation (if any) is clear, so that the implications of decisions are fully understood as they affect 
specific groups and communities. These have been, and will continue to be, regularly undertaken and considered as part of 
the decision making process.  

 
6.2 Cabinet members are also asked to note the draft budget proposals for the Boston Town Area Committee, set out in the 

Executive Summary, which will be discussed at its meeting on 9 January 2019. The outcome of its deliberations will be 
reported in the February reports to Cabinet and Council for recommendation and formal approval respectively.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

P
age 51



Page 22 of 33 

 

 

7. RESERVES  
 
7.1 To comply with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the Council must undertake a review of the level of 

reserves as part of annual budget preparation. A review of the current projection for reserves has been undertaken, including 
a review of current and future risks the Council might face. This has included an assessment of risk registers, pressures 
upon services, inflation and interest rates and any underwriting arrangements. The proposed budget has been developed on 
the basis of not requiring any long term support from reserves.   

 
General Balances 
 
7.2 The General Fund balance is estimated to stand at £2.0m for the next five years, which the Council’s Section 151 Officer 

believes to be prudent for the Council at this time. 
 
Specific Reserves 
 
7.3 Specific reserves are set up to provide funds for known future commitments or provide resources for unexpected events. 

The projected closing balance on specific reserves over the next five years is given below in table 11. Given the risks and 
uncertainties facing both the local and national economy the Council is committed to retaining robust levels of reserves, 
whilst ensuring resources are available to enable efficient service delivery.  

 
7.4 The projected increase in the Capital Reserve is as a direct consequence of the expectation that the Council’s capital 

resources will diminish in the coming years, and if it is to protect services and the value of its assets, the Council will need to 
ensure that funds are available to support core service priorities, as well as seeking external sources wherever possible. 

 
7.5 The creation of the Mitigation Reserve occurred following the approval of capital spend on Property Fund holdings, with the 

recognition that the Council needs to ensure that potential future revenue budgets are protected, if necessary. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 52



Page 23 of 33 

 

 

Table 11 – Specific Reserves  
 

Reserve Balance 
31.03.19 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.20 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.21 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.22 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.23 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.24 

£’000 

Capital Funding  4,042 3,776 4,708 5,693 6,718 7,594 

Transformation  985 957 957 957 957 957 

ICT  367 322 292 262 232 202 

Repairs and Renewals  689 683 677 703 738 773 

Housing 1,070 791 788 788 788 788 

Controlling Migration Fund 530 - - - - - 

Tax 1,427 1,427 1,427 1,427 1,427 1,427 

Insurance 290 290 290 290 290 290 

Mitigation Reserve 109 361 581 808 1,041 1,280 

Total 9,509 8,607 9,720 10,928 12,191 13,311 

 
7.6 Appendix 5 and table 11 above outline the projected position on reserves over the next five years. This shows the name of 

each specific reserve, the balance as at the 1 April for each year of the financial strategy, and the movements in capital and 
revenue.  

 
7.7 As part of the projection, a review of reserves was undertaken and the Community Cohesion and Climate Change reserves 

have been transferred to the Transformation reserve, due to the relatively low levels held and the likelihood of schemes 
coming forward on those themes. 

 
7.8 The main increase in reserves relates to the capital reserve.  There are a number of potential capital commitments and risks 

such as ongoing investment in our assets and energy efficiency measures, the majority of which have not been included in 
the capital programme at this point. Proposals will be brought forward annually as schemes are worked up.  

 
7.9  The Government has been critical of Councils across the country and their levels of reserves. However, given strategic risks, 

such as business rate appeals and flooding, and reducing resources to meet future spending plans, we believe that Boston 
Borough Council’s proposed level of reserves is appropriate. 

P
age 53



Page 24 of 33 

 

 

8. CONSULTATION 
 
8.1 Under the Gunning Principles, the following points are the golden rules of consultation: 

 Proposals being consulted upon must be at a formative stage; 

 Proposals must contain enough information for the respondent to provide intelligent consideration; 

 Must give adequate time for a response; 

 Responses must be conscientiously taken into account. 
 
8.2 Using these principles, the budget consultation process for the 2019/20 budget will comprise a number of elements. Firstly it 

will be published on the Council’s website for consultation by all stakeholders, including the local business community. 
 
8.3 In addition to this we will consult through a number of Member forums including Cabinet and Scrutiny; and on the 

governance aspects of its preparation through the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 
8.4 Following the budget consultation process, comments received through the Member forums, preceptors and the public 

exercise will be taken into account in preparing and recommending the proposed budget for Cabinet review and formal 
Council approval on 20 and 28 February 2019 respectively. 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 54



Page 25 of 33 

 

 

9. SAVINGS TARGETS/TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME 
 

9.1 The draft budgets recognise an increasingly challenging and uncertain position through the five year period of our financial 
strategy. A key factor is that the Local Government Finance Act 2012 and future finance reviews demand a significant 
transformation in the way public services are both paid for and provided, with an emphasis on business and housing growth 
to both improve economic development and maximise funding to the Council to help offset ongoing reductions in overall 
resources. The upcoming 2019 Spending Review and the outcome of the Fairer Funding review will impact on the Council’s 
future resources.  

 
9.2 In response to the challenges facing it, the Council refreshed its Transformation Programme which was formally approved in 

July 2016 (the report is available at  
 http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s1720/Transformation%20Programme.pdf. It seeks to ensure that annual 

balanced budgets can be set across the MTFS period to 2021 without the need to cease the provision of any services, 
although some will be delivered differently as a result of implementing changes to reduce costs or improve income. 

 
9.3 The table below shows the savings that have been included in the 2019/20 budget that have enabled the draft proposals to 

produce a balanced position for next year. 
 
  
    
 

Table 12 – Transformation Programme savings in 2019/20 
 

Transformation Theme Title 2019/20 
£’000 

TP 4 Insurance reserve 30 

TP 7 Leisure, Cultural & Heritage 238 

TP 9 Voluntary Sector 44 

TOTAL 312 

 
 
 
 

P
age 55

http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s1720/Transformation%20Programme.pdf


Page 26 of 33 

 

 

9.4 Beyond 2019/20, there is a need to close the projected budget gap by almost another £1m by 2023/24. Members will also be 
reviewing and revising the Transformation Programme during 2019/20 to ensure that the Council can set effective balanced 
budgets each year. 

 
9.5 Based upon our current budget assumptions we believe the value of cashable savings required by the Transformation 

Programme to set a balanced budget for the next five years are as follows: 
 

 
 
 
Table 13 – Savings Targets  
 

 2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – cumulative - 526 524 614 879 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – annual - 526 (2) 90 265 

 
 
 
 
9.6 Given the scale of savings made in recent years, the near £1m gap by 2023/24 is significant, and the Council will need to 

maintain its focus and commitment if it is to achieve its aspirations. Work needs to commence early in 2019/20 to ensure that 
the required level of savings is delivered from 2020/21.  

 
 
9.7 In addition, there have been some events and actions during 2018/19 that have impacted on the MTFS assumptions for next 

year, which are incorporated into the draft budget figures. The main areas are: 
 

 A larger than projected increase in the Council Tax base, delivering £71,000; 

 A smoothing of the cost of elections across years, rather than all in the year that the election takes place; 

 Higher than estimated receipt of New Homes Bonus monies, and the phasing out over four years; 

 Planning income increases due to numbers of applications, rising by £100,000 in 2019/20, then dropping to £50,000 p.a. 
for the remainder of the MTFS. 

 

P
age 56



Page 27 of 33 

 

 

9.8 The ongoing delivery of a significant level of savings is recognised as a key challenge to the Council that will require both 
political direction and cultural change to ensure it is met. 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 57



Page 28 of 33 

 

 

10. RISK AND SENSITIVITY 
 
10.1 The Council is required to set a budget, which is a realistic statement of its estimated Income and Expenditure for the 

coming year based upon information currently available to it. It has a duty to take into account the demand for its services, 
and the effect upon council taxpayers of meeting those demands at varying levels of service. I have examined the budget 
proposals contained in this report, and believe that whilst the spending and service delivery proposals contained within are 
tighter than we have previously set, they are nevertheless achievable and deliverable given good management practices and 
sound financial and performance monitoring. I am satisfied that the requisite management processes exist within the Council 
to deliver this budget, and to identify and deal with any problems which may unexpectedly arise throughout the year.  We 
fully expect there to be a need to review these budgets throughout the coming financial year in order that we can respond to 
as yet undefined financial risks.  As an organisation we recognise a period of budgetary turbulence and we will use our 
financial management processes to identify options that will allow us to adjust our budgetary position as and when required. 
Formal quarterly budget monitoring updates are presented to members throughout the year. 

  
10.2 The following table shows the key risks and how we intend to treat them through our risk management practices. 

Members receive updates through the quarterly performance monitoring process as information becomes available. 

 Table 14 – Key Risks  
  

Risk Likelihood Impact Action 

Fluctuation in business rates High High Growth plans and accurate monitoring 

Lack of funding from partners High High Engagement and realism 

Inadequate capital resources High High Proportionate spending, sale of surplus assets, 
capital property fund spend 

Central Government policy changes High High Engagement in consultation and policy creation 

Reductions in Government Funding High High Lobbying  and service transformation 

A poor settlement for rural councils Medium High Lobbying as a special interest group 

Fee income volatility Medium Medium Early monitoring of deviations 

Increased demand for services Medium Medium A robust performance management framework 

Failure to deliver the required 
transformation programme 

Low High Effective programme and project management 

 
 
 

P
age 58



Page 29 of 33 

 

 

11.  CAPITAL PROGRAMME  
 
11.1 In drawing together the proposed capital programme we have taken a five year view from 2019/20 to 2023/24, to run 

alongside our revenue plans. This is sensible and encourages a link between revenue and capital spending decisions. 
 
11.2 It is important to emphasise that no scheme will appear on the Capital Programme until the criteria set out in the capital 

strategy have been met and agreed by committees of the Council.  Members may well be aware of several potential projects 
which are not included in the proposed five year capital programme. This is not to say that they will not happen but that they 
will not be included until an affordable business case is approved and more information is available. We will have a 
programme which is likely to have further schemes added once aspirations are turned into robust projects. The decisions 
that are taken ultimately have to be affordable, prudent and sustainable for the local community. 

 
11.3 The future for capital investment, funded from both the Council’s resources and external resources, will be dependent on 

decisions taken as part of each year’s budget process. Our capital resources have been substantially eroded over time and 
we aim to take money from revenue to ensure that statutory commitments can continue to be met. This will demand a 
greater role for the Council’s Asset Management Plan to ensure that future liabilities are reduced and that capital receipts 
are maximised. Commentary on the plan is provided at Appendix 6. 

 
11.4 The suggested capital programme (including details of anticipated slippage in the 2018/19 capital programme) for 2019/20 to 

2023/24 is shown in table 15 along with how the programme will be financed. Additionally Table 16 details future investment 
aspirations identified that need affordable business cases to be developed before they can proceed.  It should be noted that 
some risk exists with capping the finance available for Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) works as this is a statutory provision 
dictated by law based on need rather than the ability of the Council to provide the funds to carry out the works, and as such it 
is subject to ongoing monthly review.   

  
11.5 Following the publication of CIPFA’s review and MHCLG guidance on the Prudential System (which guides and regulates 

councils’ capital and investment strategies), during 2018/19 the Council made use of external borrowing to support the 
Council’s long term Capital Strategy, by purchasing capital Property Fund units. The intention is to bring a number of 
benefits to the Council over the medium to long term, including yield, growth in future capital resources, statutory service 
resilience and historically low interest rate finance. This is subject to regular monitoring and is primarily overseen by the 
Audit and Governance Committee.  

 

 

 

P
age 59



Page 30 of 33 

 

 

11.6 The Capital Working Group met on 21 November 2018 to review the capital bids submitted for the next five years.  The 
group agreed to recommend the following schemes for 2019/20: 

 
 £150,000 Housing Strategy Costs in relation to a contribution to Waterloo Housing for 80 new affordable homes. 

  
11.7  Given the resource constraints with regard to funding the Council’s future capital commitments it is proposed that the 

contribution from revenue budgets to the capital reserve is set at £0.4m in 2019/20, and then subject to annual review 
thereafter.  This contribution is necessary given the absence of necessary capital receipts and the future reductions in New 
Homes Bonus from 2020.  

 
11.8 The proposed capital programme is affordable, meets the Council’s obligations and provides a basis for growth. An update 

to the capital strategy, which underpins the capital programme proposed from 2019/20 to 2023/24, is attached at Appendix 
7. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 60



Page 31 of 33 

 

 

 
 
Table 15 – Capital Programme 
 
  

Capital Programme £’000 

 
Expected 
Slippage 
2018/19 

Revised 
2019/20 

with 
Slippage 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

1. Disabled Facilities Grants - 280 280 280 280 280 

  2.  Housing Strategy  - 272 - - - - 

  3.  Marginal Viability Fund 1,818 1,818 - - - - 

  4.  Noise Monitoring Equipment - - - 10 
 

- 

  5.  Vehicle Replacement – Refuse Fleet - 1,225 - - - - 

  6.  Vehicle Replacement – Street Cleaning  - - 240 75 - - 

  7.  Vehicle Replacement – Grounds Tractor - 60 - - - - 
  8.  Crematorium – Weatherproof Canopy for Floral 

Tribute Display Area - 25 - - - - 

  9.  Crematorium – Install Air Conditioning - 25 - - - - 

 10.  Town Centre Heritage Scheme (PSICA 2) 200 400 200 200 - - 
 11. Multi Use Games Area (Controlling Migration 

Funding 269 269 - - - - 

 12. Information Technology Refresh - 45 30 30 30 30 

 13. Resurfacing and Footpath Improvements - 15 11 14 - - 

 14. Public Conveniences Refresh - 15 - - - - 

 15. Guildhall Refresh - - - 14 - - 

Totals 2,287 4,449 761 623 310 310 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 61



Page 32 of 33 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Capital Financing £’000  

Revised 
2019/20 

with 
Slippage 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

1. Capital Grants and Contributions  2,685 439 439 280 280 

2. Capital Reserve  1,365 251 145 - - 

3. IT Reserve  45 30 30 30 30 

  3.  Repairs and Renewal Reserve  82 41 9 - - 

  4.  Housing Reserve  272 - - - - 

Totals  4,449 761 623 310 310 

 
 

P
age 62



Page 33 of 33 

 

 

12. OPTIONS 
 
12.1 There are no alternative options presented, and Cabinet are requested to recommend the draft budget and council tax level 

for consultation. Given the likely outlook for future resource levels, the Council needs to focus strategically over the next five 
years, and consider to what extent they wish to maintain existing services, how services might be prioritised, and to develop 
proposals on how future budgetary shortfalls might be addressed.  As in previous years, the Cabinet are encouraged to work 
with all Members (and stakeholders generally) as critical friends to assist in the development of future years’ budgets and the 
proposed refresh of the Transformation Programme. 

 
13. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
13.1 To comply with the budgetary and policy framework. 
 
 
14. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
14.1 To recommend the draft budget and associated documents for consultation, specifically: 
 

 The budget setting report and associated policies and strategies 2019/20 – 2023/24, and 
 

 The Borough Council Tax for a Band D property in 2019/20 is set at £189.09. 
 

 

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2019-20 TO 2023-24 APPENDIX 1

SUMMARY OF NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE BY PORTFOLIO HOLDER

2018/2019 

ESTIMATE £

2019/2020 

ESTIMATE £

2020/2021 

ESTIMATE £

2021/2022 

ESTIMATE £

2022/2023 

ESTIMATE £

2023/2024 

ESTIMATE £

DESCRIPTION

Hsg, Property & Community 709,820 1,026,499 739,526 754,383 743,123 765,705

Tourism, Arts, Culture & Heritage 342,630 301,670 308,890 327,043 318,019 327,207

Town Centre (577,720) (488,760) (527,525) (526,108) (516,971) (506,552)

Environment 2,130,200 2,124,680 2,202,563 2,257,996 2,325,476 2,368,504

Finance 1,970,240 2,079,750 2,144,114 2,199,848 2,255,135 2,293,967

Leader 1,225,460 1,339,030 1,463,767 1,477,616 1,464,608 1,596,583

Regulatory 600,700 462,810 457,395 456,329 469,208 477,185

BTAC 654,690 680,303 703,178 724,391 746,221 768,794

Cumulative Transformation savings required 0 0 (525,880) (524,142) (613,683) (879,190)

NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 7,056,020 7,525,982 6,966,027 7,147,356 7,191,135 7,212,203

Drainage Board Precepts 1,884,180 1,903,050 1,922,080 1,941,300 1,960,720 1,980,320

TOTAL REQUIREMENT 8,940,200 9,429,032 8,888,107 9,088,656 9,151,855 9,192,523

Appropriations

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure 798,640 1,764,000 322,000 184,000 30,000 30,000

Interest on borrowing 111,250 528,250 528,250 528,250 528,250 528,250

Repayment of loan principle / MRP 0 0 0 0 0 0

Capital Charges contra entry (1,035,740) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120)

Interest Receivable on Investment 0 (712,000) (752,000) (783,000) (798,000) (834,000)

Contributions To / (From) Reserves 677,320 (902,860) 1,113,963 1,208,592 1,263,643 1,119,729

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 9,491,670 9,071,302 9,065,200 9,191,378 9,140,628 9,001,382

FINANCING

Retained Business Rates 11,714,470 8,197,580 8,364,270 8,534,290 8,627,710 8,627,710

Tariff (7,959,250) (5,054,650) (5,155,740) (5,258,860) (5,364,030) (5,364,030)

RSG 0 342,470 0 0 0 0

Levy to Pool 0 (256,780) 0 0 0 0

NNDR surplus / (deficit) (394,780) (278,000) 0 0 0 0

NNDR Renewables 205,000 137,970 140,730 143,540 146,420 149,340

Levy Account Surplus - Settlement Data 40,800

New Homes Bonus 612,960 720,880 572,180 482,080 289,130 0

Special Area Expense 654,690 680,303 703,178 724,391 746,221 768,794

Specific Grants 1,112,060 892,700 715,070 729,380 743,960 750,000

Council Tax surplus 110,710 30,000 0 0 0 0

FUNDING 6,055,860 5,453,273 5,339,688 5,354,821 5,189,411 4,931,814

Boston Borough Council precept requirement 3,435,810 3,618,029 3,725,512 3,836,557 3,951,217 4,069,568

TRANSFORMATION SAVINGS REQUIRED 0 0 (525,880) (524,142) (613,683) (879,190)

24M:\BUDGETS\2019-20\Budget Sheets\MTFS 2019-20 - 2023-24 SUMMARIES - Excl recharges TS Summary by PFH Apx 1

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2019-20 TO 2023-24 APPENDIX 2 
SUMMARY OF NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE Excl Recgs 

DESCRIPTION 

Corporate  

2018/2019 
ESTIMATE £ 

2019/2020 
ESTIMATE £ 

2020/2021 
ESTIMATE £ 

2021/2022 
ESTIMATE £ 

2022/2023 
ESTIMATE £ 

2023/2024 
ESTIMATE £ 

1,449,240 1,473,210 1,505,857 1,532,269 1,556,182 1,578,397 
Finance 934,540 1,048,310 1,088,755 1,125,333 1,165,111 1,188,992 
Regulatory 1,575,130 1,889,429 1,615,652 1,618,518 1,655,478 1,678,696 
Monitoring Officer 812,020 897,340 1,013,328 1,019,902 998,469 1,123,163 
Place & Space 360,830 210,890 177,317 226,897 248,475 287,976 
Operations 1,269,570 1,326,500 1,387,820 1,424,188 1,434,882 1,465,375 
BTAC 654,690 680,303 703,178 724,391 746,221 768,794 

Cumulative Transformation savings required  
 

(525,880) (524,142) (613,683) (879,190) 
NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 7,056,020 7,525,982 6,966,027 7,147,356 7,191,135 7,212,203 

Drainage Board Precepts  

TOTAL REQUIREMENT 
Appropriations 
Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure   
Interest on borrowing                                                    
Repayment of loan principle / MRP                            
Capital Charges contra entry                                       
Interest Receivable on Investment 
Contributions To / (From) Reserves                           

      
1,884,180 1,903,050 1,922,080 1,941,300 1,960,720 1,980,320 

      
8,940,200 9,429,032 8,888,107 9,088,656 9,151,855 9,192,523 

      
798,640 1,764,000 322,000 184,000 30,000 30,000 
111,250 528,250 528,250 528,250 528,250 528,250 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
(1,035,740) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) 

0 (712,000) (752,000) (783,000) (798,000) (834,000) 
677,320 (902,860) 1,113,963 1,208,592 1,263,643 1,119,729 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 9,491,670 9,071,302 9,065,200 9,191,378 9,140,628 9,001,382 

FINANCING 
Retained Business Rates  
Tariff 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
Net Levy to Pool 
NNDR surplus / (deficit) 
NNDR Renewables 
Levy Account Surplus - Settlement Data 
New Homes Bonus 
Special Area Expense (BTAC) 

      

      
11,714,470 8,197,580 8,364,270 8,534,290 8,627,710 8,627,710 
(7,959,250) (5,054,650) (5,155,740) (5,258,860) (5,364,030) (5,364,030) 

0 342,470 0 0 0 0 
0 (256,780) 0 0 0 0 

(394,780) (278,000) 0 0 0 0 
205,000 137,970 140,730 143,540 146,420 149,340 

 40,800     
612,960 720,880 572,180 482,080 289,130 0 
654,690 680,303 703,178 724,391 746,221 768,794 

Specific Grants                                                            1,112,060 892,700 715,070 729,380 743,960 750,000 
Council Tax surplus 110,710 30,000 0 0 0 0 

Funding  6,055,860 5,453,273 5,339,688 5,354,821 5,189,411 4,931,814 

       
Boston Borough Council precept requirement 3,435,810 3,618,029 3,725,512 3,836,557 3,951,217 4,069,568 

       
TRANSFORMATION SAVINGS REQUIRED 0 0 (525,880) (524,142) (613,683) (879,190) 

M:\BUDGETS\2019-20\Budget Sheets\MTFS 2019-20 - 2023-24 SUMMARIES - Excl recharges TS Budget Book Summary 19-20 Apx 225 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 
 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CORPORATE CHARGING POLICY 2019/20 

 

POLICY AIM  
 
The aim of this policy is to provide a corporate framework for the setting of 
fees and charges for the services provided by Boston Borough Council. The 
policy shows the connection between charging for services and the council’s 
objectives and aims to secure the delivery of services efficiently, effectively 
and at affordable levels; it also aims to strengthen financial management. 
 
As the overall resources available to the Council are diminishing, it is 
important to ensure that the charging policy clearly sets out the ways that fees 
and charges will contribute to the continuation of services for residents, 
businesses and other consumers. 
 

POLICY STATEMENT  

LIC STATEMENT 

 The Policy applies to all those fees and charges which the Council has 
discretion to set, regardless of whether the levels are approved by the 
Cabinet or any alternative Council reporting arrangement (for example 
Licensing Committee). Services where charges are decided externally 
will be set in line with the relevant national legal framework and will     
automatically be changed to reflect the latest position. 

 

 We will identify the full costs of delivering services to make clear the 
level of subsidy the Council is providing. 

 

 We will operate an effective and efficient collection system. The 
methods for paying charges will be made clear and the procedures for 
recovering fees will be governed by established Debt Recovery 
Procedures.  The Council reserves the right to levy charges for the late 
payment of invoices. 

 

 Reasonable notice will be given to service users before any new 
charge is implemented. Reasonable notice is defined as one calendar 
month. 
 

 The effects any new charge has on service usage and income must be 
closely monitored over the first 12 months by the service manager. 
 

 We will invest receipts from fees and charges in the improvement of 
the service, subject to statutory requirements and the wider corporate 
objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy. A Service Manager 
may propose to invest receipts from fees and charges and will prepare 
a report to the Corporate Management Team identifying their full 
requirements for use of additional income in their service area. 

 

Page 69



Appendix 3 
 

 All discretionary fees and charges will be set in line with the approved 
charging policy for that service and should fall into one of the 
categories in the following table. 

 
 

Charging Strategy Objective 

Commercial 
charges 
 

The council aims to cover the cost of providing the 
service and make a surplus 
 

Full Cost 
Recovery 

The council aims to recover the costs of providing this 
service from those who use it 
 

Subsidised The council wishes users of the service to make a 
contribution to the costs of providing it. This might be 
to meet a service objective or to allow competition with 
other providers 
 

Free The Council chooses to make the service available at 
no charge to meet a service objective 
 

Statutory Charges are determined in line with legal 
requirements. 
 

 

 Fees and charges will be regularly reviewed within the Council’s financial 
planning process, any variations outside of this will need formal approval 
by the Cabinet or Committee as appropriate. Service Managers will 
complete the corporate template for the review of fees and charges, 
these will form the bases for reports to the Cabinet or relevant 
committee, as part of the annual review of fees and charges.  

 

 Increases in fees and charges will, each year, be generally in line with 
the level of inflation assumed in the budget process, subject to 
consideration of the specific issues in relation to each service. All 
changes will be agreed as part of the overall budget setting process.  

 

 Wherever possible charges will be collected either in advance or at the 
point of service delivery. Where charges are to be collected after service 
delivery has started, invoices will be raised within 5 working days, and as 
necessary appropriate recovery procedures followed. 

 

 The policy requires a comprehensive schedule of all fees and charges to 
be set up. Each Service Manager will maintain a schedule of fees and 
charges levied for their areas of responsibility. This schedule will be in a 
corporate format and should include, but identify separately, those 
charges that are nationally set. The format will be determined by the 
Accountancy Manager. 

 

Page 70



Appendix 3 
 

 The Customer Services Manager will be able to refer to all fees and 
charges and these will be made available on the Authority’s website. 

 

 Charges should be easy to understand. 
 

 Existing policies and procedures should be taken into account when 
setting fees and charges. 

 

 Setting of fees and charges should be made in accordance with the 
current value added tax regulations. Where rates of VAT increase then 
fees and charges will automatically be adjusted upwards. Advice will be 
provided by the Accountancy team. 

 

 As a general policy no concession is to be given from the charge set. 
However, it is open to service managers to present a case to the Cabinet 
arguing that a concession is appropriate for a particular group or that a 
concession would assist the achievement of the Council’s Corporate 
Objectives. 

 

 In accordance with business need fees and charges can be amended as 
agreed by the respective Portfolio Holder, Corporate Management Team 
member, Head of Service and the Section 151 Officer (or Deputy Section 
151 Officer) in exceptional circumstances and reported to Cabinet 
retrospectively.  

 I 
 
IMPLEMENTATION 
IM 
Who is responsible? 
 
Overall responsibility is with the Accountancy Manager and day-to-day 
operational responsibility with Service Managers. 
 
Complaints procedure 
 
If any member of the public believes that the Council has acted in a way that 
is not in line with this policy the Council’s Formal Complaints Procedure may 
be followed. 
 
Monitoring and review 
 
The Accountancy Manager will review the implementation of this policy and 
undertake a triennial review of the policy.  
 
Service Team Plans 
 
All service team plans will be consistent with the principles within this policy. 
 
 
 

Page 71



Appendix 3 
 

 
Value for Money 
 
The Council continually reviews its costs and charges to ensure that Value for 
Money is being delivered, and in determining next year’s fees and charges, 
annual reviews will seek to challenge subsidies, determine the value placed 
on the service and how much people are willing to pay. They will also identify 
any new charges for services. 
 
 
MONITORING 
ONITORING 
The policy will be monitored in the following ways: 
 

MONITORING ACTIVITY PERSON RESPONSIBLE 

Data collection Service Managers 

Review of policy Accountancy Manager 

External communication Customer Services Manager 

 ONSULTAON 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
Corporate Management Team and Cabinet were consulted on a draft version 
of the strategy before full implementation. Changes were made to the policy 
reflecting the outcomes of the consultation. 
POLICY APPROVAL 
 
 

Page 72



APPENDIX 4
BOSTON & FOSDYKE CEMETERIES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Burial Fee - Adult  (Resident of the Borough) 820.00 42.00 862.00 Non business - no VAT

Burial Fee - Adult  (Non resident within 5 years) 1,640.00 84.00 1,724.00 Non business - no VAT

Burial Fee - Child 6 - 15 years 248.00 0.00 248.00 Non business - no VAT

Burial Fee - Child 1 month - 5 years 99.00 0.00 99.00 Non business - no VAT

Burial Fee - Child up to 1 month 35.00 0.00 35.00 Non business - no VAT

Burial Fee - Non Viable Foetus or Baby Tissues resulting 

from post mortem 35.00 0.00 35.00 Non business - no VAT

Excavation of grave space in preparation for construction 

of brick vault:

Brick Vault : Single POA - POA Non business - no VAT

                      Double POA - POA Non business - no VAT

                      Others (pro rata) POA - POA

Re-opening of grave for interment in existing vault 

(excavation & re-filling) 820.00 42.00 862.00 Non business - no VAT

Cremated remains placed in coffin for interment 75.00 5.00 80.00 Non business - no VAT

Interment (beneath surface) or exhumation of cremated 

remains in Cemetery 148.00 2.00 150.00 Non business - no VAT

Double interment of cremated remains (one excavation, 2 

caskets or both in same casket) 222.00 3.00 225.00 Non business - no VAT

Scatter of Cremated Remains in cemetery (unwitnessed) 60.00 5.00 65.00 Non business - no VAT

Officer attendance at witnessed scattering or interment of 

ashes - (by appointment only) 25.00 2.00 27.00 Non business - no VAT

Exhumation of coffined body from cemetery POA - POA Standard rate

Fees and Charges

Purchase of Exclusive Right of burial (including memorial 

permit) - single space (resident of Borough) 1,000.00 100.00 1,100.00 Non business - no VAT

Purchase of Exclusive Right of burial (including memorial 

permit) - single space (non resident) 2,000.00 200.00 2,200.00 non business - no VAT

Purchase of Exclusive Right of Burial for a cremated 

remains plot at Fosdyke Cemetery NEW CHARGE 0.00 550.00 Non business - no VAT

Transfer of grave ownership fee 30.00 5.00 35.00 non business - no VAT

Administration fee for surrender of Exclusive Right of 

Burial or rectification to change to alternative grave space 45.00 5.00 50.00 Non business - no VAT

Permit for vase (unpurchased graves) 65.00 5.00 70.00 Non business - no VAT

Exclusive right of burial for child grave including memorial 

permit 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - no VAT

Permit for additional inscription on existing memorial 42.00 3.00 45.00 Non business - no VAT

Grave maintenance - Annual contract

With Planting - Single 110.00 0.00 110.00 Standard rate

With Planting - Double 220.00 0.00 220.00 Standard rate

With Planting - Triple 330.00 0.00 330.00 Standard rate

With Planting - Quadruple 440.00 0.00 440.00 Standard rate

Family History Searches:

To locate names in the indexes & registers through to

identification of the grave on site -

per grave                                                                                                2.50 0.00 2.50 Standard rate 

Non-genealogical searches or names not found in indexes no charge 0.00 no charge

Page 73



APPENDIX 4
BOSTON CREMATORIUM

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Memorial Price List

Book of Remembrance

2 Line Inscription 75.00 4.00 79.00 Standard rate

5 Line Inscription 110.00 6.00 116.00 Standard rate

8 Line Inscription 139.00 7.00 146.00 Standard rate

Illustration, Badge, Coat of Arms etc (to accompany 5 & 8 line entries only) 75.00 4.00 79.00 Standard rate

Miniature Book of Remembrance 2 line entry 75.00 4.00 79.00 Standard rate

Miniature Book of Remembrance 5 line entry 110.00 6.00 116.00 Standard rate

Miniature Book of Remembrance 8 line entry 139.00 7.00 146.00 Standard rate

Memorial card - 2 line entry 28.50 0.00 28.50 Standard rate

Memorial card - 5 line entry 34.00 0.00 34.00 Standard rate

Memorial card - 8 line entry 39.50 0.00 39.50 Standard rate

Each additional line in existing Miniature Book 17.00 1.00 18.00 Standard rate

Correction or addition to Book of Remembrance entry (client error) 17.00 1.00 18.00 Standard rate

Fixed Term Memorials

Renewal of dedication for existing individual roses, trees & shrubs - per annum 23.00 1.00 24.00 Standard rate

Each 5 year dedication of one granite Bench plaque (one third share, 3 

plaques per granite bench), bench remains the property of the Council 382.00 19.00 401.00 Standard rate

Each 5 year dedication of plaque on wooden bench (one plaque per bench 

only), includes maintenance of bench which remains the property of the 

Council 461.00 23.00 484.00 Standard rate

Inscribed granite wall plaque or tower plaque- initial set up plus first year of 

dedication 80.00 4.00 84.00 Standard rate

Inscribed granite wall plaque or tower plaque - per each year of dedication 40.00 2.00 42.00 Standard rate

Single Leather Recordia Panel in Chapel of Remembrance (1st yr) 47.00 2.00 49.00 Standard rate

Leather Recordia Panel (per year-2nd year onwards), single or double 24.00 0.00 24.00 Standard rate

Double Leather Recordia Panel in Chapel of Remembrance (1st yr) 94.00 4.00 98.00 Standard rate

Re-enameling of lettering on existing memorial tablet (all types) (5year old or

more) 92.00 5.00 97.00 Standard rate

Plaque on babies memorial wall, initial set up charge 56.00 0.00 56.00 Standard rate

Lease of plaque for babies memorial (per year) 16.00 0.00 16.00 Standard rate

Placement of ashes in above-ground granite vault , (99 year lease), including

plaque and urn 1,200.00 60.00 1,260.00 Standard rate

Second placement of ashes in existing above-ground granite vault (existing

lease period stands), including plaque and urn 250.00 13.00 263.00 Standard rate

Photo plaque on Vault plaque or Columbarium plaque (each plaque) 105.00 5.00 110.00 Standard rate

Initial placement of ashes in columbarium niche - 50 year lease includes

inscribed polished granite tablet and urn 600.00 30.00 630.00 Standard rate

Initial placement of ashes in columbarium niche - 99 year lease includes

inscribed polished granite tablet and urn 1,200.00 60.00 1,260.00 Standard rate

2nd placement in existing columbarium niche (remaining lease period stands).

Includes inscribed polished granite tablet and urn 250.00 13.00 263.00 Standard rate

Other Charges

Replacement or re-facing of memorial tablet (memorial pathway) incl 30 letters 920.00 0.00 920.00 Standard rate

Grey Granite memorial tablet for Garden of Rest (opposite front entrance), incl

30 letters 300.00 15.00 315.00 Standard rate

Each additional letter of inscription on memorial tablet (memorial pathway &

opposite front entrance) 3.50 0.20 3.70 Standard rate

Replacement metal flower container for existing memorial tablet 12.00 1.00 13.00 Standard rate

Additional name/plaque on existing Rose/Shrub or Tree (perspex type) 31.00 2.00 33.00 Standard rate

Addition to or replacement of existing cast bronze plaque in communal rose 

bed 96.00 5.00 101.00 Standard rate

P
age 74



APPENDIX 4
BOSTON CREMATORIUM

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Upgrade to Cast bronze plaque on existing memorial tree or rose bush 96.00 5.00 101.00 Standard rate

Media Fees

Recording of a funeral service supplied as CD, DVD or USB (first copy)- audio 

only or audio visual 37.00 2.00 39.00 Standard rate

Each additional CD or USB 17.00 1.00 18.00 Standard rate

Audio visual recording of funeral service supplied on DVD or USB - first copy 41.00 0.00 41.00 Standard rate

Each additional DVD or USB audio visual recording 19.00 0.00 19.00 Standard rate

Webcasting of funeral service (USB/DVD of webcast is extra as above if req) 82.00 4.00 86.00 Standard rate

Visual tribute set up fee 11.00 1.00 12.00 Standard rate

Visual tribute (stills) during service with or without music - per photo 0.00 2.00 2.00 Standard rate

video footage per minute used 5.00 1.00 6.00 Standard rate

DVD or USB copy of the visual tribute only 21.00 1.00 22.00 Standard rate

DVD or USB copy of the whole service with the Visual tribute embedded 52.00 1.00 53.00 Standard rate

Fees and Charges

Cremation Fee - Adult 710.00 25.00 735.00 Exempt - no VAT

Cremation Fee - Direct cremation. No funeral service or mourners, 8.30am or 

4pm time slot only (cremation next day). Includes 2 pallbearers (wheeled) 520.00 25.00 545.00 Exempt - no VAT

Cremation Fee - Child 6 - 15 years 95.00 0.00 95.00 Exempt - no VAT

Cremation Fee - Child 1 month to 5 years 27.00 0.00 27.00 Exempt - no VAT

Cremation Fee - Child under 1 month, non-viable foetus or body part resulting 

from post mortem 17.00 0.00 17.00 Exempt - no VAT

Cremation Fee - Batch Cremation of pre-12 week foetuses (per batch not 

exceeding 20.) 41.00 4.00 45.00 Exempt - no VAT

Provision of one pall bearer 20.00 2.00 22.00 Standard rate

Provision of two pall-bearers (maximum & only if available) 40.00 4.00 44.00 Standard rate

Additional service slot in Chapel (when available) 185.00 10.00 195.00 Exempt - no VAT

Use of Crematorium Chapel for a burial or memorial service or for training 

purposes. 185.00 10.00 195.00 Exempt - no VAT

Courier of Cremated remains (including polytainer) 90.00 0.00 90.00 Exempt - no VAT

Storage of cremated remains after 28 days 8.00 0.00 8.00 Exempt - no VAT

Bronze Urn 18.00 1.00 19.00 Exempt - no VAT

Polytainer 11.00 1.00 12.00 Exempt - no VAT

Interment/ exhumation of cremated remains at Crematorium (unwitnessed) 148.00 2.00 150.00 Exempt - no VAT

Interment/ exhumation of cremated remains at Crematorium (witnessed with 

staff present) 173.00 2.00 175.00 Exempt - no VAT

Scattering of Cremated remains (Witnessed with staff present) 25.00 2.00 27.00 Exempt - no VAT

Scattering of Cremated remains from other Crematoria (unwitnessed) 60.00 5.00 65.00 Exempt - no VAT

Scattering of Cremated remains from other Crematoria (Witnessed with staff 

present) 85.00 2.00 87.00 Exempt - no VAT

Double interment of cremated remains, (one excavation, 2 caskets or both in 

same casket) 222.00 3.00 225.00 Exempt - no VAT

Additional Certificate of Cremation (if remains are split or original lost) 12.00 1.00 13.00 Exempt - no VAT

Photocopy of Registrars or Coroners disposal certificate 12.00 1.00 13.00 Exempt - no VAT

Letter of delcaration for customs - remains taken abroad 12.00 1.00 13.00 Exempt - no VAT

P
age 75



APPENDIX 4
COMMERCIAL WASTE WASTE FEES AND CHARGES 

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/2020 LIABILITY

Green Bin prices (residual waste) £ £ £

240 Litre - Once Weekly 5.60 0.40 6.00 Non Business 

240 Litre - Twice Weekly 5.60 0.40 6.00 Non Business 

240 Litre - Fortnightly 5.80 0.20 6.00 Non Business 

240 Litre - Monthly 6.00 0.00 6.00 Non Business 

360 Litre - Once Weekly 0.00 NEW CHARGE 9.00 Non Business 

360 Litre - Twice Weekly 0.00 NEW CHARGE 9.00 Non Business 

360 Litre - Fortnightly 0.00 NEW CHARGE 9.00 Non Business 

360 Litre - Monthly 0.00 NEW CHARGE 9.00 Non Business 

660 Litre - Once Weekly 12.00 2.00 14.00 Non Business 

660 Litre - Twice Weekly 12.00 2.00 14.00 Non Business 

660 Litre - Fortnightly 13.50 0.50 14.00 Non Business 

660 Litre - Monthly 16.00 -2.00 14.00 Non Business 

1100 Litre - Once Weekly 13.60 1.40 15.00 Non Business 

1100 Litre - Twice Weekly 13.60 1.40 15.00 Non Business 

1100 Litre - Fortnightly 15.00 0.00 15.00 Non Business 

1100 Litre - Monthly 16.00 -1.00 15.00 Non Business 

Trade Bags (10 bags per roll) 12.00 0.00 12.00 Non Business 

Blue Bin prices 

240L fortnightly 2.90 1.45 4.35 Non Business 

240L Monthly 3.00 1.50 4.50 Non Business 

360L - Fortnightly 0.00 NEW CHARGE 6.75 Non Business 

360l - Monthly 0.00 NEW CHARGE 8.25 Non Business 

660L Fortnightly 6.75 3.00 9.75 Non Business 

660L Monthly 8.00 4.00 12.00 Non Business 

1100L Fortnightly 7.50 3.75 11.25 Non Business 

1100L Monthly 8.00 4.00 12.00 Non Business 

Trade bags (10 bags per roll) 6.00 3.00 9.00 Non Business 

Other charges:

Trade Bins

New/ Replacement 240L bin 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non Business 

New/ Replacement 660L bin 150.00 0.00 150.00 Non Business 

New/ replacement 1100L bin 175.00 0.00 175.00 Non Business 

Re-instatement of bin 0.00 NEW CHARGE 25.00 Non Business 

P
age 76



APPENDIX 4
WASTE SERVICES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

BULKY COLLECTION CHARGES - DOMESTIC

Bulky Collections: Standard Items

Collection of 1-2 standard items 16.00 2.00 18.00 Non business

Collection of 3 standard items 21.00 4.00 25.00 Non business
Collection of 4-5 standard items 28.00 2.00 30.00 Non business

Bulky Collections: White Items

Collection of 1 large white goods 25.00 1.25 26.25 Non business

Collection of 2 large white goods 35.00 1.75 36.75 Non business

Any Other Items

Eg Carpets, sheds, wood, garden waste POA POA Non business

Refuse Bins 

Replacement 240L bin 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business

Replacement 360L bin 0.00 NEW CHARGE 50.00 Non business

Replacement 660L bin 150.00 0.00 150.00 Non business

Replacement 1100L bin 175.00 0.00 175.00 Non business

Garden Waste Collections

Garden waste collections for 1 bin (per annum) 30.00 0.00 30.00 non business

Garden waste collections for each extra bin (per annum) 15.00 0.00 15.00 non business

Garden waste 240L bin purchase 25.00 0.00 25.00 non business

BULKY COLLECTIONS - COMMERCIAL (NEW CHARGES)

Commercial Waste Bulky collections: Standard

P
age 77



GROUNDS MAINTENANCE CHARGES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Commercial Tree Services:

Commercial contract services (Tree) half day (plus disposal 

costs of any waste) 0.00 NEW CHARGE 200.00 Standard rate

Commercial contract services (Tree) full day (plus disposal 

costs of any waste) 0.00 NEW CHARGE 400.00 Standard rate

Page 78



APPENDIX 4

GUILDHALL

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Private Hire (after 6pm there is a minimun of 2 hours hire required)

Private hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 50 0 50 Standard Rates

Private hire outside normal opening hours (per hour) * 80 0 80 Standard Rates

Private hire of more than one room (price on application) Standard Rates

Charity private hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 40 0 40 Standard Rates

Charity private hire outside normal opening hours (per hour) * 50 0 50 Standard Rates

Buffet style catering packages are also avaliable - please contact the Guildhall for further information 

Meeting Room Hire

Meeting room hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 25 0 25 Standard Rates

Meeting room hire outside normal opening hours 8am to 6pm (per hour) 50 0 50 Standard Rates

Refreshments (per serving) 10 2 12 Standard Rates

Buffet style catering packages are also avaliable - please contact the Guildhall for further information 

Wedding Hire 

Wedding hire -  Ceremony only 450 70 520 Standard Rates

Reception to follow wedding (per hour) 75 10 85 Standard Rates

Wedding hire -  Ceremony only Outside normal opening hours 0 620 620 New fee

Reception to follow wedding (per hour) Outside normal opening hours 0 95 95 New fee

Wedding Hire on bank holidays or during Christmas closure period

Wedding hire -  Ceremony fee (3 hour closure)  Applies to weddings between the Christmas 

and New Year Guildhall closure and Good Friday to Easter Monday 800 -800 0 Removed

Wedding hire -  Ceremony fee (3 hour closure) Applies to weddings on bank holidays 

weekends other than the ones named above 
600 -600 0 Removed

Reception to follow wedding  (an additional 2 hour closure) 250 -250 0 Removed

Buffet style catering packages are also avaliable - please contact the Guildhall for further information 

Tours (price is for upto 20 people)

Group guided tour within opening hours (booking required) 40 20 60 Standard Rates

Group guided tour not within opening hours upto 6pm (booking required) 80 -80 0 Removed

Bespoke tours/talks/on and off site/packages  

Paranomal investigations groups 400 0 400 Standard Rates

Other

Location Hire Standard Rates

Hire of entire Guildhall Standard Rates

Photography fee for occaision events Standard Rates

* Upto 10pm and excluding Christmas and Bank Holidays 

All bookings are subject to avaliability 

Price on application 

Price on Application 

Price on Application 

Price on Application 

Price on Application 

P
age 79



APPENDIX 4

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Health Education - 3217

Unit Food Examination (Charge for initial 1st Hour) 90.20 0.00 90.20 Non business - No VAT charge

Unit Food Examination (Charge per hour after initial hour) 42.40 0.00 42.40 Non business - No VAT charge

Request for a revisit 150.00 0.00 150.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Training courses (food safety)

Setting up a food business 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Food Hygiene refresher (Half day) 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Food Hygiene refresher (Full day) 175.00 0.00 175.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Management system coaching 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Short courses 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dog Warden - 3219

Dog Fines (Seizure) - FIXED BY STATUTE 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Stray Dogs - Admin Charge per dog. 20.00 0.00 20.00 Standard rate 

Kennelling fees (per day) 11.00 0.00 11.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dog Control 

Dog Fouling (Fixed penalty) - FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Failing to exclude your dog from a fenced off children’s play area  - FIXED 

BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Failing to put a nuisance or dangerous dog on a lead when requested to 

do so by an authorised officer - FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Failure to provide evidence of the means to clear up dog faeces (Bag or 

receptacle).- FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Mobile Homes Act 2013 - licence fees

New Site Licence 365.00 0.00 365.00 Non business - No VAT charge

New Site Licence per pitch 8.50 0.00 8.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Transfer / amendment of existing site licence 225.00 0.00 225.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Significant amendments 255.00 0.00 255.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Annual fee for existing site licence per pitch 3.00 0.00 3.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Enforcement notices 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Enforcement notices additional one 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Depositing site rules 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Pollution - 3216

Contaminated Land (consultation and advice) - charged per hour 30.00 0.00 30.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Port Health - 3214

Ship Sanitation Certificate - FIXED BY STATUTE 120.00 0.00 120.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Ship Sanitation Extension - FIXED BY STATUTE 55.00 0.00 55.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Street Cleansing - 3235

Litter Fixed Penalty - FIXED BY STATUTE 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Fly tipping penalty - FIXED BY STATUTE 150-400 0 150-400 Non business - No VAT charge

Public Conveniences - 3204

Radar Keys 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge

P
age 80



APPENDIX 4
MISCELLANEOUS LICENCES

Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges Charges Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

Part A Part B Total 

£ £ £ £ £

Sex Establishments (1st Application) 1,547.00 1,330.00 217.00 1,547.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Sex Establishments (Renewal Application) 539.00 322.00 217.00 539.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Pet Shops 112.50 0.00 75.00 37.50 112.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Riding Establishments 131.00 0.00 93.50 37.50 131.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Animal Boarding 122.00 0.00 84.50 37.50 122.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dog Breeders 131.00 0.00 93.50 37.50 131.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dangerous Wild Animals (1st Application) 284.50 0.00 284.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Dangerous Wild Animals (Renewal Application) 210.00 0.00 210.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Zoo Licence Grant 4 years 445.00 0.00 368.00 77.00 445.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Zoo Licence Renewal 6 years 368.00 291.00 77.00 368.00

Zoo Licence Transfer 148.00 148.00

Zoo Licence Annual Inspection 77.00 77.00

Tattoing, ear piercing, acupunture & electrolysis Premises 

Registration 116.00 0.00 86.00 30.00 116.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Tattoing, ear piercing, acupunture & electrolysis Personal 

Registration 49.50 0.00 49.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Street Trading Consent 112.50 0.00 112.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Street Trading daily consent 16.00 0.00 16.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Scrap Metal Dealers 0.00 0.00

Scrap Metal Dealer Site Licence 488.50 0.00 316.50 172.00 488.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Scrap Metal Dealer Collector Licence Fee 228.50 0.00 161.50 67.00 228.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Variation of licence collector to site 218.50 0.00 218.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Variation of licence site to collector 57.00 0.00 57.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Change of site manager 47.00 0.00 47.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Minor change e.g. change of licensee details 32.00 0.00 32.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Duplicate Licence (Standard replacement Licence fee for all 

licence types) 10.50 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Register entry fee (for the first entry and £0.50 per entry 

thereafter) 10.50 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge

P
age 81



APPENDIX 4
Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificates 2019/20 Statutory fees - no increase.

Bands A B C D E

Non-Domestic rateable value

£0 - 

£4,300

£4,301 - 

£33,000

£33,001 - 

£87,000

£87,001 - 

£125,000

£125,001 

and over

Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates (New, Variations & Conversion)

If Band D and E are used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises then a multiplier applies:

Band D = £450 X 2 = £900

Band E = £635 X 3 = £1905

Bands A B C D E

Non-Domestic rateable value £100 £190 £315 £450 £635

Multiplier Charge see above £0 £0 £0 £900 £1,905

Additional Fee Based on Capacity over 5000 (For New and Variation)

Capacity

5,000 - 

9,999

10,000 - 

14,999

15,000 - 

19,999

20,000 - 

29,999

30,000 - 

39,999

40,000 - 

49,999

50,000 - 

59,999

60,000 - 

69,999

70,000 - 

79,999

80,000 - 

89,999

90,000 - 

Plus

Additional Fee (£) 1,000 2,000 4,000 8,000 16,000 24,000 32,000 40,000 48,000 56,000 64,000

Annual Fee and Variation Fee For Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates

Payable on anniversary of grant

Plus additional fee see below if capacity is over 5,000

Mulitplier applies to band D and E 

If Band D and E are used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises then a multiplier applies:

Band D = £320 X 2 = £640

Band E = £350 X 3 = £1050

For Club paid by sceretary

Bands A B C D E

Non-Domestic rateable value £70 £180 £295 £320 £350

Additional Fee Based on Capacity over 5000 

Capacity

5,000 - 

9,999

10,000 - 

14,999

15,000 - 

19,999

20,000 - 

29,999

30,000 - 

39,999

40,000 - 

49,999

50,000 - 

59,999

60,000 - 

69,999

70,000 - 

79,999

80,000 - 

89,999

90,000 - 

Plus

Additional Fee (£) 500 1,000 2,000 4,000 8,000 12,000 16,000 20,000 24,000 28,000 32,000

P
age 82



APPENDIX 4

Other Fees

£

PREMISES Theft, Loss etc of Premises Licence or Summary 10.50

315.00

10.50

23.00

23.00

23.00

CLUBS 10.50

10.50

10.50

TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE 21.00

10.50

PERSONAL LICENCE 37.00

10.50

10.50

FREEHOLDER/LEASEHOLDER 21.00

Exemption of Fees for Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificates

Applies for regulated entertainment at certain premises

Premises - school, college, church or community hall or similar building

The exemption does not apply to any other licensable activity within these premises

Exemption

No fee for grant or variation

No annual fee

Theft, Loss etc of Club Premises Certificates or Summary

Change of Name or Alteration of Club Rules

Theft, Loss etc of Personal Licence 

Register of Interest

Change of Registered Address of Club

Temporary Event Notice

Theft, Loss etc of Temporary Event Notice

Grant/Renewal of Personal Licence

Change of Name and Address

Interim Authority

Transfer: Premises Licence

OTHER FEE

Provisional Statement

Change of Name or Address (Premises Licence Holder)

Variation of Designated Premises Supervisor

P
age 83



APPENDIX 4

HACKNEY CARRIAGE, PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE AND OTHER LICENCES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence 126.00 0.00 126.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence - 

RENEWAL 106.50 0.00 106.50 Non business - No VAT charge

DVLA Licence check 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Additional manual DVLA check 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence 139.00 0.00 139.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Private Hire Vehicle Licence 139.00 0.00 139.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Private Hire Operators Licence 172.50 0.00 172.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Hire of Vehicle Plate 26.00 0.00 26.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Replacement Drivers Badge 10.50 0.00 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Drivers Knowledge Test Fee 16.00 0.00 16.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Mogo Plate Fee 12.00 0.00 12.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Mogo Plate Bracket 12.00 0.00 12.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Route 2 DBS validation check 20.00 0.00 20.00 Non business - no VAT charge

DBS check (Set by DBS) 44.00 0.00 44.00 Non business - no VAT charge

P
age 84



APPENDIX 4
FEES FOR GAMBLING ACT 2005 (introduced wef 21st May 2007)

2019/20

LICENCE TYPE BBC

Charge

Bingo Premises Licence

Application fee for provisional statement 784.00

Licence for provisional statement premises 461.00

Application fee new premises 784.00

Annual Fee 572.50

Variation of Licence 700.00

Transfer fee 448.00

Application for reinstatement 448.00

Adult Gaming Centre

Application fee for provisional statement 721.00

Licence for provisional statement premises 427.00

Application fee new premises 721.00

Annual Fee 447.50

Variation of Licence 700.00

Transfer fee 448.00

Application for reinstatement 448.00

Family Entertainment Centre

Application fee for provisional statement 721.00

Licence for provisional statement premises 406.00

Application fee new premises 721.00

Annual Fee 413.50

Variation of Licence 700.00

Transfer fee 448.00

Application for reinstatement 448.00

Betting Premises 

Application fee for provisional statement 721.00

Licence for provisional statement premises 427.00

Application fee new premises 721.00

Annual Fee 392.00

Variation of Licence 700.00

Transfer fee 448.00

Application for reinstatement 448.00

Miscellaneous

Change of circumstances 25.00

Fee for copy notices 15.00

Fee for copy of a licence 15.00

Fee for Permits - Statutory 15.00

Temporary Use Notices 165.00

Gambling permit

Gambling permit - Club gaming permit (new/renewal) 200.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming permit annual fee 50.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming permit - copy of permit 15.00

Gambling permit - Variation 100.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit (new/renewal) 200.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit annual fee 50.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit - copy of permit 15.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit - variation 100.00

Gambling permit - club fast track gaming/gaming machine permit (new/renewal/Transitional fee) 100.00

Gambling permit - club fast track gaming/gaming machine permit Annual fee 50.00

Gambling permit - small society lottery registration 40.00

Gambling permit - small society lottery registration  annual fee 20.00

Alcohol and entertainment licences/temporary events permits

Gambling pemit - FEC gaming machine (new/renewal) 300.00

Gambling permit - FEC permit - change of name 25.00

Gambling permit - FEC permit - copy of permit 15.00

Gambling permit - Prize gaming (new/renewal) 300.00

Gambling permit - Prize gaming - change of name 25.00

Gambling permit - Prize gaming - copy of permit 15.00

Gambling permit - alcohol licensed premises - Notification of 2 or less machines 50.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines 150.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines - Annual fee 50.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines - Change of name 25.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines - Copy  of permit 15.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines - Variation 100.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines - Transfer 25.00Page 85



APPENDIX 4

LAND CHARGES

Proposed 

LCC LCC BBC BBC Charges 

Element Element (with VAT) Element (no VAT) Element (with VAT) 2019/20

£ £ £ £ £

CON 29 Search Fee  - Part R (Manual) 21.00 25.20 52.50 63.00 88.20 Standard rate

CON 29 Search Fee - Part R (Electronic) 21.00 25.20 52.50 63.00 88.20 Standard rate

Statutory LLC1 - Fixed by statute up to 06-07.  Deregulated 07-

08 (Manual) 0.00 21.00 21.00 Non business - No VAT charge

NLIS Statutory LLC1 - Fixed by statute up to 06-07.  

Deregulated 07-08 (Electronic) 0.00 21.00 21.00 Non business - No VAT charge

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 4 1.00 1.20 14.50 17.40 18.60 Standard rate

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 8 1.00 1.20 4.00 4.80 6.00 Standard rate

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 21 3.00 3.60 12.00 14.40 18.00

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 22 6.00 7.20 8.50 10.20 17.40 Standard rate

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 0.00 12.00 14.40 14.40 Standard rate

Additional Enquiries 0.00 18.00 21.60 21.60 Non business - No VAT charge

CON 29 Search Fee - (manual & electronic) Additional Parcels 

of Land 17.00 20.40 20.40 Standard rate

LLC1 Additional Parcels of Land 0.00 1.00 1.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Cancellation of LLC1 10.00 10.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Cancellation of CON 29 0.00 30.00 36.00 36.00 Standard rate

Informal Searches 0.00 26.00 31.20 31.20 Standard rate

P
age 86



APPENDIX 4LEISURE POOL 

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

LEISURE POOL

Swimming

Adult 4.20 0.20 4.40 Standard rate 

OAP Concessions 3.20 0.20 3.40 Standard rate 

Junior Swim    3.10 0.10 3.20 Standard rate 

Disabled Concession 2.80 0.20 3.00 Standard rate 

Spectator 1.00 1.00 Standard rate 

Family Swim 11.30 0.70 12.00 Standard rate 

Lessons Junior and Adult (1/2 hour x 7 sessions) 29.40 1.40 30.80 Exempt - no VAT

One to One swimming lessons 16.70 0.80 17.50 Exempt - no VAT

Crash course swimming lessons (1/2 hour x 5 sessions) 21.50 1.00 22.50 Exempt - no VAT

Activity Sessions 6.00 0.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit - Adults 5.90 0.10 6.00 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit - Concession 5.00 5.00 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit College / School 4.30 4.30 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit - Staff non member 3.15 3.15 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit - Staff member 3.00 3.00 Exempt - no VAT

Kids Club - Membership 12.50 0.50 13.00 Exempt - no VAT

Child Activity Pack - Monthly Pass 15.00 15.00 Exempt - no VAT

Child Activity Pack - 30 day pass 20.00 20.00 Exempt - no VAT

Child Activity Pack - 90 day pass 48.00 48.00 Exempt - no VAT

Kids Club - Member session fee 2.70 0.10 2.80 Exempt - no VAT

Kids Club - Non member fee 4.90 0.10 5.00 Exempt - no VAT

Under 5's Swim    1.00 1.00 Exempt - no VAT

Aqua Fit (Single session) 6.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT

School (per child) with staff supervision 1.60 0.10 1.70 Exempt - no VAT

Club and Individual Training

BASC agreed rate per week ( as determined throught the Partnership SLA)(not in on Sundays 

wef: Sept 2015) Price set until August 2018 1,041.50 35.40 1,076.90 Exempt - no VAT

Leisure Pool Hire

Training Room Activity Room 25.00 0.50 25.50 See note 1 below

Party Package (Pool plus activity room - max 30) (inc £20 deposit) 120.00 5.00 125.00 Standard rate 

Party Package (Activity Room) 50.00 50.00 Standard rate 

Table Tennis (table hire 55 minutes - activity room) 5.00 5.00 Standard rate 

Table Tennis (bat hire 55 minutes - activity room) 1.50 1.50 Standard rate 

Six month Swim Pass

6 months Adult (3 months at 50%) 170.00 8.50 178.50 Standard rate 

6 months OAP Concessions (3 months at 50%) 152.00 7.50 159.50

30 Day Swim Pass 31.50 1.50 33.00

Child - 6 weeks only 22.00 22.00

Adult - Direct Debit monthly 25.10 1.30 26.40

Concessions - Direct Debit monthly - now in line with gym - 1 price for concessions 22.50 1.20 23.70

Courses / Training

RLSS NPLQ (Including First Aid) 230.00 230.00 Exempt - no VAT

First Aid 125.00 125.00 Exempt - no VAT

Defib 70.00 70.00 Exempt - no VAT

NRASTAC (School teacher safety training) 90.00 90.00 Exempt - no VAT

Note 1 - The VAT liability of the charge for the activity areas is exempt if it is purely room hire, without use of pool.

Note 2 - The VAT liability may change if there are a series of lets - please refer to rules on Sports Charges Fees & Charges page

P
age 87



APPENDIX 4

FITNESS SUITE

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

FITNESS SUITE 

Club membership

Induction (knocked off joining fee in 1st month) 10.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT

Joining Fee 25.00 25.00 Standard rate 

Joining Fee (College/BBC) 15.00 15.00 Standard rate 

Monthly fees (club members)

Gym/health/swim - 29.60 0.35 29.95 Standard rate 

Corporate 26.50 26.50 Standard rate 

Concession 22.50 1.20 23.70 Standard rate 

All facilities annual - 12+1 months from 15 months 432.00 432.00 Standard rate 

3 Month Pack - 108.00 108.00 Standard rate 

3 Month Concession membership 72.00 72.00 Standard rate 

Monthly fees (College)

All facilities 21.00 1.50 22.50 Standard rate 

Casual fees (College & BBC )

Gym 6.50 0.30 6.80 Standard rate 

Classes 4.30 0.20 4.50 Exempt - no VAT

Health/swim 4.30 0.20 4.50 Standard rate 

Float Fit - Member 3.00 3.00 Exempt - no VAT

Casual fees (non-members)

Gym 10.00 10.00 Standard rate 

Concession Gym 5.00 0.25 5.25 Standard rate 

Classes 6.50 0.50 7.00 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit - Concession Non-Member 5.00 5.00 Exempt - no VAT

Extend class 2.50 0.20 2.70 Exempt - no VAT

Fit Fifties class 3.70 0.20 3.90 Exempt - no VAT

Health/swim 7.00 0.40 7.40 Standard rate 

Full fitness assessment 30.70 30.70 Exempt - no VAT

GP referral scheme 20.00 20.00 Exempt - no VAT

Group Rig and TRX training 15.00 -5.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT

Personal Training (member) 15.00 15.00 Exempt - no VAT

Personal Training (NON member) 20.00 20.00 Exempt - no VAT

Weight and body composition 10.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT

Page 88



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Craft Market

Per stall - payment on day 14.00 0.00 14.00 Exempt - no VAT

24 Craft Markets expected per year-Thursday

15 Stalls Maximum

CRAFT MARKET CHARGES

P
age 89



APPENDIX 4

BUILDING CONTROL FEES AND CHARGES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Copy of Building Regulation Approval (where number is quoted) 38.00 38.00 Standard rate

Letter of Comfort 48.00 48.00 Standard rate

Building Regulations (Confirmation of erection of outbuildings in 

accordance with the approved plans) 189.00 189.00 Standard rate

P
age 90



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Copy of Planning Decision Notice 5.00 5.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Planning Committee Agenda 7.10 7.10 Zero rated - 0%

Photocopy of Background Papers per sheet 0.10 0.10 Standard rate 

Each additional A4 sheet per sheet 0.10 0.10 Standard rate 

Planning Application information searches 25.70 25.70 Non business - no VAT charge

Planning Permission 74.60 74.60 Non business - no VAT charge

(Confirmation of the carrying out of development

in accordance with the approved plans)

Lincolnshire Design Guide (County wide price) 32.80 32.80 Zero rated - 0%

Production of Plans for consultation and inspection 

purposes only

A0 size (841mm x 1189mm) 4.10 4.10 Standard rate 

A1 size (841mm x 594mm) 2.10 2.10 Standard rate 

A2 size (420mm x 594mm) 1.00 1.00 Standard rate 

A3 size (297mm x 420mm) Black & White 0.30 0.30 Standard rate 

A3 size (297mm x 420mm) Colour 0.60 0.60 Standard rate 

A4 size (297mm x 210mm) Black & White 0.10 0.10 Standard rate 

A4 size (297mm x 210mm) Colour 0.20 0.20 Standard rate 

Adopted Boston Borough Local Plan 37.30 37.30 Zero rated - 0%

Copy of Tree Preservation Orders 5.00 5.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Copies of Local Development Schemes 17.10 17.10 Zero rated - 0%

If invoice is required for any of above services 5.40 5.40 VAT liability depends on what invoice is for

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

P
age 91



APPENDIX 4PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Planning Application Fees

Charges 

2019/20

£

Outline Planning Permission

For every 0.1ha up to 2.5ha 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

For outline applications with a site area exceeding 2.5ha 11,432.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each 0.1ha over 2.5ha to a maximum £150,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Alterations or extensions to existing dwellings ("householder 

applications) 206.00 Non business - no VAT charge

2 or more dwellings 407.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Erection of dwellings for each dwelling up to 50 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

For developments of more than 50 dwellings 22,859.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each dwelling over the 50th, to a maximum of £300,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Other dwellings where no more than 40sqm floorspace 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

between 40 and 75spm floorspace 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Every additional 75sqm floorspace created up to 3750spm 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Where floorspace exceeds 3750spm 22,859.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each additional 75spm to a maximum of £300,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

For every 0.1ha not exceeding 5ha 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

For a site area exceeding 5ha 22,859.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each additional 0.1ha above 5ha to a maximum of 

£300,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

For no more than 465sqm floorspace created 96.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Between 465 and 540spm floorspace created 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Between 540 and 4215spm plus 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each 75spm of additional floorspace over 540spm created 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Exceeding 4215sqm 22,859.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each additional 75sqm above 4215sqm to a maximum of 

£300,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Application Type:

Full Applications and Applications for Approval of Reserved 

Matters following an Outline Permission

Alterations or extensions to existing dwellings

Erection of dwellings

Other buildings

Plant or machinery

Agriculltural Buildings

P
age 92



APPENDIX 4PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

No more than 465sqm floorspace created 96.00 Non business - no VAT charge

When more than 465sqm floorspace created 2,580.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Buildings or land, including caravan sites 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

A building to more than one dwelling for each additional dwelling 

not exceeding 50 dwellings 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

More than 50 dwellings 22,859.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each dwelling over the 50th subject to a maximum of 

£300,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Car parks, service roads, accesses at existing developments 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Other operations for every 0.1ha up to £2028 maximum 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Relating to the business on the premises 132.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Advance direction signs to a business 132.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Other advertisements 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Agriculture, forestry or demolition proposals 96.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Change of use *refer to guidance 96.00

Change of use including building operations * refer to guidance 206.00

Telecommunications 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Renewal of temporary permission 150.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Variation or removal of a condition 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

- Existing use or operation - lawful not to comply with a condition 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Existing use or operation same as full PP

- Proposed development half the normal fee Non business - no VAT charge

If related to alterations to a dwelling house including outbuildings, 

walls etc 34.00 Non business - no VAT charge

All other developments 116.00 Non business - no VAT charge

If a householder application 34.00 Non business - no VAT charge

In any other case 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Application for Permission in Principle

Changes of Use

Glasshouses and Polytunnels

No Buildings Created

Advertisements

Prior Notifications and Approvals

Other Applications

Lawful Development Certificates

Confirmation of Compliance with Condition(s) on a Permission

Applications for Non-Material Changes to Planning Permission

P
age 93



APPENDIX 4PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

For each 0.1ha site area 402.00

If a householder application 57.00 Non business - no VAT charge

If an application for major development 575.00 Non business - no VAT charge

In any other case 195.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Applications for a Grant of Replacement Planning Permission 

Subject to a New Time Limit

P
age 94



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT

Householder development including alterations and extensions. 72.00 13.00 85.00 Standard rate 

Change of use including siting of caravans. 150.00 40.00 190.00 Standard rate 

Development of 1-10 dwellings, or residential development on sites of less than 0.50 ha including 

changes of use to residential. 300.00

£220 for 1st dwelling; and 

£130 for each additional 

dwelling. Standard rate 

Development of 11-50 dwellings, or residential development on sites of over 0.50 ha but less than 1.0 ha 

including changes of use to residential.

480 (for 11 or >0.5ha) 

plus £60 for each 

dwelling above 11 up 

to a max of £2,820

£1,000 for the 10th dwelling; 

and £65 for each additional 

dwelling. Standard rate 

Development of 51+ dwellings, or residential development on sites of more than 1.0 including changes 

of use to residential. 3,000.00

Minimum fee £3,000 with 

additional fee subject to 

negotiation dependent upon 

complexity of proposal (PPA 

encouraged) and resources 

required. Standard rate 

Non residential development up to 499 square metres floor area or 0.50 hectare site area. 150.00 50.00 200.00 Standard rate 

Non residential development of over 500 and 999 square metres floor area or between 0.51 and 1.0 

hectares site area. 300.00

£250 plus £125 for each 

additional 100m²; or £1,000 

for each 0.1 ha Standard rate 

Non residential development of over 1000 and 4999 square metres floor area or between 1.1 and 2.0 

hectares site area.

500 plus £50 for each 

100 sqm up to 4,900 

sqm

£825 for 1000m² plus £75 for 

each additional 100m² or 0.1 

ha. Standard rate 

Non residential development of over 5000 square metres floor area or over 2.1 hectares site area. 3,000.00

£3,000 with additional fee 

subject to negotiation 

dependent upon complexity of 

proposal (PPA encouraged). Standard rate 

Alterations to non-residential development where no new floor area space is created. 72.00 28.00 100.00 Standard rate 

Variation or removal of planning conditions, Telecommunications development, Certificates of Lawful 

Development, Advertisements, and Listed Building Advice. 72.00

£80.00;                                             

Alterations to a listed building 

£120.00; Additional site visit 

£125.00 Standard rate 

Exemptions and Reductions

Proposals by parish and town councils and non profit making organisations No Charge No Charge

Proposals relating to the needs of persons with disabilities. No Charge No Charge

Proposals by registered social landlords No Charge No Charge

Proposals relating to a proposal on a property subject to an article 4 direction No Charge No Charge

Proposals form part of a scheme of works covered by the Partnership Scheme in Conservation Areas No Charge No Charge

Where a proposal covers more than one category of development the highest of the relevant fees will be charged.

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES-PRE APPLICATION ADVICE

P
age 95



APPENDIX 4

SPORTS CHARGES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Football Pitch per match under-10's 17.00 0.00 17.00 Standard rate

Football Pitch per match under-16's 22.00 0.00 22.00 Standard rate

Football Pitch per match Adults 35.00 0.00 35.00 Standard rate

Football Pitch unauthorised use 80.00 0.00 80.00 Standard rate

Bowls per hour n/a n/a charge no longer applicable

Bowls seasonal ticket n/a n/a charge no longer applicable

Please avoid single lets for 24 hours or more and series of lets.

If pitch/court is a single let for 24hours or more, income is exempt and therefore no VAT is charged.

If pitch/court is a series of lets and fulfills ALL of the following criteria, income is exempt (no VAT charged):

1. 10 or more lets/sessions booked

2. Each let is for the same activity

3. Each let is in the same place

4. The interval between each let is at least 1 day, but no more than 14 days

5. The series of lets is paid for as a whole and there is no provision for a refund

6. The facilities are let out to a school, club, association or organisation such as local league

7. The person(s) to whom facilities are let has exclusive use of them during the sessions

P
age 96



APPENDIX 4

Homeless Hostel Rent and Charges 

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £

 - Rent element only per week 156.80 0.00 156.80 Exempt

 - Rent element only per night 25.40 0.00 25.40 Exempt

 - Service Charge (Heating, lighting, water) - per wk 21.00 0.00 21.00 Exempt

 - Service Charge (Heating, lighting, water) - per night 3.00 0.00 3.00 Exempt

TOTAL CHARGE PER WEEK 177.80 177.80

TOTAL CHARGE PER NIGHT 28.40 28.40

P
age 97



APPENDIX 4

HMO LICENCE FEES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £

HMO with up to 5 lets 500.30 -500.30 0.00 Removed

Variation of existing licence 0.00 0.00 0.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Charge for Immigration inspections 76.00 0.00 76.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Process of initial application cost - Part 1 479.00 0.00 479.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Post approval application cost - Part 2 469.00 0.00 469.00 Non business - No VAT charge

P
age 98



APPENDIX 4

Housing Act Notice

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £

Hazard Awareness Notice (Owner Occupier) No Charge 0.00 No Charge Exempt

Hazard Awareness Notice (private rented sector) 100.00 0.00 100.00 Exempt

Improvement Notice; Prohibition Order; Demolition 

Order - (for one hazard) 200.00 0.00 200.00 Exempt

Improvement Notice; Prohibition Order; Demolition 

Order - (for each additional hazard included within 

the Notice / Order) 60.00 0.00 60.00 Exempt

Property inspection and report (per hour) 95.00 0.00 95.00 ExemptP
age 99



APPENDIX 4
PROPERTY SERVICES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Naming of a new street £92.80 per street. £92.80 per street. Non business - no VAT charge

Renaming of an existing street at the request of all of its residents. £92.80 for the street 

plus £23.20 per dwelling

£92.80 for the street 

plus £23.20 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on an existing street. £34.80 per dwelling £34.80 per dwelling Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development 

consisting of 1 – 5 plots.

£34.80 per dwelling £34.80 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development 

consisting of 6 – 10 plots.

£ 29.00 per dwelling £ 29.00 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development 

consisting of 11 - 29 plots.

£ 23.20 per dwelling £ 23.20 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development 

consisting of 30 - 74 plots.

£ 17.40 per dwelling £ 17.40 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development 

consisting of 75 + plots

£13.35 per dwelling £13.35 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Addition or alteration of a name to an existing dwelling. £ 34.80 per dwelling £ 34.80 per dwelling Non business - no VAT charge

Changes to a development after initial application for naming and 

numbering has been processed.

£ 23.20 per dwelling £ 23.20 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

P
age 100



APPENDIX 4

Current 3% Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Hire of Council Chamber 20.80 0.60 21.40 Standard rate 

Hire of Meeting Room 20.80 0.60 21.40 Standard rate 

Hire of Committee Room 20.80 0.60 21.40 Standard rate 

Hire of Haven Room 20.80 0.60 21.40 Standard rate 

Refreshments at meetings 14.70 0.40 15.10 Standard rate 

Sale of Electoral Registers - FIXED BY STATUTE

* These charges are per hour of rental

CIVIC AND ELECTORAL

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

Reserve Purpose

Balance 

01.04.19 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance 

31.03.20

Net Change in 

Year

Balance 

31.03.21

Net Change in 

Year

Balance 

31.03.22

Net Change in 

Year

Balance 

31.03.23

Net Change in 

Year

Balance 

31.03.24

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £ £'000 £

Capital Funding 4,042 1,099 (1,365) 3,776 932 4,708 985 5,693 1,025 6,718 876                7,594

Transformation 985 5 (33) 957 -                     957 -                     957 -                     957 -                     957

ICT 367 -                     (45) 322 (30) 292 (30) 262 (30) 232 (30) 202

Repairs and Renewals 689 35 (41) 683 (6) 677 26 703 35 738 35                  773

Housing 1,070 23 (302) 791 (3) 788 -                     788 -                     788 -                     788

Controlling Migration Fund 530 -                     (530) -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Tax 1,427 -                     -                     1,427 -                     1,427 -                     1,427             -                     1,427 -                     1,427

Insurance 290 -                     -                     290 -                     290 -                     290                -                     290 -                     290

Risk Mitigation Reserve 109 252 -                     361 220 581 227 808                233 1,041 239                1,280

9,509 1,414 (2,316) 8,607 1,113 9,720 1,208 10,928 1,263 12,191 1,120 13,311

RESERVE MOVEMENTS SUMMARY

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6 
 

Asset Strategy Update – January 2019 
  
Strategic Objective 1  
 
‘Over the next three years we will fundamentally review our property holdings and explore all options 
for underused, costly and inefficient assets’.  
 
Over the past 12 months we have:  
 

 Reviewed rents in respect of our income-generating portfolio, seeking to increase them where possible  

 An additional 15 locations have been equipped with remote access technology 
 

 
Strategic Objective 2  
 
‘Over the next three years we will review all of our community asset holdings and assess the long term 
options for their use. This will include consideration of community asset transfer together with looking 
at alternative uses that may better meet our corporate objectives’.  
 
Over the past 12 months we have:  
 

 Entered into negotiations on the possible sale of a sub-station site in the town  
 

Strategic Objective 3  
 
‘Over the next three years we will review our office accommodation needs. This will include exploring 
options for sharing with others, making better use of what we already have and looking at whether 
better opportunities exist for us elsewhere. It will also include looking at how we work and whether 
opportunities exist for mobile and home working’.  
 

 We have continued the successful new ways of working regime amalgamating various internal teams 
into remodelled and highly efficient office spaces 

 Freed up additional office space within the Municipal Buildings to facilitate letting of large areas to 
DWP, LCC Registrars Service, Lincolnshire Community and Voluntary Service (CVS), Humberside, 
Lincolnshire and North Yorkshire Community Rehabilitation Company (HLNY CRC Ltd) and other 
potential occupiers with a view to further reducing our own costs 

 There are now 677 staff, working for 15 different organisations who use the Municipal Buildings 

 Technology solutions to enable mobile working implemented, and used regularly by Building Control, 
Housing and Town Centre Services. 
 

Strategic Objective 4  
 
‘Over the next three years we will maximise the use of our Asset Management Software. We will do this 
to ensure that we can better monitor and report information about our portfolio and strengthen our 
decision making in relation to Strategic Asset Management’.  
 

 Refined and updated our migrated primary asset information to better inform decision making 
 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7 

 

Capital Strategy – 2019/20 update 

 

Following the publication of revised guidance by CIPFA and MHCLG, the Council approved 

an amended Capital and Treasury Strategy in April 2018 (the Strategy and its appendices 

can be viewed at 

http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1165&Ver=4 ) 

 

For 2019/20 it is considered that a light touch refresh is appropriate, given the relatively short 

space of time that has elapsed since the amended Strategy was approved. 

 

Legislative framework 

There has been no change to the framework since the approval of the amended 2018/19 

Strategy, although there is concern that some councils are undertaking significant activities 

in respect of both borrowing and commercial property investment, and CIPFA and the 

Government have indicated that these are areas where they will continue to review the 

position and will act if considered appropriate. 

However, there is one item where a minor adjustment is required, following dialogue with the 

Council’s appointed auditors, the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) approved in April is 

being slightly amended from 31 March 2019 to reflect the requirement to provide an element 

of MRP annually. 

 

The Council’s Financial Position 

The projected position for 2019/20 and for the further four years to 2023/24 are shown in the 

draft budget report and appendices. There continues to be pressure on both revenue and 

capital resources and therefore careful management will be required to balance spending 

needs and resources across the whole of the Council’s operations. 

 

2018/19 update 

The amended 2018/19 Strategy recommended the purchase of capital Property Fund 

holdings up to the value of £20m, and this was concluded in the third quarter of this year (the 

Audit and Governance Committee has received updates during the year). At the time of 

preparing this report, £14m of fixed long term borrowing for 50 years had been undertaken, 

at an average interest rate of 2.5%. The remainder is being funded from cash resources in 

the short term, and further long term borrowing is set to take place before the end of the 

2018/19 financial year. 

 

 

 

Page 107

http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1165&Ver=4


 

Governance 

The current Strategy set out the governance arrangements considered necessary to ensure 

that the Council receives regular updates on progress with the Strategy, and that best 

practice is observed. The election of the new Council in May 2019 will be accompanied by 

training to provide members with sufficient knowledge to undertake their roles. There are no 

changes proposed to the project development, assessment, approval and monitoring 

processes currently in place. 

 

Risks and Mitigations 

The Strategy is very clear that there are risks associated with the purchase of capital 

Property Fund holdings, and they are set out, along with their proposed mitigations, in the 

Strategy approved in April. 

 

 

 

Page 108



1 

 

Appendix 8 
 
 

Boston Borough Council 
 
 
 

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 

 
 
 

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 
and Annual Investment Strategy 2019/20 

 
 

 
 

 
Effective from 31 March 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 109



2 

 

Index                Page No 
 

1. Introduction           3-7 
1.1 Background            
1.2 Reporting requirements          
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20       
1.4 The Current Treasury Position at 30 November 2018                        
1.5 Training           
1.6  Treasury management consultants        
 

2. The Capital Prudential Indicators 2018/19 to 2023/24     8-11  
2.1 Introduction 
2.2 Capital expenditure plans 
2.3 The Council’s borrowing need (Capital Financing Requirement)  
2.4 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 

 2.5   Core funds and expected investment balances  
 2.6. Affordability Prudential Indicators  

 
3. Borrowing         12-15 

3.1 Current Portfolio Position 
3.2 Treasury indicators: limits to borrowing activity 
3.3 Maturity Structure of Borrowing 
3.4 Prospects for interest rates 
3.5 Borrowing strategy  
3.6 Policy of borrowing in advance of need 

  
4. Annual Investment Strategy       16-21 

4.1 Investment policy 
4.2 Creditworthiness policy 

  4.3 Country Limits 
4.4 Investment Strategy 
4.5 Investment reporting 
 

5. Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation        22 
 

6. The Treasury Management Role of the Chief Finance Officer 
(Section 151 Officer)               23 
 

7. Appendices          24-25 
7.1 Specified and Non-Specified Investments  

 7.2 Interest rate forecasts 2018-2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



3 

 

1.  INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Background 
 
The Council is required to operate a balanced budget annually, which broadly means 
that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury 
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with 
cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk 
counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s risk appetite, 
providing adequate security and liquidity initially before considering investment return. 
  
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of 
the Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that the Council 
can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer-term cash may 
involve arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses. 
On occasion, when it is prudent and economic, any debt previously drawn may be 
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical, 
as the balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to 
meet spending commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for 
larger capital projects.  The treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs 
of debt and the investment income arising from cash deposits affecting the available 
budget.  Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances, it is 
paramount to ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as a loss of principal 
will in effect result in a loss to the General Fund Balance. 
 
Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury 
function, these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising 
usually from capital expenditure), and are separate from the day to day treasury 
management activities. 
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines treasury 
management as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 

 
Revised reporting is required for the 2019/20 reporting cycle due to revisions of the 
Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) Investment 
Guidance, the MHCLG Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance, the CIPFA 
Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code.  The primary reporting 
changes include the introduction of a capital strategy, to provide a longer-term focus 
to the capital plans, and greater reporting requirements surrounding any commercial 
activity undertaken under the Localism Act 2011.  The capital strategy is being 
reported separately. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



4 

 

1.2 Reporting Requirements 
 

1.2.1 Capital Strategy 
 
The CIPFA revised 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require, for 
2019/20, all local authorities to prepare an additional report, a capital strategy report, 
which will provide the following:  
 

 a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services; 

 an overview of how the associated risk is managed; 
 the implications for future financial sustainability. 

 
The aim of the capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the full council 
fully understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital strategy 
requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite. 
 
The capital strategy is reported separately from the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement; non-treasury investments will be reported through the former. This 
ensures the separation of the core treasury function under security, liquidity and yield 
principles, and the policy and commercialism investments usually driven by 
expenditure on an asset.  The capital strategy shows: 
 

 the corporate governance arrangements for these types of activities; 
 any service objectives relating to the investments; 
 the expected income, costs and resulting contribution;  
 the debt related to the activity and the associated interest costs;  
 the payback period (MRP policy);  
 for non-loan type investments, the cost against the current market value;  
 the risks associated with each activity. 

 
Where a physical asset is being bought, details of market research, advisers used 
(and their monitoring), ongoing costs and investment requirements and any credit 
information will be disclosed, including the ability to sell the asset and realise the 
investment cash. 
 
If any non-treasury investment sustains a loss during the year, implications upon the 
final accounts and audit process, the strategy and revenue will be reported through 
the same procedure as the capital strategy. 
 
To demonstrate the proportionality between treasury and non-treasury operations, 
high-level comparators are shown throughout this report. 

 
1.2.2 Treasury Management reporting 

 
The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
treasury reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 112



5 

 

Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first 
and most important report covers: 
 

 the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

 a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital 
expenditure is charged to revenue over time); 

 the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are 
to be organised) including treasury indicators; and  

 an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

 
A mid-year treasury management report – This is primarily a progress report and 
will update members on the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 
necessary, and whether any policies require revision (in addition, this Council 
receives quarterly update reports). 
 
An annual treasury report – This is a backward looking review document and  
provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and actual 
treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy. 
 
Scrutiny 
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny - 
Corporate and Community Committee and the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 

1.3   Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 
 
The strategy for 2019/20 covers two main areas: 

  
Capital issues 

 the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators; 
 the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 
Treasury management issues 
 the current treasury position; 
 treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 
 prospects for interest rates; 
 the borrowing strategy; 
 policy on borrowing in advance of need; 
 debt rescheduling; 
 the investment strategy; 
 creditworthiness policy; and 
 the policy on use of external service providers. 

 
These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, MHCLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and MHCLG Investment Guidance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



6 

 

1.4    Recent Treasury experience 
 

The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 30 November 2018 comprised:  
 

Table 1: Current portfolio position 
 

  £m £m Average 
Rate % 

External Borrowing PWLB -   
 Local Authorities 12.50  0.75% 
 Market 1.00  11.13% 

Total Debt   13.50  

     
Investments     
Treasury Investments Banks  10.14 0.61% 
     
Non Treasury  Property Funds  20.81 3.08% 

Total Investments   30.95  

     

The Council’s portfolio of cash balances held at 30 November 2018 is set out in Table 
2 below with the latest valuation of property funds shown in Tables 3 and 4.  

 
Table 2: Counterparty List and Cash Balances at 30 November 2018 

  
Financial 
Institution 

Amount 
£’000 

Length of 
Investment 

Interest 
Rate 

Link colour rating 

HSBC 
2,375 Call 0.43% Orange (12 months) 

14 Current a/c 0.00%  

Santander 3,000 95 day notice 0.85% Red – 6 months 

Barclays 2,000 95 day notice 0.95% Red – 6 months 
 
 
Bank of Scotland 

750 1 year 0.90% Orange (12 months) 
750 1 year 1.05% Orange (12 months) 
250 1 year 1.00% Orange (12 months) 

 1,000 1 year 0.85% Orange (12 months) 
 10,139    

 
Table 3: Property Fund Valuation (Initial £1m Investment) at 30 November 
2018 

 
Fund Initial 

Investment 
£’000 

Current  
Valuation 

£’000 

Capital  
Growth 

      £’000          % 

Black Rock 500 574 74  

Schroders 250 295 45  

Threadneedle 250 268 18  

 1,000 1,137 137 13.7 

 
Table 4: Property Fund Valuation (New Holdings) at 30 November 2018 

 
Fund Initial 

Investment 
£’000 

Current  
Valuation 

£’000 

Capital  
Growth 

      £’000          % 

Black Rock 4,000 4,013 13  

Schroders 4,000 4,058 58  

Threadneedle 3,989 3,882   (107)  

M&G 4,000 3,941 (59)  

AEW 4,000 3,777 (223)  

 19,989 19,671 (318) (1.59) 

 

Page 114



7 

 

The difference between initial investment and current valuation for new property fund 
holdings with Threadneedle, M&G and AEW reflect the premiums payable against the 
Funds’ ‘Net Asset Value’ price at the settlement date. 
 

1.5   Training 
 
The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.  The 
Council has addressed this by targeted training courses for relevant members. 
 
In addition, Officer training is identified through the appraisal process and is also 
supplemented by both targeted training as necessary and technical advice from our 
treasury management advisors. 
 

1. 6  Treasury Management Consultants 
 
The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury solutions as its external treasury 
management advisors. 
  
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon the services of our external service providers. All decisions will be 
undertaken with regards to all available information, including, but not solely, our 
treasury advisers. 
  
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. 
The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which 
their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to 
regular review.  
 
The scope of investments within the Council’s operations now includes both 
conventional treasury investments (the placing of residual cash from the Council’s 
functions), and Commercial Property Fund investments. The Council’s Property Fund 
acquisitions required specialist advice, which was provided by Link Asset Services. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 115



8 

 

 
2.      The Capital Prudential Indicators 2018/19 to 2023/24  

  

2.1    Introduction  
  

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to adopt the CIPFA Prudential 
Code and produce prudential indicators.  Each indicator either summarises the 
expected capital activity or introduces limits upon that activity, reflecting the outcome 
of the Council’s underlying capital appraisal systems.  This report updates currently 
approved indicators.    
  

2.2   The Capital Expenditure Plans   
 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management 
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential 
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital 
expenditure plans. Capital expenditure decisions must have regard to:  
  

 service objectives (e.g. strategic planning);  
 stewardship of assets (e.g. asset management planning); 
 value for money (e.g. option appraisal);  
 prudence and sustainability (e.g. implications for external borrowing and whole 

life costing);    
 affordability (e.g. implications for council tax);  
 practicality (e.g. the achievability of the forward plan).  

 
The revenue consequences of capital expenditure need to be paid for from the 
Council’s own resources.    
  

Capital expenditure can be paid for immediately (by applying capital resources such 
as capital grants and contributions or by use of revenue resources), but if these 
resources are insufficient any residual capital expenditure will add to the Council’s 
underlying borrowing need, measured as the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  
  
The Council is asked to approve the summary capital expenditure projections below. 
The current estimate for 2018/19 is subject to change and will be finalised as part of 
year end accounts process.   
 

Table 1: Estimates of Capital Expenditure and Financing  

 
The Property Funds were part-financed from PWLB long term borrowing, at fixed 
rates averaging 2.5% for 50 years.  
 

 ‘17/18 
Actual 
£’000 

‘18/19 
Est. 

£’000 

‘19/20 
Est 

£’000. 

20/21 
Est. 

£’000 

‘21/22 
Est. 

£’000 

‘22/23 
Est. 

£’000 

‘23/24 
Est. 

£’000 

Capital Expenditure        

     Services 2,215 4,007 4,449 761 623 310 310 

     Property Funds - 20,000 - - - - - 

Total 2,215 24,007 4,449 761 623 310 310 

        

Financed by:        

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 1,989 

 
2,953 

 
2,685 

 
439 

 
439 280 280 

Revenue Resources 226 1,054 1,764 322 184 30 30 

Net financing need 
for the year - 

 
20,000 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- - - 

Page 116



9 

 

It should be noted that as in-year changes to the Capital Programme are made, their 
impact on the prudential indicators will be reported via interim reports to both Cabinet 
and the Audit and Governance Committee.  
 

2.3  The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)  
 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has 
not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a 
measure of the Council’s indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need.  Any 
capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid for through a 
revenue or capital resource, will increase the CFR.   
 

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a 
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with 
each asset’s life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they 
are used. The Council’s MRP policy is shown at 2.4. 
   
The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:  

  
Table 2: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 ‘17/18 
Actual 
£’000 

‘18/19 
Est. 

£’000 

‘19/20 
Est. 

£’000 

‘20/21 
Est. 

£’000 

‘21/22 
Est. 

£’000 

‘22/23 
Est. 

£’000 

‘23/24 
Est. 

£’000 

Capital Financing Requirement 

Total CFR 459 20,459 20,459 20,459 20,459 20,459 20,459 

Movement in CFR - 20,000 - - - - - 

        

Movement in CFR represented by 

Net financing need 
for the year 

 
- 

 
20,000 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

MRP and other 
financing 
movements 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Movement in CFR - 20,000 - - - - - 

Page 117



10 

 

2.4    Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement  
 
If it has a positive Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) the Council is required to 
consider paying off an element of the accumulated positive sum through a charge to 
revenue (known as the Minimum Revenue Provision - MRP). The Council can also 
undertake additional voluntary payments if it chooses (Voluntary Revenue Provision - 
VRP). 
 
MHCLG regulations require the full Council to approve an MRP Statement in 
advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to councils, so long as there 
is a prudent provision.  The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP 
Statement for 2019/20 - 
 
From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing the MRP policy will be either: 
 

 asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 
accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any expenditure 
capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction); or 
 

 depreciation method – MRP will follow standard depreciation accounting 
procedures. 

 
These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the 
asset’s life.  
 
Assets held for Investment purposes 
 
Where the Council holds investment assets it will determine the amount of MRP or 
VRP on the basis of each holding and how any repayment of debt will be made at the 
time that any borrowing falls due to be repaid.  
 
The Council will monitor the performance of its Property Fund holdings on a regular 
basis with performance reported to Audit and Governance Committee quarterly. A 
decision will then be taken at the end of the financial year as to the appropriate level 
of MRP/VRP required. 
 
MRP Overpayments 
 
A change introduced by the revised MHCLG MRP Guidance was the allowance that 
any charges made over the statutory minimum revenue provision (MRP), voluntary 
revenue provision or overpayments, can, if needed, be reclaimed in later years if 
deemed necessary or prudent.  In order for these sums to be reclaimed for use in the 
budget, this policy must disclose the cumulative overpayment made each year.  Up to 
31 March 2019 there have been no VRP overpayments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 118



11 

 

2.5    Core Funds and expected investment balances  
  

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an 
ongoing impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from 
new sources (asset sales, etc).  Detailed below are estimates of the year end 
balances for each resource and anticipated day-to-day cash flow balances (these 
balances will either be held as cash or cash equivalents or be used to support internal 
borrowing).  
  

Table 3: Expected Investment Position  
 

 ‘17/18 
Act. 

£’000 

‘18/19 
Est. 

£’000 

‘19/20 
Est. 

£’000 

‘20/21 
Est. 

£’000 

‘21/22 
Est. 

£’000 

‘22/23 
Est. 

£’000 

‘23/24 
Est. 

£’000 

General Fund 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Earmarked Reserves 8,741 9,509 8,607 9,720 10,928 12,191 13,311 
BTAC 286 286 286 286 286 286 286 

Capital Receipts 239 239 239 239 239 239 239 

Capital Grants 768 598 329 329 329 329 329 
Provisions 1,254 1,254 1,254 1,254 1,254 1,254 1,254 
Collection Fund (308) (308) - - - - - 
Total Core Funds 12,980 13,578 12,715 13,828 15,036 16,299 17,419 
Working Capital (209) (209) (209) (209) (209) (209) (209) 
Surplus Capital 
Resources  

 
541 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Internal Borrowing - (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) 

Expected Investments  
13,312 

 
9,369 

 
8,506 

 
9,619 

 
10,827 

 
12,090 

 
13,210 

Increase/(decrease) in 
expected investments 

 
- 
 

 
(3,943) 

 
(863) 

 
1,113 

 
1,208 

 
1,263 

 
1,120 

 
*balances shown are estimated year end figures and will fluctuate throughout the 
year  

  
2.6.   Affordability Prudential Indicators  

  

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential 
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the 
affordability of the capital investment plans.   These provide an indication of the 
impact of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.  The Council 
is asked to approve the following indicators: 
  

         Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream  
 
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
 

Table 4: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream  
 

% ‘17/18 
Act. 

‘18/19 
Est. 

‘19/20 
Est. 

‘20/21 
Est. 

‘21/22 
Est. 

‘22/23 
Est. 

‘23/24 
Est. 

Services 0.40 0.21 0.32 (0.06) (0.35) (0.48) (0.83) 

Property Funds (0.43) (3.57) (6.65) (6.71) (6.78) (6.84) (6.91) 

Total (0.03) (3.36) (6.33) (6.77) (7.13) (7.32) (7.74) 

  

Page 119



12 

 

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in 
this budget report. 

3.     Borrowing  
  
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service 
activity of the Council. The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s 
cash is organised in accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that 
sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity and the Council’s capital 
strategy. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital 
plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. The strategy covers 
the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions 
and the annual investment strategy. 
  

3.1    Current Portfolio Position 
  
The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2018, with forward projections 
are summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the treasury 
management operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need (the Capital 
Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.  
 

Table 1: Current Portfolio Position 
 

£’000 ‘17/18 
Act. 

£’000 

‘18/19 
Est. 

£’000 

‘19/20 
Est. 

£’000 

‘20/21 
Est. 

£’000 

‘21/22 
Est. 

£’000 

‘22/23 
Est. 

£’000 

‘23/24 
Est. 

£’000 
External Debt        

Debt at 1 April 1,000 1,000 16,459 16,459 16,459 16,459 16,459 

Anticipated change in 
debt 

 
- 

 
15,459 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Actual gross debt at 31 
March 

 
1,000 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

 
459 

 
20,459 

 
20,459 

 
20,459 

 
20,459 

 
20,459 

 
20,459 

(Under)/ over 
borrowing 

 
541 

 
(4,000) 

 
(4,000) 

 
(4,000) 

 
(4,000) 

 
(4,000) 

 
(4,000) 

  
Within the above figures the level of debt relating to Property Fund acquisition 
investment is: 
  
 ‘17/18 

Act. 
‘18/19 
Est. 

‘19/20 
Est. 

‘20/21 
Est. 

‘21/22 
Est. 

‘22/23 
Est. 

‘23/24 
Est. 

Actual Debt at 31 
March £’000 

 
1,000 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

Percentage of total 
external debt % 

 
- 

 
93.92% 

 
93.92% 

 
93.92% 

 
93.92% 

 
93.92% 

 
93.92% 

 
Within the range of prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to 
ensure that the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One of these 
is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short 
term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any 
additional CFR for 2019/20 and the following two financial years.  This allows some 
flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that borrowing is not 
undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes.     
 
The Chief Finance Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  This 
view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this 
budget report.   

Page 120



13 

 

 
 
 
3.2    Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 

 
The operational boundary. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not 
normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the 
CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt and the ability 
to fund under-borrowing by other cash resources. 
 

Table 2: Operational Boundary for External Debt 
 

 ‘18/19 
Est. 
£’m 

‘19/20 
Est. 
£’m 

‘20/21 
Est. 
£’m 

‘21/22 
Est. 
£’m 

‘22/23 
Est. 
£’m 

‘23/24 
Est. 
£’m 

Debt 22 22 22 22 22 22 

Other long term liabilities - - - - - - 

Total 22 22 22 22 22 22 

  
The authorised limit for external debt. This is a key prudential indicator and 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing. This represents a legal limit 
beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by 
the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could be 
afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term. 

 
a. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 

Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either 
the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this 
power has not yet been exercised. 

 
b. The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit: 

 
Table 3: Authorised Limit for External Debt 

 
 ‘18/19 

Est. 
£’m 

‘19/20 
Est. 
£’m 

‘20/21 
Est. 
£’m 

‘21/22 
Est. 
£’m 

‘22/23 
Est. 
£’m 

‘23/24 
Est. 
£’m 

Debt 25 25 25 25 25 25 

Other long term liabilities - - - - - - 

Total 25 25 25 25 25 25 

  

3.3    Maturity structure of borrowing 

 
Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s 
exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for 
upper and lower limits.  The Council is asked to approve the following treasury 
indicators and limits:  
 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 
2019/20 

  

 Lower Upper 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years   0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years  0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years  0% 100% 

Maturity structure of variable interest rate   

Page 121



14 

 

borrowing 2019/20 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

3.4    Prospects for Interest Rates 
  
The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of 
their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The 
following table gives their central view. 
 

  
 

Growth has been healthy since the August MPC meeting which raised the Bank Rate 
to 0.75%, but is expected to weaken somewhat during the last quarter of 2018. At 
their November meeting, the MPC left Bank Rate unchanged, but expressed some 
concern at the Chancellor’s fiscal stimulus in his Budget, which could increase 
inflationary pressures.  The next increase in Bank Rate is forecast to be in May 2019, 
followed by increases in February and November 2020, before ending up at 2.0% in 
February 2022. 
 
The overall longer run future trend is for gilt yields, and consequently PWLB rates, to 
rise, albeit gently.   
 
Rising bond yields in the US have caused some upward pressure on bond yields in 
the UK and other developed economies.  However, the degree of that upward 
pressure has been dampened by how strong or weak the prospects for economic 
growth and rising inflation are in each country, and on the degree of progress towards 
the reversal of monetary policy away from quantitative easing and other credit 
stimulus measures. 
 
From time to time, gilt yields, and therefore PWLB rates, can be subject to exceptional 
levels of volatility due to geo-political, sovereign debt crisis, emerging market 
developments and sharp changes in investor sentiment. Such volatility could occur at 
any time during the forecast period. 
 
Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external 
influences weighing on the UK. The above forecasts (and MPC decisions), will be 
liable to further amendment depending on how economic data and developments in 
financial markets transpire over the next year. Geopolitical developments, especially 
in the EU, could also have a major impact. Forecasts for average investment earnings 
beyond the three-year time horizon will be heavily dependent on economic and 
political developments.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 122



15 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Investment and borrowing rates 
 

 investment returns are likely to remain low during 2019/20 but to be on a gently 
rising trend over the next few years; 
 

 borrowing interest rates have been volatile so far in 2018/19 and have increased 
modestly since the summer.  The initial approach of deferring new long term 
borrowing to finance Property Fund acquisitions by running down spare cash 
balances served well during the third quarter of 2018/19, but with reductions in 
December the decision was taken to borrow; 

 
 there will remain a cost of carry (the difference between higher borrowing costs 

and lower investment returns), to any new long-term borrowing that causes a 
temporary increase in cash balances as this position will, most likely, incur a 
revenue cost. 

 
3.5    Borrowing Strategy  

        
In recent years, the Council maintained a slightly over-borrowed position, and up to 
2017/18 borrowing consisted of a single market loan of £1m repayable in 2051.  
 
During 2018/19, to take advantage of the historically low borrowing rates available, 
the Council increased the amount it borrowed by £15.459m, purchasing holdings in 
Capital Commercial Property Funds. This was undertaken carefully and the rationale 
is set out in the Capital Strategy approved by Council on 30 April 2018, in accordance 
with the Prudential Code and government guidance. At this stage the TMSS creates 
no capacity for further borrowing during the period to 2023/24. Should any 
opportunities arise for potential further borrowing during this time, detailed reports will 
be brought to members for consideration and approval prior to any new borrowing 
being undertaken.  
  

3.6   Policy of borrowing in advance of need 
  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to profit 
from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be 
within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be considered 
carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can 
ensure the security of such funds.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123



16 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4.     Annual Investment Strategy 
   

4.1    Investment Policy – Management of Risk 
 
The MHCLG and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both 
financial and non-financial investments.  This report deals solely with financial 
investments (as managed by the treasury management team).  Non-financial 
investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in the 
Capital Strategy (included in a separate report). 
 
The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: - 
 

 MHCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) 
 CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross 

Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”)  
 CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018   

 
The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and 
then yield (return). 
 
The guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA places a high priority on the management 
of risk. This authority has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk and defines 
its risk appetite by the following means: - 
 

1. Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of 
highly creditworthy counterparties.  This also enables diversification and thus 
avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor 
counterparties are the short term and long-term ratings.   

 
2. Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an 

institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector 
on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political 
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take 
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this 
consideration the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor 
on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that 
information on top of the credit ratings.  

 
3. Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price 

and other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to 
establish the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential 
investment counterparties. 

 
4. This authority has defined the list of types of investment instruments that 

the treasury management team are authorised to use. There are two lists in 
section 7 of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments.  
 

 Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and 
subject to a maturity limit of one year. 

 

Page 124



17 

 

 Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, 
may be for periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex 
instruments which require greater consideration by members and 
officers before being authorised for use. 

 
5. Non-specified investments limit. The Council has determined that it will limit 

the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 90% of the 
total investment portfolio, (see paragraph 4.3). 
 

6. Lending limits, Counterparty limits and duration are set out in paragraph 4.2. 
  

7. This authority will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are 
invested for longer than 365 days, (see paragraph 4.4).   

 
8. Investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a 

specified minimum sovereign rating, (see paragraph 4.3). 
 

9. This authority has engaged external consultants, (see paragraph 1.5), to 
provide expert advice on how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, 
liquidity and yield, given the risk appetite of this authority in the context of the 
expected level of cash balances and need for liquidity throughout the year. 

 
10. All investments will be denominated in sterling. 

 
11. As a result of the change in accounting standards for 2018/19 under IFRS 9, 

this authority will consider the implications of investment instruments which 
could result in an adverse movement in the value of the amount invested and 
resultant charges at the end of the year to the General Fund. This change will, 
in the future, affect the accounting treatment in relation to the gain or loss on 
the value of the Council’s Property Fund Holdings. MHCLG guidance allows 
for a Mandatory Statutory Override to apply for a five year period to 2023/24 
which will see gains/losses taken to an unusable reserve with no resultant 
impact on the General Balance over this period.  

 
However, this authority will also pursue value for money in treasury management and 
will monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for 
investment performance (see paragraph 4.5). Regular monitoring of investment 
performance will be carried out during the year. 
 
Changes in risk management policy from last year. 
 
These criteria are unchanged from last year.  
 

4.2    Creditworthiness Policy 
   
This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services. 
This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from 
the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s.  The 
credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:  
 

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 
 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 
 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 

countries. 
 
This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit Watches and credit Outlooks 
in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads 

Page 125



18 

 

for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative 
creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are used by the Council to 
determine the suggested duration for investments.   
 
The Council will therefore use counterparties within the following durational bands as 
a guide:  
 

 Yellow             5 years  

 Blue*               1 year  

 Orange 1 year 

 Red   6 months 

 Green   100 days  

 No Colour  not to be used 
 

*only applies to nationalised or semi-nationalised UK banks  
 
Counterparty limits are no more than £3m per counterparty and the counterparty 
group limit is £5m, with UK registered/domiciled banks, and for a period of no more 
than one year.  The only exception to the £3m individual limit is if due to cash flow 
reasons all counterparties are being used to their maximum limit then any residual 
balances will be deposited in the Council’s Call Account with HSBC. The balance on 
the call account should not exceed £5m.  
 
Paragraph 1.4 of this Strategy document gives the currently used Counterparties. 
Changes to the investment policy can be authorised by the Section 151 Officer or the 
Deputy Section 151 Officer and thereafter will be reported to the Audit and 
Governance Committee. This is to cover exceptional circumstances so that instant 
decisions can be made in an environment which is both fluid and subject to high risk. 
 
Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term 
rating (Fitch or equivalents) of   F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. There may be 
occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower 
than these ratings but may still be used.  In these instances, consideration will be 
given to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to 
support their use. 
 
All credit ratings will be monitored on a daily basis. The Council is alerted to changes 
to ratings of all three agencies through its use of the Link Asset Services’ 
creditworthiness service.  
  

 if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer 
meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will 
be withdrawn immediately; 
 

 in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in 
movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and 
other market data on a daily basis via its Passport website, provided exclusively 
to it by Link Asset Services. Extreme market movements may result in 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

  
Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition, this 
Council will also use market data and market information to help support its decision 
making process. 
 
UK banks – ring fencing 
The largest UK banks (those with more than £25bn of retail / Small and Medium-sized 
Enterprise (SME) deposits) are required, by UK law, to separate core retail banking 

Page 126



19 

 

services from their investment and international banking activities by 1st January 
2019. This is known as “ring-fencing”. Whilst smaller banks with less than £25bn in 
deposits are exempt, they can choose to opt up. Several banks are very close to the 
threshold already and so may come into scope in the future regardless. 
Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global financial crisis. 
It mandates the separation of retail and SME deposits from investment banking, in 
order to improve the resilience and resolvability of banks by changing their structure. 
In general, simpler, activities offered from within a ring-fenced bank (RFB) will be 
focused on lower risk, day-to-day core transactions, whilst more complex and “riskier” 
activities are required to be housed in a separate entity, a non-ring-fenced bank 
(NRFB). This is intended to ensure that an entity’s core activities are not adversely 
affected by the acts or omissions of other members of its group. 
 
While the structure of the banks included within this process may have changed, the 
fundamentals of credit assessment have not. The Council will continue to assess the 
new-formed entities in the same way that it does others and those with sufficiently 
high ratings (and any other metrics considered) will be considered for investment 
purposes. 
 

4.3   Country limits 
 
Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the Council’s total investment 
portfolio to non-specified investments, countries, groups and sectors.   
 

1. Non-specified investment limit. The Council has determined that it will limit 
the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 90% of the 
total investment portfolio. 

2. Country limit. The Council has determined that it will only use approved 
counterparties from the UK and from countries with a minimum sovereign 
credit rating of AA-. The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as 
at the date of this report are shown below.  This list will be added to, or 
deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy.  

3. Other limits. In addition: 

 no more than 20% will be placed with any non-UK country at any time; 
 limits in place above will apply to a group of companies; 
 sector limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness. 

 
   Approved Countries for Investment  

 

AAA                      

 Australia 

 Canada 

 Denmark 

 Germany 

 Luxembourg 

 Netherlands  

 Norway 

 Singapore 

 Sweden 

 Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

Page 127



20 

 

 Finland 

 U.S.A. 

 

 

AA 

 Abu Dhabi (UAE) 

 France 

 Hong Kong 

 U.K. 

 

AA- 

 Belgium  

 Qatar 

 

4.4    Investment Strategy 
   

    In-house funds 
 
Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 
requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments 
up to 12 months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing for longer 
periods. While most cash balances are required in order to manage the ups and 
downs of cash flow, where cash sums can be identified that could be invested for 
longer periods, the value to be obtained from longer term investments will be carefully 
assessed. For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its 
instant access call account and notice accounts (30 day and 95 day) in order to 
benefit from the compounding of interest.  The Council’s core funds available for 
investment are detailed in Table 3, paragraph 2.5 of this strategy.  
 

 If it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time horizon 
being considered, then consideration will be given to keeping most investments 
as being short term or variable. 
 

 Conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to fall within that time period, 
consideration will be given to locking in higher rates currently obtainable, for 
longer periods. 

 
    Investment return expectations 

 
Bank Rate is forecast to increase steadily but slowly over the next few years to reach 
2.00% by quarter 1 of 2022.  Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends (March) are:  
 

 2018/19          0.75%   
 2019/20          1.25% 
 2020/21          1.50% 
 2021/22          2.00%   

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 128



21 

 

 
 
 

 
The Council is budgeting for investment returns over its Medium Term Financial 
Strategy as shown below:  

 
Year Cash 

Balances 
% 

Property 
Funds 

% 

2018/19 0.70 3.50 

2019/20 1.00 3.00 

2020/21 1.30 3.00 

2021/22 1.40 3.00 

2022/23 1.40 3.00 

2023/24 1.50 3.00 

  
The overall balance of risks to these forecasts is currently skewed to the upside and 
is dependent on how strong GDP growth turns out, how quickly inflation pressures 
rise and how quickly the Brexit negotiations move forward positively.   
 
Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for greater 
than 365 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements 
and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the 
availability of funds after each year-end. They relate at this stage to the capital 
investment in Property Funds.   
 
The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicator and limit:  
 

Maximum principal sums invested > 365 days 

 ‘19/20 ‘20/21 ‘21/22 ‘22/23 ‘23/24 

Principal sums 
invested > 365 days 

 
£21m 

 
£21m 

 
£21m 

 
£21m 

 
£21m 

 
4.5    Investment reporting  

 
At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report and a mid-year update report will also be 
presented to the Audit and Governance Committee.  Any significant issues on a 
quarterly basis will be reported as part of the quarterly Finance and Performance 
report to Cabinet and any issues of concern regarding governance (for example risks 
concerning counterparties) will be reported to the next meeting of the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 129



22 

 

 
 
 
 

5.    Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation 
 
The table below shows in terms of governance arrangements the various levels of 
responsibility with regards to the treasury function. 

 
Table 1:  Treasury Management Governance Arrangements 

 

Area of Organisation Responsibilities 

1.Full Council 1.1  Approval of the annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement (TMSS) and any changes recommended by the 
Audit and Governance Committee 

2.Cabinet 2.1  Budget consideration and approval 
2.2  Updates on service and financial performance 

3.Overview and Scrutiny - 
Corporate and 
Community Committee 

3.1  Scrutiny of service and financial performance 

4. Audit and Governance 
Committee 

4.1  Approval of/amendments to the adopted clauses, 
TMSS and treasury management practices 
4.2  Reviewing the TMSS and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body 
4.3  Approval of the division of responsibilities 
4.4  Receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and 
ensuring recommendations are followed-up 
4.5  Approving the selection of external service providers 
and agreeing terms of appointment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 130



23 

 

 
 
 
 

6.    The Treasury Management Role of the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 
Officer) 

 
The S151 Officer’s main functions with regards to treasury are to:  

 recommend clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, review 
them regularly, and monitor compliance 

 submit regular treasury management policy reports 
 submit budgets and budget variations 
 receive and review management information reports 
 review the performance of the treasury management function 
 ensure the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the 

effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function 
 ensure the adequacy of internal audit, and liaise with external audit; and 

recommend the appointment of external service providers 
 preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, 

non-financial investments and treasury management, with a long term timeframe  
 ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent 

in the long term and provides value for money 
 ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial 

investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority 
 ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure 

on non-financial assets and their financing 
 ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not 

undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level 
of risk compared to its financial resources 

 ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, 
monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and 
long term liabilities 

 provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including 
material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial 
guarantees  

 ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk 
exposures taken on by an authority 

 ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally 
provided, to carry out the above 

 creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non 
treasury investments will be carried out and managed, to include the following: 

 
o Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment and 

risk management criteria for any material non-treasury investment 
portfolios; 

  
o Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and 

schedules), including methodology and criteria for assessing the 
performance and success of non-treasury investments;          

  
o Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and 

schedules), including a statement of the governance requirements 
for decision making in relation to non-treasury investments; and 
arrangements to ensure that appropriate professional due diligence 
is carried out to support decision making; 

 

Page 131



24 

 

o Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules), 
including where and how often monitoring reports are taken; 

  
o Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including how 

the relevant knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury 
investments will be arranged. 

7      Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and Counterparty Risk 
Management  

 
SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, with 
maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where 
applicable. 

 

  Minimum ‘High Credit’ 
Criteria 

1 Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility 

Government Secure 

2 Term deposits with credit rated 
banks and building societies with 
maturities up to one year  

 UK nationalised banks 

 UK part nationalised banks 

 Non-UK domiciled banks* 

Minimum Green colour rating – up to 
100 days 

3 Local Authorities with maturities up 
to one year  

High Security, although Local 
Authorities are not credit rated.  

4 Money Market Funds (CCLA) Minimum AAA rated by one of the 
rating agencies  

5 Business Reserve Accounts and 
Deposit Accounts with credit rated 
banks and building societies  

Minimum Green colour rating – up to 
100 days 

 
* A maximum of 20% of the total portfolio will be invested in non-UK domiciled 
banks operating in countries with a minimum sovereign rating of AA+. 

 
NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not meet the 
specified investment criteria.  A maximum of 90% will be held in aggregate in non-
specified investments.  

 

 Minimum Credit Criteria 

Term Deposits with credit rated deposit 
takers (UK banks and building 
societies). 

Minimum Orange or blue colour rating –in 
excess of 1 year. 

Callable Deposits with credit rated 
deposit takers (UK banks and building 
societies) with maturities greater than 
one year.  

Minimum Orange or blue colour rating –in 
excess of 1 year. 

Forward deals with credit rated deposit 
takers (UK banks and building 
societies)  

Minimum Orange or blue colour rating –in 
excess of 1 year. 

Property funds – in excess of one year* N/a – see comment below 

 
*The use of these instruments can be deemed capital expenditure, and as such will 
be an application (spending) of capital resources.   

 

Page 132



25 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



26 

 

Interest Rate Forecasts 2018 – 2021 

PWLB rates and forecast shown below have taken into account the 20 basis point certainty rate reduction effective as of the 1st November 2012. 
 

 

Bank Rate

Now Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21

Link Asset Services 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.50% 1.50%

Capital Economics 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.25% 1.50% 1.50% 1.75% 1.75% 2.00% -

5yr PWLB Rate

Now Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21

Link Asset Services 1.76% 2.00% 2.10% 2.20% 2.20% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60%

Capital Economics 1.76% 1.95% 2.03% 2.15% 2.40% 2.65% 2.70% 2.75% 2.80% 2.85% -

10yr PWLB Rate

Now Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21

Link Asset Services 2.18% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00%

Capital Economics 2.18% 2.30% 2.43% 2.55% 2.80% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% -

25yr PWLB Rate

Now Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21

Link Asset Services 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40% 3.40%

Capital Economics 2.80% 2.83% 2.96% 3.08% 3.33% 3.58% 3.53% 3.48% 3.43% 3.38% -

50yr PWLB Rate

Now Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21

Link Asset Services 2.68% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.20%

Capital Economics 2.68% 2.65% 2.78% 2.90% 3.15% 3.40% 3.40% 3.40% 3.40% 3.40% -

P
age 134



 Boston Borough Council 
Pay Policy Statement 2018/19 

 

  

         Appendix 9 

 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 23/24 

 
2019/20 Pay Policy Statement 

 
This statement will be approved by the council each year annually by the end 
of March. Any changes to this statement should be approved by Council.  
 
Overview 
Each local authority has the autonomy to take its own decisions on pay and 
pay policies. The 2019/20 statement reflects current practice and existing 
policies at Boston Borough Council. 
 
Legislation  
Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to produce a 
Pay Policy Statement for each financial year.  
 
Policy Statement 
We are committed to providing quality public services that provide value for 
money for our residents. In order to do this we must employ high quality staff 
and reward them appropriately and fairly. In today’s challenging economic 
climate we must also ensure that we control our employment costs. 
 
Remuneration of senior officers 
The Chief Officer Employment Panel has traditionally made recommendations 
to Council on the level of remuneration to be offered to new appointees. The 
Panel usually considers relevant evidence in relation to other salaries at the 
Council, budget constraints, market conditions e.g. recruitment difficulties and 
rates as well as other information when reaching a decision to make a 
recommendation. The Chief Officer Employment Panel has the delegated 
authority to appoint to Chief Officer Posts other than for the Chief Executive/ 
Head of Paid Service which is a decision reserved for Full Council.  
 
Full Council should be offered the opportunity to vote before large salary 
packages are offered in respect of a new appointment. The Secretary of State 
considers that £100,000 is the right level for that threshold to be set. For this 
purpose, salary packages should include salary, any bonuses, fees or 
allowances routinely payable to the appointee and any benefits in kind to 
which the officer is entitled as a result of their employment.  
 
Information on the remuneration of senior officers can be found in the annual 
statement of accounts and under the Transparency Agenda on the Council’s 
website.  
 
Chief Executive Remuneration 
The terms and conditions of Chief Executives are generally determined by the 
Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Executives with variation at a 
local level.  
 

Page 135



 Boston Borough Council 
Pay Policy Statement 2018/19 

 

  

 
The actual salary paid to the Chief Executive is published annually in the 
Statement of Accounts.  
 
The salary is a ‘spot’ salary which has no automatic increases except when 
reviewed by the Chief Officer Employment Panel who may recommend 
increases to Council. Any such increases may be given due to exceptional 
performance or to retain an attractive salary package at the market rate.  
Any cost of living increases are normally given after notification from the JNC 
once agreed at a national level.  
 
The level of remuneration set for the post of Chief Executive encompasses 
consideration of a number of elements including the size of the organisation 
and the population to which services are delivered and a number of other 
factors including market conditions.  
 
There are currently no provisions for bonus or performance related pay 
outside of the policies set out above.  
 
Chief Officer Remuneration (including deputies)  
 
The salary is a ‘spot’ salary which has no automatic increases except when 
reviewed by the Chief Officer Employment Panel who may recommend 
increases to council. Any such increases may be given due to exceptional 
performance or to retain an attractive salary package at the market rate.  
 
Any cost of living increases are normally given after notification from the Joint 
Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Officers once agreed at a national 
level.  
 
There are currently no provisions for bonus or performance related pay.. 
Additional pay will only be paid in exceptional circumstances where significant 
additional work has to be undertaken outside of the course of normal duties.  
 
The actual salaries paid to Chief Officers are published annually in the 
Statement of Accounts under the transparency agenda.  
 
Joint Authority Duties  
Where a senior officer takes up a post shared with one or more authorities the 
salary costs (including on costs) are to be shared with each authority. The 
share will depend on each circumstance and will be agreed with the relevant 
Chief Executives. Where additional responsibility is given, an increase in pay 
or honorarium may be awarded to reflect the size of the additional 
duties/responsibilities. The cost of the increase is normally added to the basic 
salary and the total is shared between partners or apportioned accordingly. 
 
Returning Officer Fees 

The fees and charges for European, UK Parliamentary and County Council 
elections are set by external bodies at each relevant election however, there 
are no express statutory provisions governing fees payable to Returning 

Page 136



 Boston Borough Council 
Pay Policy Statement 2018/19 

 

  

Officers for local government elections. Historically, the setting of fees for the 
administration of District and Parish elections have therefore been the 
responsibility of the Democratic Services Manager based on the Lincolnshire 
county wide scale of fees and reviewed on an annual basis.  
 

The Returning Officer’s fees are regarded as a special responsibility payment 
in relation to the independent duties carried out. They are personal to the 
Returning Officer and in addition to salary for performing the duties which a 
Returning Officer is required to perform.  
 
Employment of officers in receipt of a local government pension scheme 
payment and/or redundancy/severance pay from this or another 
authority  
Any appointment to a post at Boston Borough Council is made upon merit and 
is subject to the normal pre-employment checks undertaken for all prospective 
employees. Provisions relating to redundancy pay in the Redundancy 
Payments (Continuity of Employment in Local Government, etc) (Modification) 
Order 1999 still applies. The Government may be bringing in rules during 
2018 regarding the recovery of exit/compensation payments for senior officers 
where they subsequently take up other paid work in a local authority. If these 
rules are brought into force mid-year our Pay Policy shall be deemed to 
comply with any new rules and will be updated for the following financial year.  
 
Contract for Services 
All of the facts will be taken into account where a former employee is put 
forward or puts themselves forward for a contract for services. Where work is 
sought under a contract for services from officers in receipt of severance pay 
from this authority each situation will be judged upon merit however such a 
contract would only be offered in exceptional circumstances.   
 
Other posts may be filled under a contract for services where a business case 
exists for doing so. Due regard should be paid to the requirements of Her 
Majesty’s Revenues & Customs and IR35 regulations and the particular 
requirements on public sector employers when making any such 
arrangements. Any appointment will be dealt with on a case by case basis. 
The ‘recovery regulations’ will need to be considered in any such decision – 
see the section on ‘Recovery Regulations’ for more information.  
 
Workforce Remuneration  
We have adopted a set of local terms and conditions for the whole workforce 
which are supplemented by those set out under the ‘Green Book’ (National 
Agreement on Pay & Conditions of Service – National Joint Council for Local 
Government Services). Local terms will override terms in the Green Book as 
set out in Boston Borough Council Terms & Conditions of Service 2014. 
 
Any benefits associated with the post are set out in the Boston Borough 
Council Terms and Conditions of Service 1st April 2014.  
 
From 1st April 2014 we have a pay and grading structure which consists of a 
single pay scale with broad-banded grades ranging from Grade 1 to Grade 8 

Page 137



 Boston Borough Council 
Pay Policy Statement 2018/19 

 

  

and a Head of Service band with single spot salaries within the band. All posts 
below Head of Service have and continue to be evaluated using the Local 
Government Single Status Job Evaluation Scheme (LGJES). Individual jobs 
are allocated a number of points following evaluation and allocated a grade 
according to the number of points.  
 
Starting salaries are normally at probationary point of the relevant pay grade 
unless market or other relevant factors such as skills and experience exist to 
create a business case to pay at a higher point within the grade. Any such 
business case should be recorded in writing and retained. 
 
Upper band points are available where an agreed criterion is met related to 
market forces and recruitment/retention matters. The relevant policies should 
be complied with before any upper band payments can be made. 
 
Any cost of living increases are normally given after notification from the 
National Joint Council for Local Government Services once agreed at a 
national level.  
 
Lowest Pay 
The lowest pay point in this scale at 1st April 2019 will be £9.00 per hour.  
 
The Council does not set a formula for the relationship between the lowest 
and highest paid employees. Rather it monitors the levels of pay to ensure 
value for money, fair pay and market conditions.  
 
Apprenticeships  
The Apprentice rate at the Council from April 2019 will be £3.90 per hour for 
the first 12 months. Beyond 12 months the rate for an apprentice is the 
National Minimum Wage for their age group. 
 
Pay multiples 
The highest pay is approximately 4.99 times the median average full time 
equivalent pay at the council (as at 31st March 2019).  
 
The Council does not have a policy to reach a specific pay multiple across the 
workforce.  
 
The use of a single pay spine and an analytical job evaluation scheme 
provides pay transparency across the workforce and set levels of 
remuneration. The same core terms and conditions of employment apply to 
the whole workforce regardless of seniority.  
  
Honorarium/Acting Up 
Where temporary additional duties/responsibilities are given to an existing 
employee, consideration of payment of an honorarium is usually undertaken. 
The amount payable is authorised by the relevant Head of Service following 
an assessment of the exact duties/responsibilities and may be a percentage 
of the difference between the salary of the employee and the post that they 
are covering if only part of the duties are being undertaken or a full increase to 

Page 138



 Boston Borough Council 
Pay Policy Statement 2018/19 

 

  

a higher salary if all duties are being undertaken. Honoraria are only to be 
used on a temporary basis and must be reviewed regularly to ensure 
appropriateness.  
 
Special responsibility payments 
Additional payments may be made in addition to basic salary for additional job 
duties which may not always form part of the core job role. Where these do 
form part of the core duties of the role they will be included and evaluated 
under the relevant Job Evaluation Scheme where available rather than a 
continued supplement being payable. Any such payments are based upon an 
assessment of responsibility, market factors and/or a % of time spent on any 
such duties and are temporary being reviewed at least annually, if not more 
frequently. 
 
Pay flexibility  
Where necessary the use of ‘market supplements’ is used to deal with any 
recruitment or retention difficulties. Such payments may be ongoing or a ‘one-
off’. The use of such practices only applies where a business case has been 
prepared and signed off by the relevant director in conjunction with finance 
approval. Any ongoing supplements should be reviewed regularly and at least 
every 3 years, to ensure there is still a business case to continue payment. 
Employment contracts should be explicit in this regard.  
 
Early termination of employment  
See the Redundancy & Reorganisation Policy and the Pensions & Retirement 
Policy for more information. Severance payments may be made where the 
decision is in the best interests of the Council. Where these are outside of the 
budgetary framework the appropriate approval must be sought. Currently any 
severance packages of over £100,000 (including pay in lieu of notice, 
redundancy pay, pension entitlements, holiday pay, fees or allowances paid) 
should be approved by Full Council and reported in this detail.  
 
Ex gratia payments 
Ex gratia payments may be made in exceptional cases and could be made in 
respect of business continuity or out of pocket costs to employees The normal 
Council procedures relating to budgets are followed in any such cases and 
approval made by the relevant CMT member.   
 
Payments of arrears in respect of Job Evaluation or other re-grading 
In line with the Council’s Job Evaluation Scheme where a person is appointed 
to a new position or substantive and permanent post an evaluation should be 
undertaken after six months service within the role. This is to allow the 
appropriate grade for the post to be established in a timely manner. Where an 
evaluation results in a grade increase the value of the arrears will be limited to 
a period not exceeding 3 years.   
 
Pension provision 
All employees are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme. The 
Scheme requires contributions from employees based up on their earnings 
and from 1st April 2014 is a career average scheme. The employer contributes 

Page 139



 Boston Borough Council 
Pay Policy Statement 2018/19 

 

  

a percentage of pay to the pension fund. This percentage is determined by 
the administering authority based upon actuarial assessments and for 2019-
20 this will be 26.2% in total (made up of a primary percentage rate and a 
secondary rate deficit repayment lump sum per annum). 
 
Elections 
Any employees putting themselves forward for any election duties will be 
required to take relevant leave. Pay for elections work will usually be 
determined by the Returning Officer based upon the Lincolnshire county wide 
scale of fees. 
 
Relocation 
Relocation assistance may be paid to new appointees up to a maximum of the 
Her Majesty’s Revenue & Custom threshold rate. Further details can be found 
in the relevant policy.  

Page 140



         APPENDIX 10 

 

Consultation papers published alongside the provisional finance settlement 

 

Review of Local Authorities’ Relative Needs and Resources 

This consultation seeks views on the approach to measuring the relative needs and 
resources of local authorities, which will determine new baseline funding allocations for local 
authorities in England in 2020/21. 

This consultation proposes to :- 

simplify the assessment of local authorities’ relative needs;  

considers the type of adjustment that will be made to an authority’s relative needs 
assessment to take account of the relative resources available to them to fund local 
services; and  

proposes a set of principles that will be used to design potential transitional 
arrangements and examines how the baseline for the purposes of transition should 
be established. 

Documents can be found at -  

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authorities-relative-needs-and-

resources  

 

 

 

Business Rates Retention reform 

This consultation seeks views on proposals for sharing risk and reward, managing volatility 
in income and setting up the reformed business rates retention system. The reform of the 
business rates retention system will sit alongside wider changes to the local government 
finance system which the government aims to introduce in 2020. 

Documents can be found at -  

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/business-rates-retention-reform  

Page 141

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authorities-relative-needs-and-resources
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authorities-relative-needs-and-resources
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/business-rates-retention-reform


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 28 JANUARY 2019 

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL STRATEGY 
UPDATE – QUARTER 3 2018/19 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The Council fully complies with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy Code of Practice on Treasury Management (2017). This report sets out 
the Treasury Management and relevant capital strategy activities of the Council for the 
period 1 April to 31 December 2018. 
 
In terms of investment returns the Council is now expecting to significantly overachieve 
the initial budget estimate of £117,000 in 2018/19, which did not include returns from 
additional capital Property Fund purchases. The Council is generally keeping cash 
investments short term, although it has also utilised some monies in longer term 
property funds.  As the financial climate changes, who we invest with, and the amount 
invested, is under constant scrutiny, taking into account risk at any particular moment 
in time. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That members note the Treasury Management and Capital Strategy update position as 
at 31 December 2018. 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To effectively manage Treasury risk and protect Council capital. 
 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
There are no alternative recommendations. 
 
 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 143

Agenda Item 3



REASON FOR REPORT 
 
To report the Council’s Treasury Management performance in 2018/19 and in 
compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017 and generally accepted best practice. 
 
Main Report: 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management recommends that 

members be updated on treasury management activities regularly (annual, mid-
year and/or quarterly reports). This report, therefore, ensures this Council is 
implementing best practice in accordance with the Code. 

 
1.2 This report sets out Treasury Management and relevant capital strategy 

performance up to 31 December 2018, and looks ahead to the remainder of the 
year. 

 
1.3 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2018/19, approved by 

Council in February 2018, incorporates the Council’s Annual Investment Strategy, 
which outlines the Council’s investment priorities as follows, ranked in order of 
importance: 

 
 Security of capital; 
 Liquidity; and 
 Yield 

 
1.4 Following the publication of revised guidance, the Strategy Statement was 

subsequently updated and approved by Council on 30 April 2018 making 
provision for commercially focused capital expenditure on property funds and the 
undertaking of borrowing to finance their acquisition. 

 
1.5 The Council also aims to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments 

commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.  In the current 
economic climate it is considered appropriate to keep the majority of investments 
short term to cover cash flow needs, but also to seek out value available in 
periods up to 12 months with highly credit rated financial institutions, using its 
advisors’ (Link Asset Services) suggested creditworthiness approach, including a 
minimum sovereign credit rating and Credit Default Swap (CDS) overlay 
information. 

 
1.6 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) sets Prudential and 

Treasury Indicators which are relevant for the purposes of setting an integrated 
Treasury Management Strategy and are a requirement of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice in Treasury Management. 

 
 
 
  

Page 144



2.  Economic Background 
 

2.1 UK.  After weak economic growth of only 0.1% in quarter one, growth picked up 
to 0.4% in quarter 2 and to 0.6% in quarter 3.  However, uncertainties over Brexit 
look likely to cause growth to have weakened again in quarter four.  After the 
Monetary Policy Committee raised Bank Rate from 0.5% to 0.75% in August, it is 
little surprise that they have abstained from any further increases since then. We 
are unlikely to see any further action from the MPC until the uncertainties over 
Brexit clear.  In the event of a disorderly exit, the MPC have said that rates could 
go up or down, though it is probably much more likely to be down so as to support 
growth.  Nevertheless, the MPC does have concerns over the trend in wage 
inflation which peaked at a new post financial crisis high of 3.3%, (excluding 
bonuses), in the three months to October.  
   

As for CPI inflation itself, this has been on a falling trend, reaching 2.3% in 
November. However, in the November Bank of England Inflation Report, the 
latest forecast for inflation over the two year time horizon was raised to being 
marginally above the MPC’s target of 2%, indicating a slight build up in 
inflationary pressures. 
 
In the political arena, there is a risk that the current Conservative minority 
government may be unable to muster a majority in the Commons over Brexit.  
However, the advisor’s central position is that Prime Minister May’s government 
will endure, despite various setbacks, along the route to Brexit in March 2019.  If, 
however, the UK faces a general election in 2019, this could result in a potential 
loosening of monetary policy and therefore medium to longer dated gilt yields 
could rise on the expectation of a weak pound and concerns around inflation 
picking up. 

 

2.2 EUROZONE.  Growth fell in quarter 3 to 0.2% from 0.4% in quarter 2 but this is 
likely to be a one off blip caused primarily by a one off fall in car production.  The 
ECB forecast growth in 2018 to be 1.9% falling to 1.7% in 2020.  The ECB ended 
its programme of quantitative easing purchases of debt in December, which now 
means that the central banks in the US, UK and EU have all now ended the 
phase of post financial crisis expansion of liquidity supporting world financial 
markets.  
 

2.3 USA.  President Trump’s massive easing of fiscal policy in 2018 fuelled a 
(temporary) boost in consumption in 2018 which generated an upturn in the 
strong rate of growth; this rose from 2.2%, (annualised rate), in quarter 1 to 4.2% 
in quarter 2 and 3.5% in quarter 3.  The strong growth in employment numbers 
has fed through to an upturn in wage inflation which hit 3.1% in November,  
However, CPI inflation overall fell to 2.2% in November and looks to be on a 
falling trend to drop below the Fed’s target of 2% during 2019.  The Fed 
increased rates another 0.25% in December to between 2.25% and 2.50%, this 
being the fifth increase in 2018 and the ninth in this cycle.  However, they did also 
reduce their forecast for further increases from three to two.  
 
 

3. Interest Rate Forecast 
 

Page 145



3.1 The Council’s treasury advisor (Link Asset Services) has provided the following 
forecast: 
 

 
 

3.2 After the August increase in Bank Rate to 0.75%, the first above 0.5% since the 
financial crash, the MPC has since then put any further action on hold, probably 
until such time as the uncertainty of Brexit clears. It is therefore particularly 
unlikely that the MPC will increase Bank Rate in February 2019 ahead of the 
deadline in March for Brexit, if no agreement on Brexit has been reached by then.  
The above forecast, and other comments in this report, are based on a 
central assumption that there is an agreement on a reasonable form of 
Brexit.  In that case, then the advisors think that the MPC could return to 
increasing Bank Rate in May 2019 but then hold fire again until February 2020. 
However, this is obviously based on making huge assumptions which could be 
confounded.  In the event of a disorderly Brexit, then cuts in Bank Rate could well 
be the next move.    
 

3.3 The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably neutral. 
The balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter term PWLB rates are 
probably also even and are broadly dependent on how strong GDP growth turns 
out, how slowly inflation pressures subside, and how quickly the Brexit 
negotiations move forward.  
 

4.  Investment Income  
 

4.1 The Base Rate informs the rates that can be obtained from investments and the 
increase in August 2018 from 0.50% to 0.75% has increased expected returns 
slightly.  
 

4.2 The Council budgeted to receive £117,000 in investment income in 2018/19 
comprising £80,000 from cash investments and £37,000 from the 2016/17 
Property Fund purchases. This estimate excluded any returns from new property 
fund expenditure, approved by Council on 30 April 2018. 

 
 
Investment income earned to 31 December 2018 totalled £310,000, made up of 
£71,000 from cash investments and £239,000 from Property Funds (£29,000 from 
the 2016/17, and £210,000 from the 2018/19 purchases) A significant uplift in 

Page 146



property fund income is now being achieved following purchases in August, 
September and October  totalling £19.989m.   
 
Investment income for the 2018/19 year is now expected to achieve £506,000 
comprising £96,000 from cash investments and £410,000 from Property Funds 
(£39,000 from the 2016/17, and £371,000 from the 2018/19 purchases). As 
previously reported, it is proposed that any investment returns above the costs of 
borrowing are initially placed in a reserve to mitigate the risks of future reductions 
in the funds’ capital value. 
 
Cumulatively, in 2018/19 to quarter 3, the Council achieved an average of 0.66% 
from cash investments and 3.10% from the combined Property Fund purchases.   

 
Exhibit 1 – Investment Income Projection 
 

 
 

4.3 The average interest rates achieved so far on the Council’s cash investments are 
shown in Table 2 below. The table shows that overall performance generally 
compares favourably to the benchmark rates. 

 
Table 2 – Benchmarked rates of return 

 

Benchmark Benchmark Return Council Performance 

7 day  0.58% 
No investments of this type 

held 

1 month 0.61% 0.48% 

 £506,000  

 £117,000  

 £310,000  

£0 

£100,000 

£200,000 

£300,000 

£400,000 

£500,000 

£600,000 

Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Month 

Actual, Budget , and Projected Investment Income  

Projected Outturn 

Budget 

Actual 

In
te

re
st

 r
ec

ei
va

b
le

 

Page 147



3 month  0.79% 0.89% 

6 month  0.91% 
No investments of this type 

held  

12 month  1.05% 0.93% 

 
4.4 Table 3 highlights the level of investment activity and the rates obtained as at 31 

December 2018. Investments are made in line with both Link’s creditworthiness 
guidance and the duration limits applied to each colour banding.   

 
4.5 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy states investments are limited with 

any one institution to no more than £3m invested per institution, and £5m per 
counterparty ‘group’. On 28 working days residual balances in excess of the £5m 
limit were deposited in the Council’s current bank account (HSBC) for cash flow 
reasons (in accordance with para 7.3 of the Treasury Management Strategy). 
 
Table 3 – Counterparty list and Investments held at 31 December  

 

Institutions 
with Cash held 

Amount  
£’000 

Duration Rate 
Most recent Link 
Asset Services 
Colour Rating 

HSBC 7,985 Call 0.43% Orange (12 
months) 

CCLA 3,000 Call 0.74% Yellow 5 Years 

Santander 3,000 95 day notice 0.85% Red – 6 months 

Barclays 2,000 95 day notice 0.95% Red – 6 months 

LLoyds 750 1 year 0.90% Orange (12 
months) 750 1 year 1.05% 

250 1 year 1.00% 

Bank of 
Scotland 

 
1,000 

 
1 year 

 
0.85% 

Orange (12 
months) 

Total 18,735    

 
4.6 As Table 3 indicates, the rates achieved vary between different institutions, for 

different durations which are decided using the colour rating at the point when the 
investment was made.  

 
4.7 The average level of funds available for investment from 1 April to 31 December 

2018 was £14.548m. Of this, an average of £5.641m was available on a 
temporary basis, its level being dependent on the timing of precept and business 
rate pool payments, the receipt of grants and progress on the capital programme.  
 

5 Capital Strategy and Property Funds 
 

5.1 As previously reported, in 2016/17 the council invested £1m in three property 
funds.  Details of these schemes are given below: 

 
Table 4 – Property Funds (initial £1m) 

 

Page 148



Property  
Fund 

Sum 
Invested 

 
£’000 

Fair Value 
31 March 

2018 
£’000 

Fair Value 
31 Dec  
2018 
£’000 

Income 
received 
2018/19 
£’000 

BlackRock  500 564 577 14 

Schroders  250 283 295 6 

Threadneedle  250 264 266 9 

TOTAL 1,000 1,111 1,138 29 

 
5.2 Following approval of the amended Capital Strategy on 30 April 2018, and 

working with the Council’s Treasury advisors, officers undertook a process of due 
diligence and received presentations from the five selected managers in early 
July. 
 

5.3 Whilst there were some slight differences in the make-up of the funds (sector, 
geography, average lease tenure), it was concluded that, as the intention is for 
longer term holdings, in line with the Capital and Treasury Strategy risks would be 
best mitigated by placing roughly equal amounts in each of the five funds.  
 

5.4 At the end of the quarter, £19.989m had been purchased, as shown in Table 5. 
 
Table 5 – Property Funds (new holdings: as at 31 December 2018) 

 
Property  
Fund 

Settlement 
Date 

Capital 
Exp. 

 
£’000 

Fair Value 
at date of 
acq’n 
£’000 

Fair Value 
31 Dec 
2018 
£’000 

Cum. 
gain/(loss) 
at 30 Sept 

£’000 

BlackRock  28.09.18 4,000 4,000 4,036 36 

Schroders  03.09.18 4,000 4,020 4,061 61 

Threadneedle  31.08.18 2,989 2,901 2,898 (91) 

Threadneedle  28.09.18 500 483 483 (17) 

Threadneedle  31.10.18 500 483 482 (18) 

M&G  14.09.18 4,000 3,905 3,895 (105) 

AEW 31.10.18 4,000 3,777 3,749 (251) 

TOTAL  19,989 19,569 19,604 (385) 

 
 

5.5 The difference between purchase price (Capital Expenditure) and fair value at the 
date of acquisition reflects premiums payable or discount received against the 
Funds’ ‘Net Asset Value’ price at the settlement date. 

 
6. Borrowing  

 
6.1 The amended Capital Strategy approved new borrowing of up to £20m to finance 

the purchase of Property Fund units, and the position to the end of December 
2018 is shown below. 
  

6.2 During the period of due diligence running up to the acquisition of holdings in 
August, September and October, officers closely monitored long term PWLB 
rates, and as can be seen in the graph below, this coincided with a steady rising 
trend in the long term fixed rate, from approximately 2.4% to 2.8%.  

Page 149



 
6.3 Discussions with the Council’s advisors concluded that rates were likely to fall 

back from the 2.8%, and therefore the initial financing of the £19.989m 
acquisitions was undertaken using short term borrowing and existing resources.  

 

 
 
 
 
Table 7 – PWLB rates 
 

 
 
 
6.4 Having closely monitored movements through the beginning of December, a 

£10m PWLB 50 year loan was taken out on 10 December at a rate of 2.54%, with 
a further £4m taken out on 13 December at 2.42%. The remainder continues to 
be funded from short term borrowing whilst significant uncertainties about future 
rate movements exist, and further long term borrowing will take place when 
considered appropriate. 

 
  

Page 150



Table 6 – Borrowing at 31 December 2018 
 

 
Amount  
£’000 

Duration Rate 

Long Term Borrowing    

    PWLB 10,000 50 years repayable 
10.12.2068 

2.54% 

    PWLB 4,000 50 years repayable 
13.12.2068 

2.42% 

Total Long Term 
Borrowing 

 
14,000 

  

    

Short Term Borrowing    

Vale of Glamorgan 
Council 

3,000 2 Months – Repayable 
25.01.19 

0.76% 

PCC for Staffordshire 1,500 2 Months – Repayable 
25.01.19 

0.76% 

Northern Ireland 
Housing Executive 

 
5,000 

2 Months – Repayable 
06.02.19 

0.80% 

Total Short Term 
Borrowing 

 
9,500 

  

    

Total Borrowing 23,500   

 
6.5 Interest payable (including that for the existing long term £1m loan) at 31 

December was £128,000, against the year’s original budget of £111,000. Based 
on current projections, the total interest payable for 2018/19 is estimated at 
£275,000 (this assumes that £19.989m long term PWLB borrowing is undertaken 
by 31 March 2019).  

 

6.5 The Council has not borrowed in advance of need during the quarter ended 31 
December 2018.   

 
7.   Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits 

 
7.1 It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the 

affordable borrowing limits. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential 
Indicators, are included in the approved TMSS.  
 

7.2 During the quarter ended 31 December 2018, the Council has operated within the 
treasury and prudential indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement and in compliance with the Council's Treasury Management 
Practices.  The prudential and treasury Indicators are shown in Appendix A. 
 

8.   Other 

 
8.1 Changes in risk appetite 

 
The 2018 CIPFA Codes and guidance notes have placed enhanced importance 
on risk management.  Where an authority changes its risk appetite e.g. for 
moving surplus cash into or out of certain types of investment funds or other 

Page 151



types of investment instruments, this change in risk appetite and policy should be 
brought to members’ attention in treasury management update reports. There has 
been no change in the Council’s risk appetite from that reported previously. 

 

Review Date: 
 
Regular reporting is undertaken in the quarterly Governance Reports, and Annual 
Treasury Management Reports are produced each year. Any significant treasury issues 
arising will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
Treasury Management continues to require close attention given the current financial 
climate. Officers will continue to be vigilant and report any significant issues to this 
Committee. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The entire report 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The General Power of Competence (GPOC) in the Localism Act 2011 allows Councils 
a broad freedom in their operations.  
 
Councils have the general power to borrow under Section 1 of the Local Government 
Act 2003.  
 
The power to invest is set out in the Local Government Act 2003, Section 12, which 
gives the Council the power to invest for any purpose relevant to its functions under 
any enactment, or for the purposes of the prudent management of its financial affairs.  
 
The power that allows councils to spend for capital purposes is included in the Local 
Government Act 2003.  
 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Risk Management 
The Code of Practice sets out the framework for controlling the risks associated with 
treasury management decisions for borrowing and investing.  Ultimately investment 
and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy. The overriding priority is that the security of a deposit takes 
precedence over a return on investment. 
 

The Prudential and Treasury Indicators control the limits for investing and borrowing, to 
ensure that any borrowing is affordable and sustainable and long term borrowing is for 
capital purposes only. 

Page 152



 
Impact on Performance 
There is a requirement to try and balance the risks and rewards from investing our 
available cash resources, as outlined within the Treasury Management Strategy 
2018/19. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
No consultation undertaken.   
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Prudential and Treasury Indicators 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Treasury Management Policy 
and Strategy and Annual 
Investment Strategy for 2018/19 

As part of the MTFS on the Council Website; and 
updated 30 April 2018. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body.   

 
 

Page 153



Appendix A 
 

Prudential and Treasury Indicators  
 

PRUDENTIAL/TREASURY  
INDICATOR 

2018/19 2018/19 Notes 

 Original 
Estimate 

 

  Projected   
Outturn  

 

 

 £’000   £’000  
 

Capital Expenditure  25,847 24,027  

    

Capital Financing Requirement 
as at 31 March 

20,459 20,459  

    

Annual Change in Capital 
Financing Requirement 

 
20,000 

 
20,000 

 

    

In year Borrowing Requirement 20,000 20,000  

    

Ratio of financing costs to net 
revenue stream 

 
% 

 
% 

 

General Fund (1.14) (1.14)  
 

Authorised Limit for external 
debt  
Borrowing and other Long term 
liabilities 
 

           
 
 

25,000 

 
 
 

25,000 

 
 
 

Operational Boundary for 
external debt -  

   

 Borrowing          22,000      22,000  
    
Gross External Debt       (21,000)       (21,000)  
    

Investments 11,239 11,239  

    

Net Borrowing (9,761) (9,761)  

 
 

Page 154



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 28 JANUARY 2019 

SUBJECT: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19 – ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The report asks the Committee to approve the proposed Accounting Policies for the 
2018/19 Statement of Accounts. 
 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Audit and Governance Committee: 
 

1. Approves the Accounting Policies (set out in Appendix A) to be adopted for 
2018/19; and 

2. Delegates’ final approval, prior to inclusion in the Accounts, of any necessary 
minor changes to the Section 151 Officer. 

 
 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To demonstrate compliance with the Accounting Code of Practice. 
 
 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
Not to adopt the policies. 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 155

Agenda Item 4



2 

 

 
1.1 The annual Statement of Accounts is one of the ways that the Council 

demonstrates the stewardship of funds, and its preparation is governed by a series 
of specific requirements relating to its content and format. 

 
1.2 Unless there are major changes to accounting rules and regulation, accounting 

policies do not change significantly between years because the Accounts would 
not be comparable from one year to the next.   

 
1.3 The pre-audit 2018/19 Statement of Accounts will be presented to Audit and 

Governance Committee on 22 May 2019.  The accounting policies will be included 
within the Accounts, and any changes made as a result of the audit process will be 
highlighted and explained in the final report to Audit and Governance Committee 
on 22 July 2019. 

 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICY CHANGES 
 
2.1 As a result of the amendments to the 2018/19 Code of Practice and to ensure 

clarity and consistency within the accounting policies and Financial Statements 
there are a small number of changes required to the Council’s accounting policies 
this year. The main changes are summarised below: 

 
Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets – the policy has been 
strengthened to reflect the accounting requirement for Minimum Revenue 
Provision. 

 
Financial Instruments – the policy has been amended to reflect the changes to 
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018. 
 
Inventories – deleted as values are not material to the Council’s Accounts. 
 
Joint Operation Arrangements – deleted, as none currently exist. 
 
Overheads and Support Services – policy amended to reflect the Council’s 
policy of not recharging these costs to service segments within the Financial 
Statements. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct financial implications to the report.  There are no 
amendments to the accounting policies which would give rise to a material 
impact upon the Council’s financial position. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Section 21(2) of the Local Government Act 2003 requires councils to prepare 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices, which are effected by the 
CIPFA Code of Accounting Practice.  

Page 156



3 

 

 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
No consultation undertaken. 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below: - 
 

Appendix A Proposed 2018/19 Accounting Policies  

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

CIPFA Accounting Code of 
Practice 2018/19 and supporting 
Guidance Notes 
 

Finance office 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
No previous reports on this item have been presented. 
 

 
 

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

          Appendix A 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2018/19 financial year and its position 
at the year-end of 31 March 2019. The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which must be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. 
These practices under Section 21 of the 2003 Act primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  
  
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the 
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In 
particular:  

 

 revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods, is 
recognised when the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in accordance with the 
performance obligations in the contract; 

 supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the date 
supplies are received and their consumption, they are not carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet 
due to their immateriality; 

 expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as 
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made; 

 interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income 
and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather 
than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract; 

 where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor 
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where debts may not be settled, 
the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be 
collected. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
  

 Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice 
of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in 1 month or less at the 
31 March and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

  
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on 
demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 
 

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets  
 

 Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of 
holding non-current assets during the year: 

 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

 revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains 
in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off 

 amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 

Page 159



2 
 

The Council is not required to raise Council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or 
amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its 
overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in 
accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are 
therefore replaced by a Minimum Revenue Provision contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an 
adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two. 
 

Contingent Assets  
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Council.   
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is 
probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 

Contingent Liabilities  
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Council.  Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be 
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured reliably.   
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
 

Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates  
 
Boston Borough Council, as billing authority, acts as an agent, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates 
(NDR) on behalf of the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as a principal, collecting council 
tax and NDR for itself. The Council is required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the Collection Fund) for 
the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework 
for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and central government share proportionately the 
risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 
 
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR  
 
The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the 
Council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount of council tax and 
NDR that must be included in the Council’s General Fund. Therefore, the difference between the income 
included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be 
credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling 
item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax and NDR 
relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 160



3 
 

Employee Benefits  
 
Benefits payable during employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year-end.  They include 
such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits 
for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render 
service to the Council.  An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave) earned by 
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.  
The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in 
which the employee takes the benefit.  The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, 
but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitlements are charged to 
revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 
 
Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an officer’s 
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in 
exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service segment or, where 
applicable, to a corporate service segment at the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of 
those benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund 
Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not 
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, 
appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for 
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund 
and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 
 
Post-Employment Benefits  
 
Employees of the Council are offered membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by 
Lincolnshire County Council. This scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and 
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council. 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
 

 the liabilities of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are included in 
the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the 
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based 
on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projected earnings for current 
employees; 

 liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of x.x% (based on the 
indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bond).  For comparison, 2.6% was used in 2017/18; 

 the assets of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are included in 
the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

- quoted securities – current bid price 
- unquoted securities – professional estimate 
- unitised securities – current bid price 
- property – market value. 

 
 
 

Page 161



4 
 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 
Service cost comprising: 

 current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year – 
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the 
employees worked; 

 past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose 
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 

 net interest on the net defined benefit liability, i.e. net interest expense for the Council – the change 
during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time charged to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. This is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit 
obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period 
– taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of 
contribution and benefit payments. 

Remeasurements comprising:  
 

 the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability 
– charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure; 

 actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not 
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated 
their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. 

 
Contributions paid to the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to 
the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the 
amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount 
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means 
that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for 
retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any 
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.  The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve 
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits 
on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early 
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the 
year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 162



5 
 

 

Events after the Reporting Period  
 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the 
end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.  Two types of 
events can be identified: 

 

 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Statement 
of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; 

 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts 
is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, 
disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts. 
 

Fair Value Measurement 
 
The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as investment properties and some of its financial 
instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 
value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

 in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

 in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.  

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  
 
The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed 
in the Council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows: 
 

 Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Council 
can access at the measurement date; 

 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; 

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

Financial Instruments  
 
Financial Liabilities 
  
Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost.  
Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the 
effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. 
 
 
 

Page 163



6 
 

For the Council’s long term borrowing, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and the interest charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the business 
model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics. There are three main classes of 
financial assets measured at:  
 

 amortised cost  

 fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and  

 fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)   

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets are 
therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are not solely payment of 
principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument). 
 
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 
 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are 
subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are 
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most 
of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount 
receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
Expected Credit Loss Model  
 
The authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost, either on a 
12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. 
Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the authority.  
 
Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place 
because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. 
Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a 
lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-
month expected losses. 
 
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss 
 
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. 
Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. 
However, in November 2018 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) granted a 5 
year statutory override which permits fair value gains and losses to be reversed out in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement and taken to a Financial Instruments Restatement Reserve. 
 
The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:  
 

 instruments with quoted market prices – the market price  

 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis.  

 

Page 164



7 
 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three levels:  
 

 Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the authority 
can access at the measurement date.  

 Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset, either directly or indirectly.  

 Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.  

For Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss monthly dividend/distribution income 
receivable is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

Government Grants and Contributions  
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and 
donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that: 
 

 the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 the grants or contributions will be received. 

 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.  Conditions are stipulations 
that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant 
or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service 
potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the 
Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant 
service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and 
Expenditure (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed 
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Where the grant has yet to be used 
to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve.  Where it has been applied, it 
is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to 
the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.   
 
Heritage Assets  
 
The Council’s Heritage Assets are held in storage, at the Municipal Buildings and Guildhall, and also located at 
various sites in and around Boston.  The Guildhall has collections of heritage assets which are held in support of 
the primary objective of the Museum i.e. increasing the knowledge, understanding and appreciation of the 
Council’s history and local area.  Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of 
revaluation gains and losses) in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on property, plant and 
equipment. However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as detailed 
below.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 165



8 
 

 
The Council’s collection of heritage assets is accounted for as follows: 
 
Guildhall 
 
The Guildhall, with a current value of £x.xxxm has been valued at its fair value by Kier Business Services 
Limited, with the latest valuation being at 31 March 2019. The Council does not depreciate this asset. 
 
Civic Regalia 
 
The Council’s Civic Regalia was last valued by Bonham’s in January 2017 and was based on its insurance 
valuation as proxy for market value. Civic Regalia are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual 
value; hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation. 
 
Museum Collection 
 
The museum collection is varied and is categorised into Archaeology, Coins and Medals, Fine Art, Natural 
History, Social History and Ethnographic collections.  In addition there is a small group of objects which have not 
been accessioned into the collection and form the Educational /Handling collection. The Collection was last 
valued by Bonham’s in January 2017 and was based on its insurance valuation as proxy for market value. The 
museum collection is deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual value; hence, the Council does not 
consider it appropriate to charge depreciation. 
 

Coins and Medals 
 
The numismatics collection accounts for roughly a tenth of the overall museum collection.  The coins date 
from the Roman Empire through to the twentieth century and are from Europe (including Scandinavia), the 
United Kingdom (including the Channel Islands) and other countries such as Japan, Hong Kong, Morocco 
and others.  The majority of these were minted in the nineteenth and twentieth century’s with some earlier 
periods represented, particularly in the Roman coins. 
 
Trading tokens constitute a small but significant area of the collection.  There are examples from the borough 
area, covering approximately the last four centuries, as well as two sixteenth century German examples and 
a fifteenth century French token.  In addition there are also trading tokens within the collection listed as un-
provenanced and are connected to places outside of the borough boundaries.   
 
Whilst the medals are mostly nineteenth century and commemorative the collection of coins is widely varied 
in terms of chronological and geographical range. The medals can be divided into nationally commemorative 
and locally commemorative.  The national medals focus on royal occasions; coronations and marriages for 
example whilst the locally commemorative medals are celebrating local events or occasions within Boston 
and its borough.   
 

Art Collection 
 
Art makes up the second largest element of the museum collection.  The collection is largely works of local 
scenes including maritime themes and portraits of past town Mayors.  The majority of artists are linked to the 
town with a few such as Enderby and Etty who are recognised nationally.  All of the works in this collection 
are two dimensional and cover a wide range of media: watercolours, oil, pencil, pastel and prints.  The more 
significant works have been valued and are reported in the Balance Sheet at their insurance valuation as 
proxy for market value.    
 

Silverware, Charters, etc 
 
The silverware and related collection items include gold, silver and brass items and the more significant 
pieces are reported in the Balance Sheet at their insurance valuation as proxy for market value.    
.  

Page 166



9 
 

  

Archaeology 
 
The archaeological collection is the third largest collection at the museum.  The objects are placed into this 
categorisation if they are found and acquired by archaeological means, for example from an excavation site 
or as a casual find.   The majority of this collection has been acquired through donation, either by individual 
donors or by the Boston Archaeology Group. 
   
The collection is sub-divided by period; Prehistoric, Roman, Saxon/Viking, Medieval (1000-1500) and post 
Medieval (1500–1800), which is then further sub-divided into sixteenth, seventeenth and eighteenth century 
and general. Acquisitions are initially recognised at cost, or if bequeathed or donated at nil consideration. 

 

Natural History 
 
A small selection of natural history specimens is held in the museum collection.  During the 1920’s 
and 1930’s a significant part of this collection was donated.  These objects included shells and coral from the 
South Sea Islands, fossils, animal tusks and bones and geological specimens such as minerals, crystals and 
lava fragments.  As this collection of objects was one of the earliest significant donations to enter the 
museum, it is presumed that the displays and reputation of the museum would have been initially based 
around these objects.  Therefore this collection of objects will be retained and cared for by the museum 
Council as part of its historic collections. The Council does not consider that reliable cost or valuation 
information can be obtained for its natural history collection.  This is because of the nature of the assets held 
and lack of comparable market values.   

 

Social History 
 
The largest of the collections and most varied being comprised of mostly 19th and 20th century collection 
material which is sub-divided into smaller categorised collections which are derived from the Social History 
and Industrial Classification system; Community, Domestic, Personal and Working.  Community life is the 
broadest category covering areas from entertainment to religion whilst also encompassing the specific areas 
of the Pilgrim Fathers and a collection of items relating to the Odd Fellows Society.  In addition to the varied 
objects and documents that form these collections there are also collections of decorative arts, three–
dimensional art and costume.  The more significant objects are recorded in the balance sheet at valuation by 
an external valuer. 
 

Ethnography 
 
This is a small collection where the objects have been categorised due to them being non-British, not 
belonging within any of the other collections and not being related to Boston, Massachusetts (in which case 
objects are classified as Social History).   
 

Handling/Education 
 
A small collection of objects which has not been accessioned into the collection as its purpose is purely for 
educational reasons and for handling.    
 

Other Ancient Monuments and Heritage Sites in the Boston Area 
 
The Council does not consider that reliable cost or valuation information can be obtained for its ancient 
monuments.  This is because of the nature of the assets held and lack of comparable market values.  
Consequently, the Council recognises these assets on the balance sheet at nil value.  
 
Heritage sites (such as the War Memorial in Strait Bargate) are held on the balance sheet at the insurance 
valuation. 

 
 

Page 167



10 
 

 
 
Heritage Assets – General 
 
The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairments for heritage 
assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its 
authenticity.  Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the Council’s general policies on 
impairment.  Items are rarely disposed of however in such circumstances the proceeds are accounted for in 
accordance with the Council’s general provisions relation to the disposal of property, plant and equipment.  
Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and are accounted for in 
accordance with statutory accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure and capital receipts.   
 

Intangible Assets 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Council as a 
result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or 
service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council.   
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and are carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an 
intangible asset is amortised over its useful life, beginning in the year following acquisition, to the relevant service 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Depreciation is calculated on the following basis: 
 

 Computer software and licences – straight line basis over a maximum of five years. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, the amortisation 
charge is not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.  It is therefore reversed out of the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

Investment Property  
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.  The definition 
is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held 
for sale.   
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price that would be 

received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.   
As a non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at highest and best use. Properties are not 
depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end.  Gains and losses on 
revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.   
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line 
and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance.  However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not 
permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.  The gains and losses are 
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 

Leases  
  

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee.  All other 
leases are classified as operating leases. Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings 
elements are considered separately for classification. 
 

Page 168



11 
 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for 
payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
specific assets. 
 
The Council has no finance lease commitments as at 31 March 2019. 
The Council as Lessee – Operating Leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as 
an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.  Charges are made 
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is 
a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease). 
 
The Council as Lessor - Operating Leases 
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is 
retained in the Balance Sheet.  Rental income is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Credits are made on a straight-line 
basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid 
at the commencement of the lease).  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added 
to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis 
as rental income. 
 

Material Items of Income or Expense  
 

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either on the 
face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on 
how significant the items are to an understanding of the Council’s financial performance. 
 

Overheads and Support Services 
 
Following revisions to the Accounting Code, the cost of overheads and support services are not charged to 
service segments, within the Financial Statements, in accordance with the Council’s arrangements for 
accountability and financial performance. However, they are apportioned to comply with the requirements of 
various government returns. 
 

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error.  
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by 
the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.   
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change 
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the 
Council’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively 
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the 
new policy had always been applied.   
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances 
and comparative amounts for the prior period.  
 

Property, Plant and Equipment  
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for 
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial 
year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 

Page 169



12 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Recognition 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is capitalised on an 
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with 
the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains 
but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. 
 
Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

 

 the purchase price 

 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management 

 
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does not 
have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council).  In the latter case, 
where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given 
up by the Council.   
 
The de-minimus limit for land and buildings is £10,000 and £5,000 for equipment.  Items below this level are 
charged to revenue in year of acquisition.   
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 
 

 infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost;  

 surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and best use 
from a market participant’s perspective; 

 all other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing 
use (existing use value – EUV). 

 
Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value.   
 
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis 
is used as a proxy for current value.  Residual values will be nil, unless otherwise stated.   
 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their 
carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five 
years.    Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised 
gains.  Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services where they 
arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

Page 170



13 
 

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains) 

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of 
the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal 
implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.  
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the 
asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is 
recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains) 

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of 
the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for 
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.   
 
Depreciation  
 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their 
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful 
life i.e. freehold land and assets that are not yet available for use i.e. assets under construction. Newly acquired 
assets are first depreciated in the year following their acquisition.   
 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 

 dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by 
the valuer 

 vehicles, plant and equipment – straight-line allocation, normally over five to ten years, after application 
of any material  residual value,  determined by the manager of the relevant section which derives 
service benefit from the asset. 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. Materiality levels have been 
assessed and based on gross carrying values, componentisation for secondary components will only be 
undertaken where the buildings value exceeds £0.5m and when the triggers for componentisation are present – 
i.e. revaluation or enhancement expenditure incurred after 1 April 2010. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical 
cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account, where 
considered material. 
 
Disposals and Non-current Assets held for Sale 

Page 171



14 
 

 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale 
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held for sale.  The asset is 
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs 
to sell.  Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Gains in fair value are 
recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services.  Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale. 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified back to non-
current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale; 
adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been 
classified as held for sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet is 
written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as 
part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset 
in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.   
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are appropriated to the Capital 
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

Provisions 
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation that 
probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement when the Council has an obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the 
Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and 
uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated 
settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than probable that a transfer 
of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is 
reversed and credited back to the relevant service.  
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party 
(e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation. 
 

Reserves  
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.  
Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balance.  When expenditure to be 
financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  The 
reserve is then transferred back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against council tax 
for the expenditure. 
 

Page 172



15 
 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, 
local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council – these 
reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
 

 

 

 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute  
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result in 
the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.  Where the Council has determined to meet the 
cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax. 
 

Value Added Tax (VAT) 
 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue 
and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
For all your assurance needs 

 

 
Boston Borough Council   
 
Progress Report – January 2019   
 
                      
 

 

                                                               

Page 175

Agenda Item 5



 
Contents            Para  

 
 

Introduction          1    
 

Key Messages                   1 
 

Internal Audit work completed November – January   1 
 

Other Significant Work        3 
 

Audits in Progress         4 
 

Audit Recommendations        4  
 

Performance Information        5 
 

Other matters of interest        5 
 

Appendices 
Appendix 1  – Details of Limited or Low Assurance Reports    6 
Appendix 2 – Internal Audit Plan & Schedule 2018/19   7 
Appendix 3  – Assurance Definitions      9  
Appendix 4  – Performance Details      10 
Appendix 5  – Healthcheck against Northamptonshire CC failings  11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact Details: 
John Scott 
Audit Manager 

 

 
For all your assurance needs 
City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln, LN1 1DD  
:  01522 873321    john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Page 176

mailto:john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk


Introduction   
 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to: 
 

 Advise of progress made with the Audit Plan  

 Provide details of the audit work undertaken since the last progress report.   

 Provide details of the current position with agreed management actions in 
respect of previously issued reports  

 Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Audit & Governance 
Committee role  

 

 
Key Messages   

 
 

2. The 2018/19 audit plan is progressing well and is on track. At the end of December 
72% of the Plan has been completed compared to the target of 76%; eight pieces of 
work have been completed, eight are in progress and the remaining three will be 
starting in the final quarter. 
 

  
Internal Audit work completed November 2018 – January 2019   
 

 
3. The following final reports have been issued since the last progress report;  

 

High Assurance Substantial 
Assurance 

Limited 
Assurance 

Low 
Assurance 
 

Consultancy 

NNDR Key Controls 
 
Affordable Housing 
 

Council Tax Key 
Controls 
 
Housing Benefit 
Key Controls 
 

None None Car Parking 

 
Note: The Audit & Governance Committee should note that the assurance 
expressed is at the time of issue of the report but before the full implementation of 
the agreed management action plan. Definitions levels are shown in Appendix 3.   

 
Below are summaries of the audit reports issued; 

 
 
 
 

  

Page 177



NNDR Key Controls – High Assurance 
 

We found that the expected key controls are in place and are operating as expected. 
 
We did not identify any areas where improvements are required and have not made 
any recommendations. 
  
 
Affordable Housing – High Assurance 

 
The Council’s Strategic Plan identifies a key aim to provide affordable housing. The 
Council does not have its own housing stock and in order to deliver this aim their 
priority is to “work with all of our partners to increase the supply and range of 
affordable and flexible housing products available to our residents”. 
 
The development of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, which includes Boston, 
is currently being finalised. The Local Plan includes policies around affordable 
housing and developer contributions. 

 
Our review provides a high level of assurance on service delivery arrangements, 
management of risk and operation of controls. We found that; 
 

 Housing officers work effectively with registered providers, developers and the 
planning section to encourage the development of affordable housing. 

 The type of affordable housing required is assessed and used in the 
commissioning process. 

 Performance is monitored through the normal Council performance 
mechanisms and supporting performance records are maintained. 

 Waterloo Housing was approved as the Council’s preferred partner in 2013. A 
partnership agreement is in place and there is ongoing monitoring of delivery. 
 

As for all local Councils identifying funding is a challenge. The Council have 
allocated New Homes Bonus of £872,000 since 2013/14 and the Housing Service 
continue to work to identify further funding. 
 
The requirement on the developer for affordable homes is part of the planning 
process and a Section 106 Agreement is put in place to ensure compliance by the 
developer. The Housing Service monitor and report on affordable housing 
completions. Planning officers have an overview of Section 106 Agreement 
requirements. 

 
We have not identified any areas requiring improvement and have not made any 
recommendations. 
 
 
Council Tax Key Controls – Substantial Assurance 

 
We found that the expected key controls are in place and are operating as expected. 
 
Improvements are required in the following areas; 

Page 178



 

 User access. Testing of a small sample of users found that some appear to 
have access that may not be appropriate to their roles. A review of all users 
should be undertaken.  

 Council Tax Support posting. There is a process to reconcile CTS posted into 
the Council Tax system and while it was found to balance on a daily basis the 
year to date figures are out of balance and have not been investigated. The 
imbalance should be investigated and corrected, if appropriate. 

 
 
Housing Benefit Key Controls – Substantial Assurance 

 
We found that the expected key controls are in place and are operating as expected. 
 
Improvements are required in the following areas; 
 

 User access. Testing of a small sample of users found that some appear to 
have access that may not be appropriate to their roles. A review of all users 
should be undertaken. 

 Discretionary Housing Payments. Testing of a small sample of DHPs awarded 
found that some improvements could be made to how information is recorded 
and formalising the authorisation of rent arrears payments (which can be 
substantial). 

 Quality Checking. There is a process to check the accuracy of new claims and 
change of circumstances but no checks have been undertaken since a 
member of staff left in March 2018. The process should be reinstated. 

 

 
Other Significant Work  

 
 

4. Car Parking 
 

At the request of management some work has been undertaken on car parking. The 
review was a mixture of; 
 

 Assurance work on income collection, banking and reconciliation processes – 
no areas for improvement were identified. 

 Consultancy work to examine current car parking arrangements – a number of 
suggestions have been made which management are considering. 

 
 

Combined Assurance Map refresh 
 
This work is almost complete and reports will be provided at the next meeting in 
March. 

 
 
  

Page 179



Northamptonshire CC failings 
 
A healthcheck against the areas of failure set out in a Best Value Inspection report 
has been undertaken to highlight if anything is missing from the Council’s Combined 
Assurance Map and whether there has been appropriate audit coverage. It found 
that; 
 

 Two areas were not in the 2018 Map - Scrutiny and Ethics, Culture & Values; 
these have been added to the 2019 Map and assessed 

 Audit work is required in certain areas - Medium Term Financial Strategy, 
Scrutiny and Complaints; these are being proposed for inclusion in the 
2019/20 Audit Plan. 

 
The healthcheck has been considered by CMT and is attached at Appendix 5. 
 
 
Audit Plan 2019/20 
 
A Draft Plan has been considered by CMT, and is attached as a separate report.  
 
 
Amendment to the 2018/19 Audit Plan 
 
CMT have requested that this year’s Ethical Culture audit is swapped with a 
Complaints audit that is in the Draft 2019/20 Audit Plan, in order to provide some 
assurance for the incoming administration in May. 

 
 

Audits in Progress  
 

 
5. The following audits are in progress; 

 

 IT Infrastructure & Disaster Recovery follow up – fieldwork in progress 

 Business Continuity & Emergency Planning – fieldwork in progress 

 Economic Development – fieldwork in progress 

 Migration Fund – fieldwork in progress 

 Town Centre Events – report being agreed with management 
 

 
Audit Recommendations  

 
 

6. There is a formal process for tracking Internal Audit recommendations; they are 
recorded on the Council’s performance system and progress updates are provided 
by management each quarter. We periodically liaise with the Transformation & 
Governance Manager to obtain status reports. 

 

Page 180



We undertake formal follow up on all High priority recommendations and on all 
recommendations where the overall audit assurance is Limited or Low; evidence of 
implementation is requested and examined. 
 
 
High priority recommendations 
 
Four high priority recommendations made and agreed in October 2017 as part of ICT 
Malware and IT Infrastructure audits have been recorded as Complete and are being 
followed up as part of a current IT Infrastructure audit. 
 
No high priority recommendations have been made so far in 2018/19.  
 
  
Medium priority recommendations 
  
As at 31st December 2018 the following Medium priority recommendations have 
been extended; 
 

 Information Management (December 2017) 
o Issue System Administrator guidance to applications owners / 

administrators 
The original target date of November 2017 was extended from March 
2018 to November 2018 and has been further extended to March 2019. 
The guidance was signed off by the Information Management Group in 
November and will now be rolled out via SMT. 

 

 Elections & Electoral Registration (June 2018) 
o Elections software - review the terms of the contract (duration / review and 

charges / increases) and obtain a signed copy  
The original target date of September 2018 has been extended to March 
2019. The provider has been contacted but has not yet responded and 
this is now being followed up. 

o Engagement strategy – review and update 
The original target date of December 2018 has been extended to March 
2019. The review is in progress. 

 

 Environmental Enforcement (October 2018) 
o Flyswat Service Level Agreement - review and update for GDPR 

compliance  
The original target date of November 2018 has been extended to March 
2019. The review is in progress. 

 
In the period since the last Recommendation update five Medium priority 
recommendations have been completed, a further three are Not Yet Due. 

 
 

  

Page 181



Performance Information  
 
 

7. Our performance is measured against a range of indicators, and is shown at 
Appendix 4.  
 
 

Other matters of interest 
 
 

8. There are none. 

  

Page 182



Appendix 1 – Details of Low or Limited Assurance Reports  
 
 

There are none. 
 

  

Page 183



Appendix 2 – 2018/19 Audit Plan Schedule 
 

Area  
 

Indicative Scope Planned 
Start 
Date 

Actual 
Start  
Date 

Final 
Report 
Issued 

Current 
Status / 
Assurance 
Opinion 

Annual Report Production of 2017/18 
Annual Report 

Q1 April 18 May 18 Complete 
A&G May 18 

Elections & 
Electoral 
Registration 

Maintaining the electoral 
register and the 
operation of elections. 

Q1 April 18 June 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Payroll  Key controls Q1 May 18 July 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Operation of the 
partnerships. 

Q2 Aug 18 Oct 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Car Parking (NEW) Income controls and 
VFM opportunities 

Q2 Jul 18 Jan 19 Completed 

Affordable Housing Work to increase the 
supply and range of 
affordable and flexible 
housing products. 

Q2-3 Oct 18 Jan 19 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Council Tax  Key controls Q2-3 Sept 18 Nov 18 Completed – 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Housing Benefit  Key controls Q2-3 Sept 18 Nov 18 Completed – 
Substantial 
assurance 

NNDR  Key controls Q2-3 Sept 18 Nov 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Town Centre – 
Events 

Event management Q2-3 Oct 18  Report being 
agreed 

Business Continuity 
& Emergency 
Planning 

Resilience plans in the 
event of loss of key 
buildings and / or ICT. 

Q3 Oct 18  In progress 

ICT  Infrastructure & DR 
follow up 

Q3 Nov 18  In progress 
 

Economic 
Development 

Work being done to 
grow the economy. 

Q3 Dec 18  In progress 

Combined 
Assurance 

Production of 2018/19 
Assurance Map & report 

Q3-4 Dec 18  In progress 

IA Strategy & new 
Audit Plan 

Production of 2019/20 
audit plan 

Q3-4 Dec 18  In progress 

Migration Fund  Processes to deliver and 
record key output 
measures. 

Q4 Jan 19  In progress 

ICT  Digitalisation strategy & Q4    

Page 184



Area  
 

Indicative Scope Planned 
Start 
Date 

Actual 
Start  
Date 

Final 
Report 
Issued 

Current 
Status / 
Assurance 
Opinion 

use of new websites 

Governance-Risk-
Fraud 

High level assessment 
for the annual audit 
opinion 

Q4    

Complaints (NEW) 
 

Complaint handling, 
monitoring, reporting 
and lessons learned 

Q4    

Boston Town Area 
Committee 

Governance and 
operational 
arrangements. 

   Moved to 
2019/20 

Ethical Culture Assessment of the 
Council’s (officer) ethical 
framework 

   Moved to 
2019/20 

Page 185



Appendix 3 - Assurance Definitions
1
 

 
High Assurance 
 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level of 
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and the 
operation of controls and / or performance.   
 
The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  Controls 
have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are operating effectively. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Substantial 
Assurance 
 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a substantial level of 
confidence (assurance) on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or performance. 
 
There are some improvements needed in the application of controls to manage 
risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and 
operating sufficiently so that the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
medium to low.   
 
 
 
  

 
Limited Assurance  
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a limited level of 
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation 
of controls and / or performance. 
 
The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be operating or are 
inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are unlikely to give a reasonable 
level of confidence (assurance) that the risks are being managed effectively.  It is 
unlikely that the activity will achieve its objectives. 
 

Low Assurance 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant concerns on 
service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls 
and / or performance. 
 
There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key risks or the 
controls have been evaluated as not adequate, appropriate or are not being 
effectively operated. Therefore the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
high. 
 

 
 
 

                                                 
1
 These definitions are used as a means of measuring or judging the results and impact of matters identified 

in the audit. The assurance opinion is based on information and evidence which came to our attention 
during the audit.  Our work cannot provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not 
exist.  

Page 186



Appendix 4 - Performance Details 2018/19 Planned Work 

 

 
 
 
 
  

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target 

Profiled 
Target 

Actual  
 

Percentage of plan 
completed. 

100%  
 

16% end June 
37% end Sept 
76% end Dec 
100% end Mar 
 

72% at end of December 

Percentage of key financial 
systems completed. 
 

100%  100% 100%  
(Three key control audits 
have been completed) 
 

Percentage of 
recommendations agreed. 
 

100%  100% 100%  
(7 out of 7) 

Percentage of 
recommendations due 
implemented. 
 

100% or 
escalated  
 

100% or 
escalated  
 

50%  
(3 out of 6) 
 
See para 6 for details of the 
three recommendations that 
have been extended – all are 
in progress. 
 

Timescales: 
Draft report issued within 10 
working days of completing 
audit.  
 
Final report issued within 5 
working days of closure 
meeting / receipt of 
management responses. 
 
Period taken to complete 
audit –within 2 months from 
fieldwork commencing to the 
issue of the draft report. 
 

  
100% 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
80% 

 
100% 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
80% 

 
100%  
(7 out of 7) 
 
 
100%  
(7 out of 7) 
 
 
 
100%  
(7 out of 7) 
 

Client Feedback on Audit 
(average) 
 

Good to 
excellent 

Good to 
excellent 

Good to excellent  
(5 issued & 4 returned) 

Page 187



Appendix 5 – Healthcheck against Northamptonshire CC 
failings 

 
Background 

In March 2018 a Best Value (BV) Inspection report was issued concerning the financial 

issues that had affected Northamptonshire County Council (NCC). 

Although the issues were as a result of budget pressures in services which District 

Councils do not provide (Adult Social Care and Children, Families & Education) there are 

still lessons to be learned about how the issues were handled. 

In conjunction with Assurance Lincolnshire colleagues at the County Council we have 

turned the findings of the Best Value Inspection into a healthcheck, which we have used 

to highlight if there are any areas missing from the Council’s Combined Assurance Map 

which might require some audit attention.  

 

Best Value Inspection findings 

The BV Inspection reviewed the period 2013/14 -2017/18 and found that there were 

plenty of warning signs which NCC did not act on; 

 an inadequate Ofsted report in August 2013 

 adverse External Audit (KPMG) Value for Money opinions in two consecutive 

years - 2015/16 and 2016/17 

 the findings of a an LGA Finance Peer Review into financial planning and 

management in September 2017 

 a Section 114 notice issued by the Council’s S151 officer in February 2018 

 a KPMG Advisory Notice on the Budget in February 2018 

 

The Inspection identified a number of causes of failure; 

 Budget setting & monitoring; 

o Weak budgetary control  

o No strong & effective scrutiny of budget setting 

o Did not address regular budget overspends - Adult Social Care and 

Children, Families & Education overspent (by £2.5m in 13/14, £22m in 

14/15, £29m in 15/16 & £33m in 16/17) 

o Lack of accurate financial data (Adult Services) 

o Repeated under assessment of the level of spending pressures faced 

o Forecasting of demographic growth was very basic 

o Lack of understanding of the difference between a budget pressure (that 

needs to be managed), contingency sums, spending where there is a 

choice and what is truly inescapable 

o Took until 2018 to introduce appropriate advice in setting & managing 

budgets and the necessary control mechanisms to ensure compliance with 

the law and best practice 

Page 188



 Use of one-off resources 

o Made extensive use of one-off resources to support its on-going revenue 

expenditure since 2013/14, primarily reserves (£57m at April 13 and £9m 

at April 17) 

 Savings delivery / Transformation 

o Fell well short on delivering its planned savings (£7m 13/14, £6m 14/15, 

£21m 15/16, £21m 16/17) 

o No business plan or justification to adopt the ‘Next Generation’ model, and 

no clear link to the MTFS 

o Used capital receipts to fund transformation 

o No specific (project by project) transformation plan approved – this is non-

compliance with Statutory Guidance, which puts in doubt the use of 

capital receipts for this purpose  

o No reports on the outcomes of transformation work (first one went to 

Cabinet in March 2018) 

 Structure / Culture; 

o Silo working 

o poor internal communication 

o lack of working together on common objectives 

 Goals & outcomes; 

o Ambitious goals, lack of measurable outcomes and unclear how the 

approved budget will support these goals (Children’s Services)  

 Skills; 

o Lack of commissioning expertise 

 Scrutiny; 

o Lack of effective scrutiny by Scrutiny committees 

o Lack of effective scrutiny by Audit committee 

o Challenge and criticism was discouraged 

o Refusing to provide information to councillors when requested 

o No action (by Cabinet / Council) on the adverse VFM opinions in either 

ISA 260 reports after consideration by Audit committee   

o No strategic action (by Cabinet / Council) on the LGA report after 

consideration by Audit committee   

 Risk management; 

o Poor risk management at the Council & Audit committee unable to get it 

taken seriously 

 Internal Audit; 

o Lack of flexibility in internal audit due to the way it is provided by LGSS 

 Complaints; 

o Poor approach to complaint handling, learning from mistakes and 

remedying injustice  

 

Healthcheck findings 

The healthcheck looked at the areas of failure and considered if they were in the 2018 

Combined Assurance Map and when they were last examined; 

Page 189



 

Cause of failure Included in the 

Assurance Map 

Management 

assurance (2018) 

Audit coverage 

Governance 

 

Yes Green Within last 3 years 

Budget setting 

(MTFS) 

Yes Amber None in last 5 

years 

Budget monitoring 

 

Yes Green Within last 3 years 

Transformation 

 

Yes Amber Within last 3 years 

Scrutiny No None Not previously 

audited 

Risk Management 

 

Yes Green Within last 3 years 

Complaints Yes Green Not previously 

audited 

Procurement 

 

Yes Green Within last 3 years 

Ethics, Culture & 

Values 

No None Scheduled in 

2018/19 

Performance 

management 

Yes Green Within last 3 years 

 
 

Way forward 

As a result of the findings the following has been done; 

 The two areas that were not in the 2018 Map have been added and as part of 

the production of the 2019 Map have been assessed by management; 

o Scrutiny – Green assurance 

o Ethics, Culture and Values – Green assurance 

Both of these areas will be audited in 2019/20. 

 The other areas that have not had any audit coverage in the last three years 

(Medium Term Financial Strategy and Complaints) will be audited in 2019/20 

 

CIPFA are currently working on ways of assessing financial resilience and it is expected 

that this will be done through a Financial Management Code and a Financial Resilience 

Index. Once these are in place an update will be provided by the Chief Finance Officer. 

Internal Audit will continue to review the frequency at which the key areas are audited to 

ensure that it is appropriate. 

The healthcheck areas are indicators of good governance but a positive assessment 

does not guarantee that the Council will not have any financial issues in the future. 

Page 190



 

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



 
                                  
                                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                                             

                                                              Boston Borough Council 
                                                               Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 (Draft) 
                                                      

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                                                                                           

                                               

For all your assurance needs 

 

P
age 193

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

 
 

 
                                                 What we do best ….  

Innovative assurance services 
               Specialists at internal audit 
Comprehensive risk management 

        Experts in countering fraud 

Unrivalled best value to our customers 
             Existing strong regional public sector partnership 
Auditors with the knowledge and expertise to get the job done 
     Already working extensively with the not-for-profit and third 

sector 

….. And what sets us apart 

P
age 194



 

        CONTENT         Page 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          
 
             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

                                           

Introduction                                                                     1 
 
Internal Audit Strategy  
– how we choose what to look at                                  1          
 
Internal Audit Plan 2019/20                                          3 

 
Our Performance & Quality Assurance Framework   4 
 
Staffing            5       
                                                               
 

Appendices: 
Appendix A - Audit Lincolnshire – Planning Risk Assessment  6 
Appendix B - Internal Audit Plan 2019/20     7 
Appendix C – All Auditable Areas       10 
Appendix D - Quality Assurance Framework     13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

John Scott CMIIA                                            
Audit Manager 
01522 873321 

john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk 
 

 
 

 

 
Paul Berry MAAT 
Principal Auditor 
01522 873836 

paul.berry@lincoln.gov.uk 

P
age 195

mailto:john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk
mailto:paul.berry@lincoln.gov.uk


  Introduction and Our Internal Audit Strategy 

     
Introduction 
 

1. This report summarises the proposed work of Internal Audit for 2019/20.  
The aim is to give a high level overview of areas we are likely to cover 
during the year – giving you an opportunity to comment on the proposals. 

 
2. The audit plan has been developed to enable us to respond to changes 

during the year.  Whilst every effort will be made to deliver the plan, we 
recognise that we need to be flexible and prepared to revise audit activity 
– responding to changing circumstances or emerging risks.  The plan is 
therefore a statement of intent – our liaison meetings with senior 
management will enable us to firm up audit activity during the year. 

 
3. Internal Audit is a statutory service required under the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2011 (amended 2015).  We provide independent assurance 
designed to add value and improve how the Council operates.  We help 
the Council achieve its priorities and objectives by bringing a systematic, 
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the management of risk, 
control and governance processes. 

 
4. Our work is carried out in conformance with the UK Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards.  These require that the scope of Internal Audit covers 
the whole range of the Council activities – seeking to provide an annual 
internal audit opinion on the governance, risk and internal control 
environment of the Council which has been established to: 

 
 Achieve strategic objectives 
 Ensure effective and efficient operational systems and programmes 
 Safeguard assets and interests of all kinds (including risks that relate 

to work it undertakes through partnerships) 
 Ensure the reliability and integrity of financial and operational 

information 
 Ensure economic, efficient and effective use of council resources 
 Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws, 

regulations and contracts. 
 
 
 
 

Our Internal Audit Strategy 
 

5. Our Internal Audit strategy has been developed to take into account 
management's assessment of risk, including those set out in strategic and 
operational risk registers, and the assurances present on the Council's 
critical systems and key projects (the Council's assurance map). 

 
6. We also use our own risk assessment against each activity assessing 

their significance, sensitivity and materiality – ranking the activity as high, 
medium or low risk.  This allows us to prioritize possible areas to be 
included in the plan on the basis of risk.  A copy of our risk assessment 
methodology is attached in Appendix A. 

 
7. Our aim is to align our work with other assurance functions – seeking to 

look at different ways of leveraging assurance to help us to maximise the 
best use of the Internal Audit resource and other assurance functions in 
the Council. 

 
8. By adopting this approach it is possible to give the Council comfort that 

there is a comprehensive risk and assurance framework with no potential 
gaps.  Internal Audit are then able to use our risk assessment and the 
assurance map to target resources to minimise duplication of effort 
through sharing and coordinating activities with management and other 
management oversight functions. 

 
9. We have identified the level of assurances in place by using the "Three 

lines of assurance" model – See Figure 1 below. 
 

10. Figure 2 below shows the overall assurance levels on your critical service 
areas / activities. 

  
11. We intend to leverage assurance from these other sources to enable the 

Head of Internal Audit to provide their Annual Audit opinion on the 
Council's governance, risk and control framework for 2018/19. 

 
 
 
     

1 

P
age 196



  Your Assurance Status 

Figure.1. The three lines of assurance model 

 

 

 

12. Where possible we co-ordinate our work on key financial systems with the Councils External Auditors. This ensures that the Council gets the most out of 
its combined audit resource 

 

 

2 

 

91% 

9% 

0% 
0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Green Amber Red 

Critical Services - Overall Assurance % 

Figure 2 – Your Overall Assurance Status on your Critical 

Activities @ January 2019 (NB – ICT not yet assessed) 

P
age 197



  Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 

  
 

13. The type of areas included in the plan for 2019/20 is shown in Figure 3 with the proposed audits in Appendix B.  Scheduling of these audits will be 
developed with management once the plan has been approved. 

                                                                                                                                                                    

                           

 

                                
 

*Emerging Risks - although the Plan is currently fully allocated it is flexible and intelligence will be gathered throughout the year to determine if there are 
any emerging risks that require review – these will be presented to CMT to get their view on amending the Plan. 

 
14. The Combined Assurance Status reports provides management and members with insight over the current levels of assurance over the Council's critical 

activities, key projects and risks however the Audit & Governance Committee may wish to specifically request assurance information directly from 
management for those items not in the Internal Audit Plan. Analysing the assurance map identified some ‘Amber’ risks that we do not have the resources 
to review – these are shown in Appendix C. 

                            
  

31% 

7% 

0% 

4% 

0% 

36% 

22% 

Due Diligence 

ICT 

Emerging Risks* 

Combined Assurance 

Projects 

Critical Activities  

Other Audit 

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 

Figure 3 – Analysis of Internal Audit Resource (showing % split)  
 

3 

P
age 198



  Our Performance & Quality Assurance Framework 
 
  
15. Assurance Lincolnshire operates in conformance with standards of best 

practice applicable to Internal Audit – in particular the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards and the CIPFA Local Government Application 
Note.  Our audit team offers a wide depth of knowledge and experience 
gained across different organizations.  We promote excellence and 
quality through our audit process, application of our Quality Assurance 
Framework (Appendix D) and our training and development programme. 

 

16. Our Quality Assurance Framework includes all aspects of the Internal 
Audit Activity – including governance, professional practice and 
communication. 

 

17. Our Internal Audit Charter sets out the nature, role, responsibilities and 
authority of the Internal Audit service within the Council – this was 
updated and approved by the Audit & Governance Committee and 
Council during 2016 following the revision of the Standards. 

 

18. Internal Audit remains sufficiently independent of the activities that it 
audits to enable auditors to perform their duties in such a way that allows 
them to make impartial and effective professional judgements and 
recommendations. 

 

19. We use a number of ways to monitor our performance, respond to 
feedback and seek opportunities to improve.  Evidence of the quality of 
our audits is gained through feedback from auditees and the results of 
supervision and quality assurance undertaken as part of our audit 
process. 

 

20. Our performance measures are set out below in Figure 4 for information: 

 

  Figure 4: Our performance measures 

Performance Indicator                                                                                Target             

Percentage of plan completed 100% (revised plan) 

Percentage of key financial systems completed 100% 

Percentage of recommendations agreed* 100% 

Percentage of recommendations implemented* 100% 

Timescales 

 Draft report issued within 10 working days of 
completing the audit 

 

 Final report issued within 5 working days of closure 
meeting/receipt of management responses 

 

 Period taken to complete audit – 80% completed within 
3 months from fieldwork commencing to the issue of 
the draft report. 

Client feedback on Audit (average) Good to excellent 

  

* Achievement of the performance 

measures on recommendations 
agreed and implemented are not 
within our control.  These are reported 
so the Audit & Governance Committee 
can see what actions management 
have taken.  The details of any 
recommendations not agreed will be 
included in the executive summary 
and report to Committee. 

4 

P
age 199



  Staffing 
 
  
 The core team who will be delivering your Internal Audit Plan are; 
 

 
 
Name 
 

 
Grade 

 
Telephone 

 
Email 

John Scott Head of Internal Audit 01522 873321 John.scott@lincoln.gov.uk 
 

Paul Berry Principal Auditor 01522 873836 Paul.berry@lincoln.gov.uk 
 

Helen Storr Auditor 01522 873835 Helen.storr@lincoln.gov.uk 
 

 
The team will be supported by specialists from Assurance Lincolnshire and our wider audit frameworks as and when appropriate. 

 
An indicative staff mix delivering our Internal Audit service to you is shown below; 

 
 

 
Grade 
 

 
2017/18 (days)  

 
Grade Mix (%) 

Head of Internal Audit   20 14% 

Principal Auditor 60 41% 

Senior Auditor 60 41% 

ICT Consultant 5 4% 

 
 

Annual Internal Audit Opinion 
 

We are satisfied that the level and mix of resources, together with the areas covered in the plan, will enable the Head of Internal Audit to provide their annual 
internal audit opinion. 

  
 

P
age 200

mailto:John.scott@lincoln.gov.uk
mailto:Paul.berry@lincoln.gov.uk
mailto:Helen.storr@lincoln.gov.uk


  Appendix A – Assurance Lincolnshire Planning Risk Assessment Methodology 
 
  

 
 

                                           

Value / Volume 
This assessment is based on either the cost to the council, the volume of 
transactions that the activity is handling or a combination of the two; 
 

0 – Not material 
1 – Minor importance (up to £100k budget & weekly transactions) 
2 – Important (up to £1m budget and up to daily transactions) 
3 – Material (over £1m budget and multiple transactions daily) 

 

Significance 
This assessment reflects how important the activity is to the authority and its 
residents; 

0 – not significant 
1 – Minor significance 
2 – Significant 
3 – Very significant 

 

Audit rating 
 

0 – recent review no significant findings (full / substantial) 
1 – Recent review with findings (limited) 
2 – Not recently reviewed (3 years) 
3 – Recent review – number of significant findings (No assurance) 

 

Changes to people / systems 
 

0 – no changes 
1 – Minor changes 
2 – Significant changes 
3 – New system or team 

 
Sensitivity / Profile (Risk) 
This assessment is about the impact if things went wrong, how much interest 
would there be and how much would this impact on reputation; 
 

0 – low (internal system) 
1 – Medium profile 
2 – High profile  

 
 

Other assurance 
Other assurances we have identified during the mapping process and how 
much reliance we can place on these; 
 

0 – high level of assurance – e.g. Snr mgmt. oversight / management 
reporting / activities / external review / scrutiny 
1 – Moderate level of assurance – management assurance 
2 – Low level of assurance – new area – assurance unknown – 
emerging risk 

 

Risk score Risk score Risk score 

1 

Low  

7  
 
 

Med 
 

12  
 
 

High 
 

2 8 13 

3 9 14 

4 10 15 

5 11  

6   

6 

P
age 201



 Appendix B – Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
 

 
   

Audit Area 
 
Assurance Sought 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Days 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 M

a
p

 

R
A

G
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

R
is

k
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 /
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
/ 

F
ra

u
d

 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
s

t 

Critical Service Areas Those areas identified by senior management as having the most impact on successful delivery of priorities or whose failure 

could result in significant damage to reputation, financial loss, impact on people (risks). The outcome of the assurance mapping exercise – together 
with our assessment of risk – will enable us to identify potential areas where an independent audit would add value. 

 
Head of Regulatory Services       

Homelessness Implementation of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 8 R A  CP2  
Private Sector Housing Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation, including the 

extension of the licensing regime in 2018 
8 A A  CP2  

Environmental Health Food Safety inspections 8 A G Operation CP2  
Head of Corporate Services       
Health & Safety Compliance with key H&S legislation for employees, the public, 

partners, contractors, volunteers, etc 
8 A G  CP4  

Complaints Complaint handling, monitoring, reporting and lessons learned 
(NB – CMT have requested that this audit is started in 
2018/19) 

8 A G  CP4  

Head of Place & Space       
Markets Income collection & cash handling 4 A A  CP1  
Boston Town Area Committee The governance and operation of BTAC. 8 A G  CP1,2,3  
        

Sub Total  52  

7 

P
age 202



Appendix B – Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
 

  

 
Audit Area 

 
Assurance Sought 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Days 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 M

a
p

 

R
A

G
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

R
is

k
 –

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 /
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
/ 

F
ra

u
d

 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
s

t 

Due Diligence 
Those systems that support the running of the organisation and ensure compliance with key corporate policies and legal requirements – the ‘business as 
usual’ systems.  How often Internal Audit reviews these activities depends on previous assurance opinions, when the area was last examined and if there 
has been any significant changes to the system or senior management.  For financial systems we also consider the requirements of External Audit to 
ensure that the organisation makes the best use of its combined audit resources. 
Note: Financial Due Diligence audits are normally conducted on a 3 year cycle, while Other Due Diligence are conducted on a five year cycle. 

 
Chief Financial Officer       

Bank Key Controls 5 R G Fraud CP4  

Treasury Management Key Controls 5 R G Fraud CP4  

Debtors Key Controls 5 R G Fraud CP4  

Creditors Key Controls 5 R G Fraud CP4  

Medium Term Financial Strategy Process, risk management, assumptions 7 R A Strategic Op CP4  

Governance, Risk, Fraud High level assessment to inform the annual audit opinion 5 A G Fraud CP4  

Head of Corporate Services       

ICT To be confirmed once revised IT assurance map is completed 10 R TBC Fraud Op CP4  

Corporate Director       

Culture & Ethics An assessment of the Council’s ethical framework  
(NB – there will be some additional days from the 
postponement of the 18/19 audit)   

5 A G Fraud CP4  

Scrutiny function Operation of the Council’s Scrutiny committees 8 A G  CP4  

        

Sub Total   55  

8 

P
age 203



Appendix B – Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
 
 
 

 
Other Relevant Areas 

 
Assurance Sought 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Days 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 M

a
p

 

R
A

G
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

R
is

k
 –

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 /
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
/ 

F
ra

u
d

 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

e
s

t 

Other relevant areas 
Combined Assurance Status Report – Our aim is to give Senior Management and the Audit Committee an insight on assurances across all 
critical activities and key risks, making recommendations where we believe assurance needs to be stronger. 
Combined Assurance An assessment all critical areas of the Authority to 

update the combined assurance report, provide 
management with insight and assist with the 
preparation of next year’s audit plan. 

6 n/a 

Sub Total  6      

 
Other Audit 
 

 
Days 

Advice, liaison, Audit Management,  19 

Audit Follow up of recommendations 4 

Annual Report 2 
Audit Committee 5 
Review IA Strategy and Planning 2 

TOTAL  32 

Grand Total 
 

   Days 

Internal Audit  
 
145 

 

9 

P
age 204



 

 Appendix C – All Auditable Areas  
 

 
Service Area 
 

Auditable Area / System 
(DD = Due Diligence) 

Last audited 
 

Assurance  
Map 

Rating 

Audit 
Risk 

Assessment 

In 
2019/20 

Plan 

 
Comments 

Place & Space Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre 2014/15 G A   

Place & Space Princess Royal Sports Arena 2017/18 G A   

Place & Space Sport & Play  G A   

Place & Space Car Parking 2018/19 (Inc & 
Consultancy) 

G A 
 

 

Place & Space Partnerships & Sustainability  G A   

Place & Space Boston Town Area Committee  G A   

Place & Space Markets 2014/15 (Inc) A A (Inc)  

Place & Space Arts, Heritage, Tourism  G A   

Place & Space Events Management / Town Centre 2018/19 G A   

Place & Space Strategic asset management 2016/17 G A   

Place & Space Land & property (Income & maintenance) 2016/17 G G   

Regulatory Services Housing Growth 2013/14 
 
 

G R 

 

Affordable Housing & 
Economic Development 
reviewed in 2018/19 

Regulatory Services Affordable Homes 2018/19 G A   

Regulatory Services Housing advice & homelessness  A R   

Regulatory Services Private sector housing 2017/18 A A   

Regulatory Services Safeguarding 
 

G A 
 

Rely on external 
assessment 

Regulatory Services Emergency Planning 2018/19 G A   

Regulatory Services Business Continuity (DD) 2018/19 G A   

Regulatory Services CCTV 2016/17 A A   

Regulatory Services Community Development & Cohesion 2018/19 G A   

Regulatory Services Corporate Enforcement  G A   

Regulatory Services Community Safety 2017/18 G A   

Regulatory Services Environmental Health 2014/15 G A   

Regulatory Services Building Control 2012/13 G A   

Regulatory Services Licensing 2017/18 G A   

Regulatory Services Land Charges 2012/13 G A   

  

P
age 205



 
 
Service Area 

 
Auditable Area / System 
(DD = Due Diligence) 

Last audited 
 

Assurance  
Map 

Rating 

Audit 
Risk 

Assessment 

In 
2019/20 

Plan 

 
Comments 

Environmental Operations Fleet management 2015/16 G A   

Environmental Operations Parks & grounds maintenance  G A   

Environmental Operations Environmental Enforcement 2018/19 G A   

Environmental Operations Cleaning & caretaking  G G   

Environmental Operations Public conveniences 2016/17 (Inc) G G   

Environmental Operations Boston Crematorium & Cemetery 2016/17 (Inc) A A   

Environmental Operations Refuse collection & recycling 2015/16 G A   

Environmental Operations Trade waste 2015/16 (Inc) G A   

Environmental Operations Green waste 2016/17 G A   

Environmental Operations Street cleansing 2015/16 G A   

Corporate Services Complaints  G A   

Corporate Services ICT – management (DD) 2015/16 TBC TBC TBC Annual allocation 

Corporate Services ICT – infrastructure (DD) 2017/18 TBC TBC TBC Annual allocation 

Corporate Services ICT – programmes & projects (DD) 2014/15 TBC TBC TBC Annual allocation 

Corporate Services ICT – legal compliance (DD) 2016/17 TBC TBC TBC Annual allocation 

Corporate Services ICT – applications (DD) 2014/15 TBC TBC TBC Annual allocation 

Corporate Services Transformation Programme 2017/18 A A   

Corporate Services Partnership governance 2011/12 G A   

Corporate Services Consultation  G A   

Corporate Services Risk Management (DD) 2017/18 G A   

Corporate Services Project / programme / contract management 2014/15 
 

G A 
 

Transformation Prog 
reviewed 17/18 

Corporate Services Performance management (DD) 2016/17 G A   

Corporate Services Corporate Governance (DD) 2017/18 G A   

Corporate Services Communications 2011/12 G A   

Corporate Services Training & Development 2012/13 G A   

Corporate Services Health & Safety (DD) 2012/13 G A   

Corporate Services Recruitment 2017/18  G A  Fraud focus 

Corporate Services Payroll (DD) 2015/16 G DD  Cyclical review process 

Corporate Services HR Policy / advice (DD) 2016/17 G A   

Corporate Services Equality & diversity  G A   

Corporate Services Customer services 2016/17 G A   

Chief Financial Officer Council Tax (DD) 2015/16 G DD  Cyclical review process 

Chief Financial Officer Housing Benefits & Council Tax Support (DD) 2015/16 G DD  Cyclical review process 

Chief Financial Officer NNDR (incl Business Rates Assurance) (DD) 2013/14 G DD  Cyclical review process 

  

P
age 206



 
 
Service Area 

 
Auditable Area / System 
(DD = Due Diligence) 

 
Last audited 
 

Assurance  
Map 

Rating 

Audit 
Risk 

Assessment 

In 
2019/20 

Plan 

 
Comments 

Chief Financial Officer Corporate / counter fraud 2017/18 G A  Cyclical review process 

Chief Financial Officer Debtors (DD) 2016/17 G DD  Cyclical review process 

Chief Financial Officer Bank & Electronic Income (DD) 2017/18 G DD  Cyclical review process 

Chief Financial Officer PCIDSS 2017/18 A A   

Chief Financial Officer Treasury Management (DD) 2017/18 G DD  Cyclical review process 

Chief Financial Officer Creditors (DD) 2017/18 G DD  Cyclical review process 

Chief Financial Officer Accountancy (DD) 2014/15 G DD  Cyclical review process 

Chief Financial Officer VAT (DD)  G DD  Rely on HMRC reviews 

Chief Financial Officer Medium Term Financial Strategy 2011/12 A R   

Chief Financial Officer Insurance (DD) 2015/16 G A   

Chief Financial Officer Capital strategy, accounting & asset control 2011/12 G A   

Chief Financial Officer Grants to external bodies  G G   

Chief Financial Officer Financial regulations 2011/12 G A   

Chief Financial Officer Procurement (DD) 2015/16 G A   

Chief Financial Officer Internal Audit  G G   

Corporate Director Economic Development 2018/19 G A   

Corporate Director Managed workspace & Industrial Estates 2010/11 G A   

Corporate Director Legal services (Legal Lincolnshire)  G A   

Corporate Director Information management 2017/18 G A   

Corporate Director Transparency  G G   

Corporate Director Boston Barrier  G A   

Corporate Director Local Plan 2013/14 G A   

Corporate Director Development Management (incl enforcement) 2015/16 G A   

Corporate Director FOI / SAR enquiries  G A   

Corporate Director Member support  G A   

Corporate Director Committee services  G A   

Corporate Director Electoral registration 2010/11 G A   

Corporate Director Elections  G A   

Corporate Director Culture, Values, Ethics 2018/19 G A  Allocation over 2 years 

Corporate Director Scrutiny function  G A   

 
 
  

P
age 207



 

Appendix D - Quality Assurance Framework  
 

Annual self- assessment 
 

 

Audit Managers 

 
 
 

HIA 

 Head of Internal Audit - develop & maintain Quality Assurance 

Improvement Programme (QAIP) & improvement action plan 

 

 Focus on evaluating conformance with Internal Audit Charter, 

definition of Internal Audit, Code of Ethics & the Standards 

Quality 

Assurance 

 
 
 

Principal 

 
 

HIA 

 
Quality 

Plan 
 
 

Individual 

 

 
 
 
 

Periodic quality assu.rance assessments 

 Obtain periodic assurance that engagement planning, fieldwork 

Auditors 
Supervision 

& 

Review 

Auditors Conduct and reporting /communicating results adheres to audit 

practice standards 

 Provide HIA with quarterly highlight reports on outcome of reviews 
 
 

Quality 
Assurance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Quality 

Plan 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Supervision 

& 
Review 

 

Quality outcomes / process designed to deliver a 

consistently high quality audit service to our clients - fit for 

purpose / meet client expectations / conform to PSIAS 
 
 
 

Quality improvement plan - HIA reporting to Audit Committee 

on the outcome of Quality Assurance – with improvement 

action plan and any significant non-conformance included in 

the Annual Report / Annual Governance Statement 

 
 

 
Ongoing monitoring – quality built into the audit process 

 

Quality checks and oversight are undertaken throughout the 

audit engagement ensuring/g that processes and practice 

are consistently applied and working well. 

 
 
 

Individual 

Auditors 

 
 
 
 
 

Principal   

Auditors 

 Conduct all audit engagements in accordance with audit 

practice standards / PSIAS 

 Behave, at all times in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
/ Code of Conduct 

 Promote the standards and their use throughout the 

Internal Audit activity 

 Commitment to delivering quality services 
 

 

 

 Obtain on-going assurance that that engagement planning, 

fieldwork conduct and reporting /communicating results adheres 

to audit practice standards 

 Undertake engagement supervision and review 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Audit Managers 

13 

P
age 208



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2018-19 
 

MEETING  
 

ITEMS 

30 MAY 2018  Annual Audit Fee – External Auditor 

 Annual Fraud Performance Report 2017/18 – Kelly Clarke 

 Quarter 4 2017/18 Risk Report  – Suzanne Rolfe  

 Pre-Audit Financial Report 2017/18 – Paul Julian  

 Annual Treasury Management Report 2017/18 – Paul Julian  

 Internal Audit Annual Report 2017/18 – John Scott  

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

23 JULY 2018  Report to those charged with governance (ISA 260) 2017/18 –           
John Cornett, KPMG 

 Financial Report 2017/18 – Paul Julian  

 Treasury Management Update – Quarter 1 2018/19 – Paul Julian 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

17 SEPT 2018  Introduction to representatives from Mazars 

 Quarter 1 Risk Report  – Suzanne Rolfe  

 Property Fund Update – Colin Wyatt 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

12 NOV 2018  Annual Audit Letter 2017/18  – John Cornett 

 Quarter 2 Risk Report – Suzanne Rolfe  

 Treasury Management and Capital Strategy Update – Quarter 2 
2018/19 – Paul Julian  

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

10 DEC 2018  Code of Conduct Working Group Recommendations  

28 JAN 2019  Certification of Grants and Returns – Annual Report 2017/18 –  
KPMG 

 Technical Update, Incorporating the External Audit Progress Report – 
Mazars 

 External Audit Plan 2018/19 – Mazars 

 Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2019/20 – 2023/24 – Paul Julian  

 Treasury Management Update – Quarter 3 2018/19 – Paul Julian 
Accounting Policies – Paul Julian 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 – John Scott 
 

25 MAR 2019  Quarter 3 Risk Report 2018/19 – Suzanne Rolfe 

 Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 – Paul Julian 

 Combined Assurance – Status Report – John Scott 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

 Internal Audit Plan  2019/20 – John Scott 
 

 
 

 
 

To be scheduled: CIPFA Guidance to Audit Committees – John Scott 

Page 209

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	1 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
	2 DRAFT BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2019 - 20
	Report
	Appendix 1 Summary by Portfolio Holder
	Appendix 2 Summary by Service Area
	Appendix 3 Corporate Charging Policy
	Appendix 4 Fees Charges 2019 - 20.
	Appendix 5 Resereves Schedule
	Appendix 6 Asset Strategy Update
	Appendix 7 Capital Strategy 2019 - 20 update
	Appendix 8 Treasury Management
	Appendix 9 Pay Policy Statement
	Appendix 10 Links to Consultation Documents

	3 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE - QUARTER 3 2018 - 19
	4 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
	Appendix A

	5 DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PROCESS REPORT 2018 - 19
	6 DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019 - 20
	7 WORK PROGRAMME

